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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other

sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the main board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of

the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of North Asia Strategic
Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of giving information with regard to North Asia Strategic Holdings
Limited. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement in this report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in
this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are

founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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The following is a summary of the audited consolidated financial A TAIEREIERERE AR ([ARQA sk
statements of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company” RKEE]) HIFB AR R ERZFIEE(AEI A%

or “NAS"), its subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities (collectively B k[ EREEE DR TISFE 2 LEEBZER
the “Group” or “NAS Group”) for the respective years as hereunder EMBRERME -
stated.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT HRFERER

For the year ended 31st March
BE=ZA=+—-BHLEFE

2009 2008 2007 2006
—ZEENF ZZTTNF TT+F ZTTRE
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FEr
Revenue WA 3,167,965 2,229,529 1,269,676 559,327 359,948
Profit/(loss) before B A5 EEAT
income tax wH,(B8) 34,070 (159,499) (87,636) 69,736 (16,995)
Income tax FR1g%:
(expense)/credit () #E (17,834) 23,371 15,036 (2,989) 5,007
Profit/(loss) after income BrATSHIEE ARG
tax but before minority DB SR S A
interests wH(BE) 16,236 (136,128) (72,600) 66,747 (11,988)
Minority interests LR RER 475 35 10 — —
Profit/(loss) attributable to ~ ZANA @]
the owners of HE AEN
the Company wH, () 16,711 (136,093) (72,590) 66,747 (11,988)
Note: et -
No dividends have been paid or declared by the Company since its AABEEMKLIAK - WEIREXTREE

incorporation.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

2009/10

tTERBERBR LA

AR E M BMRR R

As at 31st March

R=A=+—H
2008

ZETHhEFE ZTENF ZTTEF  ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Property, plant and M- WEREE
equipment 704,313 560,213 64,606 36,014 478
Investment properties KA 2,183 2,257 2,288 2,206 —
Leasehold land and land HET MR L
use rights 15 A 20,835 21,684 19,235 11,869 —
Intangible assets mILEE 582,049 583,161 419,647 432,279 6
Subscription receivables  FREEEFUIA — 13,000 940,429 282,211 765,545
Available-for-sale financial A[{tHESREE
assets 3,008 1,357 3,481 — —
Deferred tax assets RIEHIBE E 28,550 18,810 12,444 — —
Other non-current assets ~ HEfb3ERBEE 12,416 20,972 3,307 — —
Other current assets Hin#EE 1,834,181 1,593,267 1,185,218 929,641 339,161
Current liabilities nEaE (1,038,775) (716,327) (490,462) (440,297) (40,953)
Non-current liabilities EMEBARE (138,588) (167,879) (27,861) (22,583) (14,642)
Net assets BEFE 2,010,172 1,930,515 2,132,332 1,231,340 1,049,595
Equity k=
Share capital e 135,968 134,691 134,691 82,718 74,790
Other reserves E At # 2,010,137 1,947,614 2,023,492 1,103,559 996,489
(Accumulated losses)/ (RETER)
retained profits R F (139,170) (155,228) (27,527) 45,063 (21,684)
Shareholders’ equity MR R 2,006,935 1,927,077 2,130,656 1,231,340 1,049,595
Minority interests DER R = 3,237 3,438 1,676 — —
2,010,172 1,930,515 2,132,332 1,231,340 1,049,595
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present

the audited consolidated results of North Asia Strategic Holdings

Limited (the “Company” or “NAS”), its subsidiaries and jointly-

controlled entities (collectively the “Group” or “NAS Group”) for the
year ended 31st March 2010 (the “year”). This was a challenging
year for the Group’s portfolio companies with the global downturn
affecting many of our customers and markets we serve. With the

rebounding economy and with actions taken by management on the

sales and cost side, the Group recorded an increase in sales from

approximately HK$2.2 billion last year to approximately HK$3.2
billion for the year and incurred a net profit of approximately
HK$16.7 million on revenue. The key factors in business

performance and growth for the year are as follows:

Increase in sales from our share of the full year revenue
from TK Chemical Corporation (“TKC”), the 33.74% jointly-
controlled entity in Korea acquired by the Group on 30th June
2008

Increase in sales from our hi-tech distribution business due
to the moderate rebound of the demand for surface mount
technology (“SMT”) machinery in China, India and Vietnam

Significant rebound of the demand and market price of brown
fishmeal due to increase in demand from the aquaculture
industry in China and limited supply of global brown fishmeal

Start-up costs associated with ten new store openings in our
branded food business in Hong Kong

Active management actions taken to streamline operations,
improve efficiency and reduce costs across our businesses

Our management is focused on continuing its sales and earnings

improvement trend in the coming year.

OUTLOOK

Although the global economy has not fully stabilised and we

continue to monitor the risks to the business, we are continuing to

see strengthening of customer demand.

L]

Demand has continued to improve in the fish oil processing
business and its market price has increased. However, we
expect a seasonal dip in pricing of brown fishmeal in the first
quarter of the fiscal year ended 31st March 2011
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OUTLOOK (continued)

o Electronics manufacturing market in China, India and Vietnam
has continued to improve with strong orders from multi-
national corporations and local customers in China

o Demand and pricing for man-made fibers have stabilised
although the risk of renewed capacity exists from China with
economic return

o Expect demand to improve for our branded food business
with improving economy and increasing scale of our
presence, focus to execute plans to accelerate financial
performance improvement

Our focus will continue to be active management to capture
available sales, prudently manage cash flow and monitor costs and
risks. With the improved business outlook, the management teams
are accelerating the growth plans that were in execution before the
downturn to augment organic growth with new businesses/products
and/or complementary acquisitions.

OUR INVESTMENT STRATEGY

With the conditional agreement to sell 33.74% equity stake of North
Asia Strategic (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“NASS”), the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, in TKC, as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 4th May 2010, the Company is in a good
position to take advantage of investment opportunities. We are
evaluating potential investments to complement and augment our
existing portfolio companies by investing in acquisitions in new
products, capabilities and/or markets. We will continue to seek
attractive investments to grow shareholder value during this time.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to our worldwide suppliers, customers and banks
for their trust and support in our products, services and business
throughout the year. | also wish to take this opportunity to offer my
appreciation to our shareholders for their confidence in our Group,
as well as our staff for their hard works, dedication and continuous
commitment to excellence.

Goran Sture Malm
Chairman
Hong Kong, 10th June 2010

R R + =+ » = 5~ u < v

B

)

RE(#)

e XEBEMRRFEARMEPS ZAHIE
Z DLPE HERBEZEFRED
BRENRE

« BEFEASGABRS WEAEEOHER
BETE R AESATRREEE RS

E

s BEILGEEEMNKELAKBEAZEARD
BERE BNERBEREE - MRk E
MBRE BHASERERRERZH
REBmE

AEEREEBNERBEBEERN - AEED
BEEHERS ZBHREERSRE  UKE
KRRAERER - AREBARER  €EEK
MRHEITRBERRN BB ZERAR - BRES
ER/ ERk/IWBERIER - RANIE
£ o

il

FEBZRERKE

BEARAR-ZZE—ZFRAAMB T2 AL
WERRI M B 5155 & North Asia Strategic
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ([NASS] - KRRz 2 &
MiE 2B )R TKC 2 33.74% iz - AR
BENERAEREERERE - AEBEEEGE
TRBERE#RS  EREZRENKERER
BEENZARAR/SWBUAEERBETRRAEKE
NRIZER - BAl - AEEKEESKARS| A
ZI/E - RmIEARREE o

AAZBRREFGROEHERBER - P K
RITFAHAREER  RBREBZEBEX
Fro RATMBEHRERHSBREANEEZE
Lo ARBETEBRE-—FBNTE nECER
BaFIEZ R -

Ex
Goran Sture Malm

&4 —F-FE~ATHA



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmRDN

8 NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED RBVANINIS/ZNSSI=ZI0Izh) 2009/10

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE M REKRR

From actions taken during the downturn and improvement in the B 2 7 52 [ A 7 £ 3R HA PR R BN 2 H8 it S AR B
economy, our business had increasing turnover and profits in the E AEBREERAFTERLETE nf 28
year. Our management teams’ focus on actively capturing available e BEREEBETAERERETIEEKSE - &
sales, reducing costs and closely managing the risks from the BRA - ARBYEBEEAMRNTES Z B -
economy has resulted in our portfolio companies increasing their SAEBETIKE AR REOEERIARIRAER
leadership positions in the market during the economic recovery. MG BB - EEERAISSLE  EEEK
With improving business outlook, the management teams are EDNPRIEITAE IR BT B e 2 S RTS8 AR
accelerating strategic growth plans that were in execution before BIRANT RRRZEE -

the downturn to increase and realise Company and shareholder
value.

For the year, the Group recorded a consolidated revenue of REFREEESERS WAL S,167,965,000 %
approximately HK$3,167,965,000, representing approximately TC C RMEFEINA 42.1% © FIFF - AEBERE

42.1% increase from the year before. At the same time the Group 4R A% A 416,711,000 7T » M EFEEH
recorded a consolidated profit of approximately HK$16,711,000 #7136,093,0008 7T © HELIMTIHRAEE 2
in the year versus a loss of approximately HK$136,093,000 last BREERDHEEEES M AN REEERS
year. The increase in sales resulted from rebound of demand in HRACBEB D P2 FRKEF - AR AR EE R
our hi-tech distribution and services division, fishmeal and seafood BPZRIERMBDEILIMI0MBIETE - L
product division and chemical operation division as well as the EEEEEREESINERE 2EE  FAN
addition of 10 new stores to our start-up branded food division. BB B2 ER = EHSSEF] - MEIEDZ
Coupled with management actions taken to streamline operations mER MmO BRIBEEREIL N - EEEMH B8
and improve efficiency, three of the four business divisions MEFTRE -

were profitable this year with the start-up branded food division
narrowing its loss per store with increasing scale.

The profit/loss figures of each major business division disclosed TXHWESTBEBD B G, FHiESES
below do not include any intra-group charges, as they are TEEAMEERAGMIER  ZFEBRAERN
eliminated upon consolidation. e IR B R o

FISHMEAL AND SEAFOOD PRODUCT DIVISION BV RBEEMRDH

During the year, there was a rebound of the demand for brown FA XHBEKETERTREMEEKEES
fishmeal and its market prices due to increase in demand from RATTE - ARMZHERREMISERERE
the aquaculture industry in China and limited global supply. This F o SAREEBERA% LEES 2 AN REE
benefited the core fishmeal trading business of our 40% jointly- EmnzaeESBERATSEELOA
controlled fishmeal and seafood product division conducted MBHEBSUZE  UBEASERARFEEEN
through Coland Group Limited (“Coland”) and resulted in our HIR AL 5526,413,0008 7 * ELEFIEREL A
share in its revenue of approximately HK$526,413,000 for the year 24,159,000 7T + MEAFUWAL % 430,887,000

with a net profit of approximately HK$24,159,000, versus revenue TR EIEX) 5 4,078,0008 7T - mEEEEET/)
of approximately HK$430,887,000 and loss of approximately HERE  WEBSIMTH 2 HREUE - EF
HK$4,078,000 in last year. Coland continues to implement smaller BEE -

lot purchases and improve inventory management by analysis of
near term supply and demand data.
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FISHMEAL AND SEAFOOD PRODUCT DIVISION

(continued)

Our expansion and diversification into value adding and higher
margin businesses continues full stream. Our fish oil process
business is a leader in quality and supply capability and Coland
has one of the largest fish oil processing capabilities in Asia
today. Our feed business and joint venture with Nosan Corporation
(“Nosan”) is exploring new products and customers. Our fillet and
crayfish processing factory in Wuhan which started operation in
September 2009 has obtained the regulatory certificates for export
to the US market and Europe market in the year.

Going forward, we expect the demand for fishmeal and seafood
products will continue to grow with our increasing market access
(i.e. US and Europe) and increasing demand for seafood products
by consumers. We expect a seasonal dip in demand in the first
quarter of the fiscal year ended 31st March 2011 for brown fishmeal
but strong demand for fish oil to continue.

Our management team is focused on the following areas, especially
with the ramp up of our new valued added businesses:

o Continue to monitor the global supply and demand for the
fishmeal business and closely manage inventory

o Expand our feed processing capacity to take advantage of
growing demand and our joint venture with Nosan

o Build on our processing capability in our fish oil business
° Grow our customer base in US and Europe for our new fillet
business

HI-TECH DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICES DIVISION

After the dramatic decline of sales across the globe during the
downturn, customer demand has continued to improve. With
improving customer orders and management actions taken on cost
control and operation efficiency, this division recorded revenue of
approximately HK$775,870,000 and a net profit of approximately
HK$10,708,000 for the year, versus a revenue of approximately
HK$564,612,000 and a net loss of approximately HK$50,021,000
in last year. During the recession, we have established a stronger
position in the sector as a leader in the distribution and service of
SMT machinery in China, Vietnam and India.

N N = * & = v 7 5 = m
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HI-TECH DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICES DIVISION BRREMDHERERE D EHBE)

(continued)

The consumers’ sentiment continues to improve after year end with HEEBENFRERERS  BERETFE
increasing demand from global accounts as global electronics EANTIRERIEINES BB RS ERE AL -
manufacturing companies are increasing capacities with a rapid RNEBTEH D2 P HRAN AR REA GHE
rate. We expect the financial improvement of the division to o o

continue in the coming months.

Our management team is focused on the following areas to further AEEEEBEFEFRUATHE - E—TER
build on our great distribution and sales capability in China, KPR B REEZR R HEREEEN B
Vietnam and India which serves majority of leading manufacturing EHRREHELE R EER FRERS -
customers in hi-tech industry in the world.

o Continue to strengthen and consolidate our leading position . BENBREERASERETSE D 2 E
in our market sector BB

. Reaccelerate our strategic growth plans in services/solutions, . BMNRRNEBRIRE,BRAIR - ESR
new products and complementary segments MEHIER S E KBS RS

. Continue to monitor and manage our costs as we grow . FIE R R B B I B IR S AR

. Invest in our internal processes to enhance our support to our . WARERE - xR REER X
customers and suppliers &

CHEMICAL OPERATION DIVISION {LEXHK D8

For our chemical operation division conducted through TKC, we RAEBBEBTKCLECBEBHHME -

shared 33.74% of its revenue of approximately HK$1,754,983,000 REBRAFEBME3874% 2 WAL B

with net profit of approximately HK$80,442,000 for the year, versus 1,754,983,000 /& 7T, + & KV FEEA) /2 80,442,000

our share of its 9-month post-acquisition revenue of approximately B MASBEMHEABEAKBERRANS

HK$1,202,512,000 with net loss of approximately HK$29,258,000. 1,202,512,0007%8 7T * E51E FEEA A 29,258,000

During the year, demand and pricing improved across its product BT TN EERZERRERBRNRE

lines and TKC has successfully continued its restructuring plan and TKCI B INEEEEREFE - EFmAKEK

reducing debt load from KRW152 billion at time of our acquisition to 8885 2 152,000,000,000 8 B M EARNFE R Z
KRW69 billion at end of the year. 69,000,000,000 #£ & °
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CHEMICAL OPERATION DIVISION (continued)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4th May 2010
(the “Announcement”), NASS entered into a conditional agreement
to sell its 33.74% equity stake in TKC at a consideration of KRW77
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$545.9 million as disclosed
in the Announcement) on 30th April 2010. The Board believes that
the disposal provides a good opportunity to realise the value that
has been created in TKC, provides certainty and acceleration with
respect to the Group’s exit and return, as well as helps minimising
the Company’s risk exposure to the high volatility of the Korean
stock market and exchange rate of Korean won against other
major currencies. As of the date of this report, NASS has received
an initial payment of KRW7.7 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$54.6 million and 10% of the consideration as disclosed in the
Announcement) from the purchaser pursuant to the agreement.
Closing is expected to take place latest by 15th July 2010, subject
to NAS shareholders’ approval.

BRANDED FOOD DIVISION

Our start-up business, the branded food division, gained good
momentum with increase of restaurants from 5 to 15 in Hong Kong
by the year end. As of the date of this report, we have opened
15 restaurants in renowned tourist spots, commercial districts
and residential districts in Hong Kong, including Tsim Sha Tsui,
Wanchai, Mongkok, Fortress Hill, Hunghom, Shatin, Causeway Bay,
Admiralty, Tsuen Wan, Wong Tai Sin, Sheung Shui, Tseung Kwan O
and Tsz Wan Shan. We have also won a number of awards in Hong
Kong as one of the best quick service restaurants in the city.

The division recorded a revenue of approximately HK$110,699,000
with loss of approximately HK$28,513,000 for the year, versus
a revenue of approximately HK$31,518,000 and loss of
approximately HK$16,489,000 in last year. The increase in net
loss was attributable to the start-up costs associated with 10
new restaurants opened in Hong Kong during the year. With the
improved economies of scale and increasing presence in the Hong
Kong market arising from increased number of our restaurants and
management actions taken to streamline operations and managing
efficiency, net loss per restaurant was significantly reduced by
approximately 42.4% in the year over last year.
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BRANDED FOOD DIVISION (continued) mERBRDE )

With increasing presence in the market with superior products BEEMAEEMS ERA  MEEERMLME
and brand promotions, we expect the financial improvement of the EE - AEBFEANKRREA oI ER
division to continue in the coming months. RERFERE -

Our management team is focused in the following areas to grow our REBZEBEFEEINATHE  UBEREE

restaurant business. Hig& o

. Continue to add restaurants in attractive locations to increase . MENRERFIMEILRER  WEAXEREDY
our serving presence and scale BERERRRE

. Work innovative marketing programs to capture new . WAL EAIE 2 TI5ETE - LARAFTE
customers and increase brand loyalty BEREABEZEERENEHE

o Closely monitor costs and realise cost efficiencies from . BB A R BB IRIBE AR RTEE 2K
increasing scale ANV E

. Insure top product quality to continue to have top review and . BREFEEMEER  NEEERIBERSE
awards from our customers SENREE

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND CHARGES MBER RBEEREEEN

ON ASSETS

As at 31st March 2010, NAS Group had bank and cash balances RZE—ZTF=A=+—0 LEXBEE R
of approximately HK$1,217,562,000 (2009: HK$1,122,135,000), TRIBE &5 41,217,562,0008 L(ZEZ N
of which approximately HK$84,381,000 (2009: HK$58,552,000) % :1,122,135,000% 7t ) + H 7 484,381,000
was pledged to secure trade financing facilities of approximately BIT(ZZE T NLF : 58,552,000 7T ) Jh K #1E
HK$1,172,268,000 (2009: HK$924,365,000) granted by banks to BIRTRERBEER  RIBERERITEERR
its Group companies for trust receipts loans, mortgage loans and AEBERBIRHEL1,172,268,0008 0 (==

bank borrowings. These banking facilities were also secured by JLEF £ 924,365,000 ) 2 ESMEREE 2
(a) bank deposits, (b) corporate guarantees provided by NAS, and R o ZFRITEEIA(Q) IRITFER * (b)dbTExk
guarantee from the Government of the HKSAR, (c) the Group’s BRI 2 AR ERMABEBBERBIT ZER - (¢)

inventories held under trust receipts bank loan arrangement, (d) REBREBETWERTERLZZEZFE

land and buildings, (e) investment properties, (f) leasehold land (d) L RIEF « (e)HEWE - (N HEELHLTE

and prepaid land, and (g) discounted bills receivable with recourse. i R(Q)BBREZEWREEIEAE
R e

As at 31st March 2010, NAS Group had borrowings of approximately RZE—ZEF=ZA=+—H LXK BE
HK$387,475,000 (2009: HK$437,296,000). The gearing ratio (sum Z BB %) 5387,475,000/8 T(ZEZ hLF ¢
of borrowings and convertible bonds divided by equity attributable 437,296,000 87L) - RZZE—ZTF=FA=+—

to owners of the Company) of the Group was 0.19 as at 31st March H AfBEzaBRXR(BEHEBRRKRESBN
2010, as compared to 0.24 as at 31st March 2009. BRUARDRIES AEIGEZR)A019 MARZE

TNF=A=+—HEAIB0.24 -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF INVESTMENTS
AND SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31st March 2010, the Group had no significant investments.
There were no material acquisitions or disposals of investments and
subsidiaries during the year.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The businesses of the Group were primarily transacted in HKS,
US$, Euro, Yen, KRW and Renminbi. The Group’s cash and
bank deposits, including pledged bank deposits, were mainly
denominated in HK$. The foreign currency exposure of the Group
is mainly driven by its business divisions.

The Group attempts to minimise its foreign currency exposure
through (i) matching its payables for purchases against its
receivables on sales, and (ii) maintain sufficient foreign currency
cash balances to settle the foreign currency payables. We will
continue to monitor closely the exchange rate between US$ and
Yen and will make necessary hedging arrangements to minimise its
foreign currency exposure arising from foreign currency fluctuation
in the future.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2010, the Company had provided guarantees
of approximately HK$518,068,000 (2009: HK$356,460,000) with
respect to banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries and
jointly-controlled entities.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31st March 2010, NAS Group employed 1,299 (2009:1,100)
staff. Salaries and annual bonuses are determined according to
positions and performance of the employees. Remuneration policies
are reviewed annually by the management and remuneration
packages are structured to take into account the comparable
level of the market. The Group provides on-the-job training and
training subsidies to its employees in addition to pension schemes
and medical insurance. Total staff costs including contribution
to retirement benefit schemes incurred during the year under
review amounted to approximately HK$211,342,000 (2009:
HK$148,700,000).
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AEEEHE B (i) B RN 8 50R B R U
ERR - R()ERFEEIIMNERSERAIN R
NONEFRIR - BURIMNEE S R - AEE SRS

BEERETMAEZEGE  WREFRRIE
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RABE
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TEEMB AR RARIEH EEIRME Z BT
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356,460,000 8 7T ) Z &R °

BEEE RFMEE

RZE—TFE-ZA=+—H tLEBEERE
FH129%4(ZETNF :1,100%)ET - &
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%o MABBFE 2428 TRA(BIERKEF
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NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

There was no material change in capital commitments since 31st

March 2010.

Operating lease commitments

As at 31st March 2010, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

2009/10

AR

BAREE

B-E-EF=-A=+—Hi EFAELES
REE -

BEMEOEE

R-ZZB-FF=A=+—0  AKREREZHT
ATRE B - RARREAEZ RERSER
DT

As at 31st March

R=A=+—H

2009

ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Not later than one year 1 AR 32,378 18,034
Later than one year and not later than five years ~ FiB1FE5F K 23,809 15,585
More than five years HRIB5F — —
56,187 33,619

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 17.24 OF

THE GEM LISTING RULES

The following is a condensed consolidated statement of financial

position as at 31st March 2010 of Coland Group Limited, a jointly-

controlled entity, of which the Group has an equity interest of 40%,

as required therein under rule 17.24 of the Rules Governing the

RIER EHRAUFE17.24 2 HERE

IRIBEE S PRI R 5 L AR RID([RIZER £
RAIDFE724168F U TREEEEFRA
A(AREE A 40% e A tEas 2 HFES E 58

R-F-—ZE=ZA=1+—HZBEREEUHRR

Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock o
Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”):
HK$’000
FET
Non-current assets EREEE 226,767
Inventories FE 402,858
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEFEIER 72,698
Other current assets HEtmB&EE 341,793
Bank borrowings HRITEE (384,766)
Other current liabilities HEtmBaE (262,471)
Net assets BEFE 396,879




PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEAEEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Goran Sture Malm, Chairman

Mr. Goéran Sture Malm, aged 63, joined the Company in August
2005. Mr. Malm is the chairman of Boathouse Limited, an
investment company, and Children’s Medical Foundation, Hong
Kong, a charity originated in the United States. He also presently
serves as a director of various companies in China, Hong Kong,
Japan, Singapore, ltaly and Sweden, and was independent director
of Samsung Electronic Co. Ltd in Seoul, Korea. Prior to joining
Boathouse Limited in 2000, Mr. Malm was the president of Dell
Asia Pacific, senior vice president of Dell Computer Corporation,
senior vice president of General Electric (GE) Company, president
of General Electric Asia Pacific, president and chief executive
officer of GE Medical Systems Asia Ltd. and vice president of
General Electric (GE) Company. Mr. Malm holds a Bachelor degree
in Economics and Business Administration from the Gothenburg
School of Business, Economics and Law in Sweden. For
2005-2006, Mr. Malm was assigned as visiting professor in Applied
Management at the same Business School. Mr. Malm is a member

of the nomination committee of the Company.

Savio Chow Sing Nam, Deputy Chairman

Mr. Savio Chow Sing Nam, aged 53, joined the Company in August
2005. Mr. Chow is the lead partner for the special situations group
of the Ajia Partners Group. Prior to joining the Ajia Partners Group,
Mr. Chow served as a consultant at E.M. Warburg Pincus & Co.
Asia Ltd. He has had about 20 years experience in the information
technology industry both in the United States and Asia Pacific. He
was the managing director of Yahoo! Inc. responsible for Asia. Prior
to joining Yahoo! Inc., Mr. Chow held various senior management
positions at Netscape Communications Corporation, Lotus
Development Corporation and International Business Machines
Corporation. He holds a Master of Science degree in Engineering
and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University

of California at Berkeley.

HITE=E
Géran Sture Malm © £f&

Goran Sture Malm¥t 4 - 6355 RZZTZTHh
FNANAMAKRRA Malmbk £ RKE R A
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o EAFRIGHSZRAGEFESE &
CRERNER - EETERARETBILE
F o Malmst £ % = Z ZT = i ABoathouse
Limited Al * & f£Dell Asia Pacific.z # & -
Dell Computer Corporation 2 = &% Bll 4 % -
General Electric (GE) Company Z & & 8/ 42
% + General Electric Asia Pacific 2 42 # -
GE Medical Systems Asia Ltd. 2 48 M 1TH
423 & General Electric (GE) Company Z 8|42
# ° Malm % £ 5B B # Gothenburg School of
Business, Economics and Law Z#&E K& T
BRE848G  R_TERAE_TTNE
Malm e =B LR AZR A 2R IERER TR
B o MamEERRARIREEEGKE -

Al BERE

FEBRELE 535 RZEZRFNAMALR
7 o FE& L A Ajia Partners EE WAL EIRE S
HERAEZ A ERINMAAja Partners 8 2
Al AEAEREFRESENER - KRAFEHR
BB T K[ (5 SRHREF L 20 F B TIELR -
ERME AR DMNENERBLLIE - FSLENT
B MR 2 AT BIEMS @A B (Netscape) »
LRI T3 2 7] (Lotus) B85 B 7 24425 (1BM)
REIEETRE =R ERBAL o FEINMNKE4
REORBERIRESERMETRIMEEEELT

B o
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

John Saliling, Chief Executive Officer John Saliling » TE#AR

Mr. John Saliling, aged 46, joined the Company in August 2008 and Saliling %t & » 4675% * R=ZZEZENF/\AIMAK
leads the team to drive operational performance, strategic growth NE - BETEEBHESKNESEZLERE
and new investment for the portfolio. Mr. Saliling has over 23 years BLRFME LR EMS - Saliling K LA H
of business management, operations and execution experience in CEHE - BB BA - 3N EB R EUM
China, India, Korea, Japan, Singapore, United States and Europe. CEBER  BERAITRBRE23F - AL

Prior to NAS, Mr. Saliling was the managing director of Cisco SESRBE DAAT © Saliling B E T BRI Z & (TERH)
Systems (“Cisco”) consulting group for Asia Pacific, working with TABERECESREE  SHEBUTS M

government ministries and leading companies across industries. RITREZREEE - MABRIAR - Saliling
Before Cisco, Mr. Saliling held senior operating positions in EECRTARBRCETEREFEB(LEHE
enterprise software and consumer/B2B internet companies in Asia BE)VBREARETEEF B RBS -
Pacific as the chief executive officer of Similan.com Pte. Ltd. and R Similan.com Pte. Ltd. EEITHBE RN
chief operating officer of Eutech Cybernetics Inc.. He also worked Eutech Cybernetics Inc. #E(F & & B & - %
as a principal, leading the hi-tech strategy practice in Asia for Booz MERA—REHZAAREEL BBHD A

Allen & Hamilton, a global consulting firm. Mr. Saliling is a Knight BIERE SETAMEZSRNEERES -
scholar and holds a Master of Business Administration degree in Saliling £ 4 BES Knight 2 & - WHABRETY

finance, a Master of Engineering and a Bachelor of Science degree MABEECITHERS(MB)ELT - TRERE
from Cornell University. Mr. Saliling is a member of the remuneration T MIBRIEBLEBAL o Saliling 7t £ A AR 7 B
committee and the compliance officer of the Company. ZEEMEB NERFIE -

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHITES

Andrew Yao Cho Fai PhiE

Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai, J.P., aged 44, has been with the Company PAEE A KF@L 44 BARAEER
since the formal establishment. He graduated from the University FRAZFEBNINEA AR A] o k5o E R ZE R N K241

of California, Berkeley and Harvard Graduate School of Business. BHRD R LB HE 2R - L ABIEES
Mr. Yao is the chairman and chief executive officer of Van Shung BAERARZERRTRBHELAAESEEFRA

Chong Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive RIZBMIENTES  MEHABBRAERLT
director of Kader Holdings Company Limited which are companies NE) e kA ABREBEEFBRARBARE

listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr Yao serves EHRLEMEERE PEXHFFHLEISEE - P
as a Standing Committee Member of the Shanghai China People’s RELEBSFREF LEMBEFHE2AXE -
Political Consultative Conference and All-China Youth Federation, FBEBRERE  FEERERE - ERREX
Vice Chairman of Youth Federation of State-owned Enterprises and BEEEREARRAEES  BESFEEBE £

Shanghai Youth Federation, Board Member of Fudan University in BOGERIMA BEREZRLEBRHELZESE -
Shanghai, Court Member of The University of Hong Kong, Member PR ERE2004 FEBSTFLERE] -

of Harvard Business School International Alumni Board, Founder

of Young President Organization Shanghai Chapter, Member of

the Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. He was awarded “Young

Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong 2004”".
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Takeshi Kadota

Mr. Takeshi Kadota, aged 63, joined the Company in September
2007. Mr. Kadota has been engaged for more than 20 years
in various capital market activities, including private equity
investments. Prior to his retirement from Mitsubishi Corporation,
Mr. Kadota acted as a senior vice president and division
chief operating officer of its Financial Services Division which
included private equity, real estate, M&A and venture capital. Mr.
Kadota also served as president and chief executive officer of
Mitsubishi Corporation Capital Ltd. Prior to this post, he served
as a managing director of Mitsubishi Corporation Finance PLC,
a Euro-based financial subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation. Mr.
Kadota is a visiting professor and lecturer in the field of business
administration in the Interdisciplinary Graduate School of Science
and Engineering, Tokyo Institute of Technology. He received his
Bachelor degree in Laws from University of Tokyo and a Master
degree in Business Administration from Stanford Graduate School
of Business. Mr. Kadota is a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company.

Moses Tsang Kwok Tai

Mr. Moses Tsang Kwok Tai, aged 61, is the chairman and a
managing partner of Ajia Partners Inc.. He also serves as a director
of various member companies of the Ajia Partners Group. He was
elected as a general partner of Goldman Sachs Group in 1988,
and subsequently served as the chairman of Goldman Sachs (Asia)
L.L.C. until 1994. He has over 30 years of Asian capital markets
experience. Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director
of Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited, a listed company on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and China Central Properties
Limited, formerly a listed company on the AIM of the London Stock
Exchange which was de-listed on 18th June 2009. Mr. Tsang is a
trustee of the Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research of The
University of Hong Kong, a co-chair of the Nature Conservancy’s
Asia Pacific Council, a councilor of the Copenhagen Climate
Council and a member of the World Presidents’ Organization —
Hong Kong Chapter. Mr. Tsang holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from Bemidji State University of Minnesota, a Master's degree in
Social Work from the University of lowa, and is a Graduate College
Fellow of the University of lowa and SSA Fellow of the University of

Chicago.

EHITEES )
Takeshi Kadota

Takeshi Kadota%t4k ' 635% ' R=ZZEZtF N
AIAZKRRAT - Kadota L A EZBE RIS
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RIRIRA - D=ZRASE®RA Sz RBIEH K
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¥RNE )2 EBHE - Kadota B E TN BT =2
PEBHFZEFRITREH - HE L BaAT
Kadota e £ 7y = Z i =R &4 — R EUM A
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Finance PLC 2 ZEE 424 IR - Kadota B AEER
RIERBRERMGAETEMERETHRBAL
B IR SIS 2 B BRI K GEAD o B BIER R A
B Stanford Graduate School of Business 78
REAES LR N IEERE LTS - Kadota
EERRRBIFHMEEGKE -

BER
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SE—REBA ELERER(EMBRAR
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued) EHITES (&)
Henry Kim Cho Henry Kim Cho
Mr. Henry Kim Cho, aged 45, is a co-founder and managing Henry Kim Cho %t 4 * 45 5% * Ajia Partners Inc.
partner of Ajia Partners Inc.. He focuses primarily on investor/ ZHRAABARERAEA - BEBEF Ajia
partner relations and activities for the real estate and special Partners R B 7 IREE EB ABRREMER

situations groups of the Ajia Partners Group. Mr. Cho was formerly AEFMALFEIREBHER c Chot E B AART
an executive director (starting in August 2005) and the deputy Ziﬂﬁ%%(@:ggﬁi)\ﬁ B)REIEF(E
chairman (starting in September 2006) of the Company and ZEERFNAR) WRZZEZENFLABRE
retired by rotation in July 2008. Prior to co-founding Ajia Partners HiR o Bl Ajia Partners;”%lu Al - Y EE
Group, he was a principal at Bank of America, N.A. Prior to BIRITEE - INBEERRITZA » Chot £ &
joining Bank of America, N.A., Mr. Cho was with HSBC Markets RBBHHSBC Markets (Asia) Limited T{E °
(Asia) Limited in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years of proprietary BHEBB20FEARTIHLER - Chot EEHBRN

investment experience. Mr. Cho is active in admissions activities for Andover RIRHBERABREH - WAMPAKEE
Andover. He is also a member of Brown University Asia Advisory MZEgDHARKE * Philips Academy Asia
Council, Philips Academy Asia Council and the Young Presidents CounciliKERBFREHBEETENEEE - &

Organization — Hong Kong Chapter. He received his Bachelor’s BMARSRREERBEBRARELEMA - R
degree in Economics and International Relations from Brown EY LT MRBRERSERIE TEEESE
University and Master of Business Administration degree from the T84

Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHITES
Philip Ma King Huen BEE
Mr. Philip Ma King Huen, aged 53, joined the Company in March BRERE B3 RZTETF=AMAKR

2000. Mr. Ma is the group managing director of The Sincere L\ﬂ o ,%ﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ”\ﬁﬁiﬁitm N A R
Company, Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of the NAZEEESFHELE - FBEER-NANRE

Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma was the chairman of the Hong Kong Retail ETETTFHEATETSEERHEERE
Management Association from 1996 to 2000 and is very active WHL2EL SR o KB N2 KX McMaster
in community service. He holds a Master degree in Business University B2 E B EBETBA - SRLEAAR
Administration from McMaster University in Canada. Mr. Ma is a RIEZZEENREREEEKE -

member of the audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)
Kenny Tam King Ching

Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching, aged 61, joined the Company in
September 2004. He is a practicing Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is serving as
a member of the Ethics Committee and Practice Review Committee
in the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a past president of The Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors. Mr. Tam serves as an independent non-executive director
of five other companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, namely, CCT Telecom Holdings Limited, Kingmaker
Footwear Holdings Limited, Shougang Concord Grand (Group)
Limited, Starlite Holdings Limited and Van Shung Chong Holdings
Limited. He was also an independent non-executive director of Yun
Sky Chemical (International) Holdings Limited, a listed company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from August 2005 to
September 2008. Mr. Tam is a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company.

Edgar Kwan Chi Ping

Mr. Edgar Kwan Chi Ping, J.P., aged 60, joined the Company in
August 2005. Mr. Kwan, a civil engineer, has over 30 years of local
and international experience in engineering, construction and
project management. He is a deputy managing director of SOCAM
Asset Management (HK) Limited (“SOCAM”). Prior to SOCAM, he
was an executive director and chief operating officer of Paul VY.
Engineering Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He holds both Bachelor and Master degrees
in Civil Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and a Master
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. His major public services include a member of Fight
Crime Committee, a member of Appeal Board on Public Meetings
and Processions, an adjudicator of the Registration of Persons
Tribunal, Vice President of the Hong Kong Construction Association,
a member of the Construction Industry Council, a director of Real
Estate Developers’ Association, and a member of Appeal Tribunal
(Building) of the Planning and Lands Bureau. Mr. Kwan is a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company.

BYFHITES#H)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHTESH)

(continued)

Yu Wang Tak REE

Mr. Yu Wang Tak, aged 54, joined the Company in November 2007. REBEE AR RZZEZTLF+—AMNA
Mr. Yu is the chairman of AsiaSoft Company Limited (“AsiaSoft”). AR » ATy AsiaSoft Company Limited
Prior to AsiaSoft, Mr. Yu worked for Sun Microsystems, Inc. (“Sun”) ([AsiaSoft]) 2 EfE ° AIA AsiaSoft AR + R5E
for 22 years, with the last executive position as the president of Sun A7 Sun Microsystems, Inc. ([Sun]) T{E#E 22

for Greater China. Mr. Yu had also worked in various leadership F BEBEEFZTBBBEARNFEREBE - Rt
positions of Sun, including the head of finance of Worldwide Field HETRERSUnEIEE TEEE 2B - 8IERK
Operations. Prior to joining Sun in 1985, Mr. Yu held a variety HIBHRE - R—ANARFIMASuUn AR - RELE

of management positions for various companies, such as Apple BREEE  MEREMERERTEQR - B
Computer and Ford Motor Company. For six years from 2000, Mr. ATRZERERN BT TFRIFR
Yu served as the board of directors of the Hong Kong Applied REERBAERBMEMARERAGZESS
Science & Technology Research Institute Company Limited. He was KE - BMEESUnGAHBERSESMAIS

both the founder and driver of Sun’s Sunshine Education Charitable ARBEE - REAED BN ZEED -
Fund. He was a certified internal auditor and received his Bachelor MABRRRORERIEEL R TIEHEEELS

of Science and Master of Business Administration degrees from i e REERARFEREZES  FWEES K
University of California, Berkeley. Mr. Yu is a member of the audit REEBGKE -

committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEBAE

Grace Luk Pui Yin, Chief Financial Officer AR BISAR

Ms. Grace Luk Pui Yin, aged 45, joined the Company in August BEMALZ LT 45 RZZEZTRFNAMNA
2005. Ms. Luk was the director and financial controller of Kleinwort ANRATE - FELZ LI Kleinwort Benson China
Benson China Management Limited, the investment manager of Management LimitedE % ¥& 8 75 8 85+ #%
the London-listed China Investment & Development Fund. This 2 A B kW E £ China Investment &
Fund invested in 12 joint ventures with substantial manufacturing Development Fund Z#H&4IR - ZHSHER
operations in China and completed divestment of its portfolio 12EAIEZTEAFRBEETREER 2 EERE I
before 2003. She was also vice president of Dresdner Kleinwort RZTEE=FH AR IHEREAS - FHAEE
Capital, the private equity arm of Dresdner Bank. She has over Dresdner Bank [l 2 #L 5% & & Dresdner
10 years of private equity experience in the Greater China region. Kleinwort Capital #EF BB - B KPEH
Prior to Kleinwort Benson, Ms. Luk was department head of the RILBHREFTHABBI10F 2&5% - EMNA
category financial management department at Colgate-Palmolive Kleinwort Benson Z A * 1 & HEE B = 5&21R

(H.K.) Limited and was an auditor at Arthur Andersen & Co in Hong BERARZEMVBERTEERBEARESRS
Kong. She received her Bachelor degree in Business Administration NAVZEED - BEBTBERIXASZERIEHEEE

from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is a Fellow of the B2 BRAXBMBFIAREAMNAGERE
UK Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an Associate B AEFHEESHAERBEEGHIAS

i3
0

\

o

of both the UK Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders, and follows the
principles set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Code throughout the year ended 31st March 2010.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in rules 5.48 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors of the Company, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the year ended 31st
March 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roles and responsibilities

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board is accountable to shareholders for the strategic
development of the Group with the goal of maximising long-term

shareholder value, while balancing broader stakeholder interests.

The Board formulates overall Company strategy. Given the diversity
and volume of the Company’s business, responsibility for execution

and daily operations is delegated to management.

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three sub-committees: audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. All of these committees have
terms of reference which accord with the principles set out in the
Code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BEEgs)

Composition ARk

The Board currently comprises eleven Directors: three Executive EZeRRE T —R2EFFEX  Z2HTEF
Directors, four Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non- WEIERTEERNBBLIERTESR(RIBA
executive Directors that are more than one-third of the Board. BER=-O2—AH) BEEZZREEFBEHRN
Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of FE1LEEZERNEEETRaMEEAEENR -
“Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 20. g o

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of BEERAFEREZTAAG  WRBERKEZ
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and BAARBERTRHE 2REFHEALQRE
professional ethics and integrity. All the Directors give sufficient BENHMERELRET EFZSHEE - ITEF
time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The Board believes BIFRITEEZHHIBEAIE  BRUABRERER
that the ratio of Executive to Non-executive Directors is reasonable RAR BB RREERERE -

and adequate to provide checks and balances that safeguard the

interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The Executive Directors are responsible for the day-to-day WIESEELSEEBLE 2 HEEE - 25
management of the Group’s operations. These Directors conduct BEFHARNRRENBRARZEREEABTH
regular meetings with the senior management of the Company ETEE 2 LYeiineERERMBRR -

and its subsidiaries, at which operational issue and financial

performance are evaluated.

The Non-executive Directors provide the Company with a wide ERTESTAALRIRHESEZENFZLER -
range of expertise and experience. They bring independent FEERBTESTEREE TR LIFR2ER

judgement on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance, HABASEER K1 - RBEEERIEF M
risk and management process through their contribution at Board REVEH B L I B -

and committee meetings.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, newly appointed RIBARARR 2 ARIMA - FEEEF2EHBE
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting TERRAE /I WEEERZAG LEEE

and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, - BRES(BEARETHIES)ERFES
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to BROEVPB=ZF—R-

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Independence B

The Company has four Independent Non-executive Directors, at ARBBEMNEEIFNTES 20— ZEERF
least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, BEREREMBAZEEMBEREZENG -
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Each Independent Non- BN FENITESHA AR RRIEREFEE
executive Director gives the Company an annual confirmation of his UM BFERE  MARRRAZSEFRE
independence, and the Company considers these directors to be BIZEWR TR BIES.00KFTH 2 FESI BB L
independent under the guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM AL e

Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BEEg4)

Board Meetings EEEeR

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic EEGKERIIEREMEFBALIAGER
means of communication at least four times every year to determine TELURAEHE®  UETEBEBXREAMKE
overall strategic direction and objectives and approve quarterly, 2 WwHEEE  PHREFEE  MBEER
interim and annual results, budgets and other significant matters. HMERFE 2REFEEZ V148 2EH
At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meetings are given to all ExeeRBy  REHELATHSHERH
Directors, who are all given an opportunity to attend and include BEANZEFE REAGEHN  HUMFEZLEFE
matters in the agenda for discussion. Apart from formal meetings, HEZEBEEUEMAREARNGESESNEE

matters requiring board approval are arranged by means of Btz - 2R ERABSTRRESREBENA
circulation of written resolutions. Senior management from time SEEHREBER2ER - RAINEGIELF
to time provides to the Directors information on activities and Bre@FCH - TRTFERE LA REELHR
development of the business of the Group. The company secretary RO o

takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of

matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance BRREREESR
Six full Board meetings were held during the year with an average FR - HBITRAREBESTERE  THUHEX
attendance rate of 85%. The attendance of each Director at Board "85% EEFLFEESTE SR LB AT ML
meetings is set out below: ™

Number of Meetings
Board Members Attended/Held
EEENE FIHE " BITZ28B R
Executive Directors HITES
Goran Sture Malm (Chairman) Goran Sture Malm (£/%) 6/6
Savio Chow Sing Nam (Deputy Chairman) A (5% E) 5/6
John Saliling (Chief Executive Officer) John Saliling (77 48%;) 6/6
Non-executive Director FHITES
Andrew Yao Cho Fai o izl 5/6
Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadota 6/6
Moses Tsang Kwok Tai* DR~ 3/4
Henry Kim Cho* Henry Kim Cho* 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Philip Ma King Huen H2=E 4/6
Kenny Tam King Ching BRI 5/6
Edgar Kwan Chi Ping Ep=as 4/6
Yu Wang Tak BN 6/6

* Appointed on 2nd November 2009 R—ZFZE/F+—H - HEZ(T
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITHEAR

The Chairman and the Deputy Chairman of the Board are Mr. EEFFEREIEF DA Goran Sture Malm
Goran Sture Malm and Mr. Savio Chow Sing Nam respectively. Mr. SeE R AR ST E 0 M John Saliling Jc £ BIIET
John Saliling serves as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. RARZATHRBH - ERRITRBH 2 ACEL

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are BEERBNEESY  c EFEREEEARG AR
distinct and segregated with a clear division of responsibility. The BEEG 2 BRCENE - MITHAEE BRI T R
Chairman plays a leading role and is responsible for effective HEREEE  ERBRERWITESTESALE
running of the Board while the Chief Executive Officer is delegated BT HR - USRS E .

with the authority and responsibility of overall management,

business development and implementation of the Group’s strategy

determined by the Board in achieving its overall commercial

objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FEITES

The term of office of each of the Non-executive Directors is for a FEIFPTEEZAHAP=F  BEM—FA
period of three years unless terminated by either party with one — @A SEBALKUEABRIN - oD - HEFRE
month’s written notice, and they are subject to retirement by rotation RRARZ ARMARERNRRBFRE LRFES
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with RN ERELT -

the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEES
During the year, the nomination committee comprises three FN - REZESH=-BKEEK - REHARE
members, a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive VIHNTES  FRASREXE -BEERZES

Directors, and is chaired by Mr. Philip Ma King Huen. The terms CHEGEETAMMEESERF - RBREBE
of reference of the nomination committee are aligned with the BEeARAETES M ESTERLKERE
provisions set out in the Code. The nomination committee is EEETANEFEARNESSREES  BHEER

responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the D2ESREENBRITELRS - BEARSE - H
appointment of directors, evaluation of board composition and F - EATERKEMRARRSE TIESIME
the management of board succession with reference to certain He TR ZEERINEFTZHEK  TFE
guidelines including appropriate professional knowledge and FEVTRNESSRBEEZ BHE-_T—ZTF=A
industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, “t+—HIEFE BOTMRIEEEESERE -
and time commitments of members. During the year, the committee ERELFERBREMAT -

has reviewed the board composition, the appointment of directors
and made recommendation to the Board. Two meetings were
held during the year ended 31st March 2010. Attendance of the
members is set out below:

Number of Meetings

Nomination Committee Members Attended/Held
REZEERE g BIT2ERRE
Philip Ma King Huen (Committee Chairman) SEE(ZEEE) 2/2
Kenny Tam King Ching EREIE 2/2

Goran Sture Malm Goran Sture Malm 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued) BEZZEES (&)
On 10th June 2010, Mr. Edgar Kwan Chi Ping and Mr. Yu Wang Tak, R-Z—ZTEXA+H  BUIFRNTESEELT
Independent Non-executive Directors, were appointed as additional EENRRELEEZTAREEEENE -

members of the nomination committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES

The remuneration committee comprises five members, a majority FEE SR ABKEANK - KE D BB IER
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, and is chaired TEE EFEABEATEE - THEES 2Bk
by Mr. Edgar Kwan Chi Ping. The terms of reference of the FE TR PTEREAET — 2 - FINEE &R
remuneration committee are aligned with the provisions set out in BEETHATEZRSMEEABZHFMEFE I
the Code. The remuneration committee has delegated responsibility MIBTES FHMESSRHER - £
to determine the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors ZEERIEZZHFMURES 2 FRERE

and senior management and make recommendation to the Board FeRMHER HE-T-TF-A=+—HL
of the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors. During the ¢f§ CROTT-RFMEESEE c SKEHR
year, the committee has reviewed the remuneration of the Directors I

and made recommendation to the Board on the structure of the
remuneration of the Directors. A meeting was held for the year
ended 31st March 2010. Attendance of the members is set out

below:

Number of Meetings
Remuneration Committee Members Attended/Held
FHEESNKE FE " BITZERRE
Edgar Kwan Chi Ping (Committee Chairman) eV (ZE85+E) 1/1
Kenny Tam King Ching EERIE 1/1
Savio Chow Sing Nam 5k 1/1
Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadota 11
Yu Wang Tak RIAE 1/1
During the year ended 31st March 2010, total Directors’ HE_Z-ZF=-A=+—-RHIFE EF
remuneration amounted to approximately HK$6,645,000 (2009: e H 7,5_"; #76,645,0008 T(Z T T N F -
HK$6,241,000). 6,241,000/ 7T) °

Remuneration of the Executive Directors is prudently designed WITEE 2 HMgREMHIET - ARSI - BE R

to attract, motivate and retain them to formulate strategies and to RBREEANEEF I REREEAEE 2L
oversee operational matters of the Group and to reward them for E=H - UTHHESARRREAEE - ESHUET
enhancing value to the shareholders. Details of the remuneration BERBEM 2 B IS MK S -

of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the accompanying financial
statements.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRE

26 NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED RBVANINIS/ZNSSI=ZI0Izh) 2009/10

AUDIT COMMITTEE ERZEE®

The Company has established an audit committee with written ARNFUEBKN I BZEES - WEEEE]ABE
terms of reference that set out the authorities and duties of the HE HEESERWCZEERNLBE - £
committee adopted by the Board. The committee comprises four BehmUMBYIEFRITERMANK TEAERLE

Independent Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Kenny S HABBEE CEEER MY KL -
Tam King Ching who has appropriate professional qualifications

and experience in financial matters.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are aligned with the BERZE e 2 W E E TR P E R SRR —
provisions set out in the Code. The committee’s principal duties B ZEGrXERBEABRAER 25T K
are to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting BERERBHRBE - BERANEEEESIE R
and financial controls of the Group, oversee the performance of HEBREF RS BB REREETERF
internal control systems and financial reporting process, monitor BIETE R ETRE A R ERINEZ S 2 B
the integrity of the financial statements and compliance with LB -

statutory and listing requirements and to oversee independence

and qualifications of the external auditors.

The audit committee meets the external auditors at least four times EREZEEEFELEIINEZHAEEAR - A
a year to discuss any area of concern during the audits or reviews. SREZAENREAAET IR EE - BRE
The audit committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual BERNEREE  PHIRFERETESEZH -
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of HEHZSREETEN - IMNEREM 2 SRR
the external auditors, executive Directors and senior management X WTESEhaREBRBAEYERLEAY
are invited to attend the meetings, if required. (INFEE) -

During the year, the audit committee has approved the nature and FRN BRZEQOHEEITEZZEERE
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim CWEHASEZFE  PHRFEVBR

and annual financial statements of the Group, and was content % B EMASEZSHBRRENDFERE
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group are in R 2 RESR - FRBITTUAEZEZESY
accordance with the current best practices in Hong Kong. Four & HEEBBERET

meetings were held during the year and the attendance at meetings

is set out below:

Number of Meetings

Audit Committee Members Attended/Held
ERZEEENE e BIT2EBRE
Kenny Tam King Ching (Committee Chairman) BRI ZE8F/E) 4/4
Philip Ma King Huen BHRE 4/4

eyl

75T 4/4
Yu Wang Tak REE 4/4

Edgar Kwan Chi Ping
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AUDITORS’ REMUNRATION % B Bl 5 B

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditors on an AR BFEIRFTINEZEE 2 BE - BiFR
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of ECHENRIEZEER - T8 MZESLIEZ
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s HEEEYEMNAATINEZER 2 ER DR A
external auditors for the audit amounted to approximately #92,624,00078 7L(= T = L F : 3,845,000/8
HK$2,624,000 (2009: 3,845,000) and fee for non-audit related 7T ) K #9650,0007& ;T (Z B Z S5 : 1,154,000
activities amounted to approximately HK$650,000 (2009: BIT) °

HK$1,154,000).

INTERNAL CONTROLS R B B4

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective EZQEERFRITRBBAMEZERL - MR
internal control system to safeguard the Company’s assets and PEARAREERRRF S o WEPEEIE RS R
shareholders’ interest. The internal control system is designed to Do WIEHEBREER SRR Bz BB MR o b R Ak
reduce, but not eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems. The BHAIE  BIFREHEERLER s BL 2
system helps to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance RFE AR ERAEE 2 EHBIEZ -
against material misstatement or loss. The system aims to support

the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The system comprises a well-defined organisational structure L RGBRIET —ERARNEZAELM  HREEK
with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority to ensure BB SME RGUBREREENBZE RN

effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial X BBERENAENE  UHFEEE AN RIE
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The X EEQEBREZREZEEL  POBEEBAE R
Board conducts regularly reviews of the effectiveness of the internal BREAZ A R INEAZ SR AT VE 2 45T+ FE B AT AR
control system of the Group through reviews performed by audit EE NI EERG 2 Wz o

committee, executive management, internal audit department and

external auditors.

During the year, the internal audit department conducted a review FN - APBEZERTARR REZENB AR
of the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures CANMETERG s ERMEREF S RABEXR
of the Company and its operating subsidiaries covering all EYOH BEVE 28 AHEMARER -
material controls, including financial, operational, compliance WA EE @ R BERBETEZER
and risk management, and assessed the adequacy of resources, BETERENERELRREN  ULEBIIRERTE
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and BERERR -BERZESERADANEAIEZZ
financial reporting function, their training programmes and budget. FBIZEE - BYRAIER -

The audit committee was well informed of the audit findings,

emerging trends and successful practices in internal auditing.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued) RNEBEEEE (7)

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the effectiveness of FRN - BZZECERBUTEFBRNANEER
the system of the internal control through the following processes BREEM  UREHEAMEZEZSHRESHRATER
and subsequently reported the review results to the Board:

. discussions with the executive management on areas of risk . HRH 1T E IR A B T am P el nll i /2 e 46 [
identified

o review of risks reported by the internal audit department . R N EREAZ AR S R B

. review of the external audit plans . RTINS AZ BLRD BV B AZ AT &

o review of issues reported by external auditors e RFIINEZHAIRENEIR

o review of the reports from the internal audit department, the . BANBEZBLRATERBABZMEN
executive management to ensure appropriate controls are MREZIESE - WAHEFEMA RS TE (40
in place and any deficiencies or irregularities, if any, are BIZE
rectified

Based on the result of the review for the year ended 31st March BREEE-_E—TF=A=1+—HIFE 2R

2010, the Board considered that the internal control system and BE  BEFERAREERFANNIEERLS
procedures of the Group, including the adequacy of resources, FEF(BREesr kU BERBE A mcER
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and BTIERIEHRERRH  ARAEEIRER
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and BERTAR)REBN  WHETAKGRZE
budget, are adequate and effective and have complied with the ko

provisions of the Code during the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ REEBRRKRRER

RIGHTS

The Company proactively promotes investor relations. AAREBESICEEBREFR  —EEEEHRER
Communication with shareholders is always given high priority. R2BB - Tl PHRSREEREREARE
Extensive information about the Group’s activities is provided in the AR AEEER 2 AR - AR R4 FE R R R
annual report, interim report and quarterly report. The Company’s REERFTER - ARFBOBEEAEEEKER
website provides regularly updated information to shareholders. ZEH - MEERHEERREIRESE -

Enquiries on matters relating to the business of the Group are
welcomed, and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Company encourages all shareholders to attend the annual AARBMMERRLFERRBFREG - THA
general meetings to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and SECENMERBRAE BRRAFAGREKS
goals. It provides an opportunity for direct communications between REZTCHRFTERER - REEBETE#EA
the Board and its shareholders. Shareholders have statutory rights FBRAARRKRESBEEAZRKBFARERRIK
to call for special general meetings by serving appropriate written g REEFEGMENRED N ETRAN
requests to the Company. The chairman of the meeting explains the B AREEREEMRRE - REERETE
detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answers any AR B e B A2 P A o

questions from shareholders. The poll results are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS (continued)

The respective chairman of the Board and the audit committee
and external auditors attended the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 24th July 2009 to answer questions from
shareholders. The financial advisers were available to answer
questions at the special general meeting of the Company held on
27th April 2009

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are ultimately responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which gives a true
and fair view. In preparing the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies and standard are selected and applied
consistently.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 42 and 43 of this

annual report.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerate effort to
strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate governance

of the Group.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) have the pleasure of sFxe([E5g ) MAREHE T ZTF=
presenting their annual report together with the audited A=+— EIJJ:EF’:H:EE%BN AR AT ([ARD
financial statements of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited Al EMBEAR REREH EE(AEI A%

(the “Company”), its subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities J)Ziﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ °
(together the “Group”) for the year ended 31st March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEEK

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries RAB ) — R EZBRAR - KB AR EEH
principally are engaged in (i) trading of surface mount technology %(')EEEHE#&?TT(fSMTJ)/@E#“{% s K
(“SMT") assembly equipment, machinery and spare parts and EHHESUANBHRSMTEERE BB Z L
provision of related installation, training, repair and maintenance ;% B EERRERE &(II)EAE%&@
services for SMT assembly equipment; and (ii) developing and PIEsfR M AS &Z & T (Burger King) BB - £
operating Burger King restaurants in Hong Kong and Macau. lts EZHEENTERENAMMIREE -

jointly-controlled entities are principally engaged in (i) processing SHIE R L SEE - 7}<§§ﬂﬂ§&§%%ﬁ&$ﬁ%%&ﬁ
and sale of fishmeal, refining and sale of fish oil, manufacturing and o EKEREEBZRBEMEE S 0 & (i)®EM
sale of aquatic feed products and trading of other raw materials THE PRI 4 - PETEIPE Mo 1 4

relating to aquatic feeds; and (ii) manufacturing and sale of

polyester fiber, PET resin and spandex.

SEGMENT INFORMATION SEER

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and segment results by AEEHE-_T—ZSF=-_A=+—HIEFEZIX
business segment and geographical segment for the year ended E3/.55) iﬁ&f@lﬁ DR BEENDEEEDNE
31st March 2010 is set out in note 5 to the accompanying financial ABEM 2 BA RS SRR 5ES -

statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE BERE

On 28th February 2010, a total of 13,500,968,771 new ordinary RZZE—ZFF-_A=-+N\H BREHEBERED
shares of the Company were issued upon conversion in full of the EE%TWHXE%&E%H % RNRARIEITT
convertible bonds and the preference shares in accordance with 42%13,500,968, 771 L AR - N =T —F

the terms thereof. As at 31st March 2010, the Company has in E:ﬂ =t—H ARQRRZEBEITRAAZEE
issue a total of 13,596,763,487 ordinary shares, with a par value of 13,596,763,487 | E B - &R EE0.018
HK$0.01 each. The Company has no outstanding convertible bonds L R-ZE—FTF=A=+—H ARaLAE
and preference shares in issue as at 31st March 2010. A KRB O AR ES B -

RESULTS ES

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st March 2010 REFBHE T ZTFE=-"A=1+—HIFE ¥
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income BEFNAFRFASBZHEEZEBERNA ©
on page 45 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the EEgEa TRBEEE_T—TF=A=1+—H
year ended 31st March 2010. P 3=
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 27 to the accompanying financial
statements. As at 31st March 2010, the Company did not have any
distributable reserves (2009: Nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5 of
this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and jointly-controlled
entities are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the accompanying financial
statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 13 and 14 to the accompanying financial statements,
respectively.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31st March 2010 are set out in
note 28 to the accompanying financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year.

BEEBERE

ARz AR BREEN L BEHFELE
BRIGSUREARR B AR L OIRRA R R E SR
% o

i

AEBERARBANAFREZHEEZSHBERER
BEfff I mERMT27 - RZF—TF=A
=t—HB AREAHSEEATHIRHEE(ZE
TheE  |) -

RFEMBHRE

AEENBERAVBRERE 2 EEUAREERE
BERERRAFREIARESA -

MEARRLAREGER

AAREHBARMERIEH ERZFHBDRIE
HRBEMW 2 TSR RMIE17 & 18

ME - BMERRERREWE

RAFEEAAEENE - BELRE  URRE
Wz BB 5 B HARN 2 B S RRM 13
R4 -

RITIEE

R-T—TE=ZF=+—HZRTEEHFHNE
B2 B Fs R M 5E 28 ©

7
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations of approximately
HK$15,600 (2009: HK$24,000).

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME

Details of the pension schemes are set out in note 8 to the

accompanying financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year are:
Executive Directors

Goran Sture Malm (Chairman)
Savio Chow Sing Nam (Deputy Chairman)
John Saliling (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Andrew Yao Cho Fai

Takeshi Kadota

Moses Tsang Kwok Tai (appointed on 2nd November 2009)
Henry Kim Cho (appointed on 2nd November 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Philip Ma King Huen
Kenny Tam King Ching
Edgar Kwan Chi Ping
Yu Wang Tak

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Messrs. Moses Tsang Kwok Tai and Henry Kim Cho, being
appointed on 2nd Novemeber 2009, shall hold office until the

forthcoming general meeting and be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs.
Savio Chow Sing Nam, Takeshi Kadota, Edgar Kwan Chi Ping and
Yu Wang Tak shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming

annual general meeting and be eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in

accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set

out on pages 15 to 20 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

The terms of office of each of the Directors of the Company is for
a period of three years. All of them are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws. Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set

out in note 8 to the accompanying financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2010, the Directors and chief executive of
the Company and their respective associates had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to the securities transactions by Directors:

EE@)

BUBIIFNTETCRBAER ETHRAE
5,091k 2 MERREREN & WM 2 BEHE
RBE - ARARBABBIUIERTERTENTEH
REIZER ETRBIES.09M6 2 B IEES - I
RIBZIESIBBELAL -

EENREREBAEZEE

EENEREBABZBRIENAFHREISE
ZEHE20H -

EEHRBEH

BREERFRAFAS LERETCESTEAR
BB AR A A AEER —F AR H
BXNBECEERBERIN ZREEL -

ARBBEZZERRR=F - REARRZA
AR 2REEANBRBFASRFESEYL
EREE - EEZ S HNBEN 2 IR
78

EERESTRAEBRERS - HEBAKRSG
REERZEZRAR

RIB-ZTF=A=+—H EFRERAKS
TTRABARBEEBZHBALTRARAKE
HEEE(ERRESFLRPERITESLRE
GBI DEXVER) 2 Bcdn - MBREAR 17 R (B #E 38 o
B TIES AREE 77 K B RIS 352 5 T A
FEZERMAIRIEEIER LT RRIF5.46
GEFCTHREREFLETEFRRSGZRER
HMEARRE Rz R XA

33




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

34 NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED RBVANINIS/ZNSSI=ZI0Izh) 2009/10

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

EEREEITRAEBRKRG - HBERSD
REERZEZERAEH)

SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the REQXTRGREERG ZHFR
Company
Number of Approximate
ordinary % of
Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholdings  Notes
BEENA a4 FREBEREE BFRBQEIL Wi
Mr. Moses Tsang Kwok Tai Beneficial owner/Interest of controlled 124,422,554 0.92% 1
(“Mr. Tsang”) corporation/Interest of a discretionary trust
BRIZEL ([BEE]) ERBEA/ ZERAR 2R 2 RETE R
Mr. Henry Kim Cho (“Mr. Cho”) Beneficial owner 124,010,218 0.91%
Henry Kim Cho%t4 ([Cho%kt4 ) BEnBEAA
Mr. Géran Sture Malm (Mr. Malm) Interest of controlled corporation 94,127,499 0.69% 2
Goran Sture Malm#4 ([Malm#E4E | ) FHEHI AR 2%
Mr. Savio Chow Sing Nam (Mr. Chow)  Beneficial owner 24,904,215 0.18%
BEEEE (TA%E]) EREAA
Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai (“Mr. Yao”) Interest of controlled corporation 4,255,789 0.03% 3

goaEsE sk (k%% ]) SEHINE s
Notes:

1.

Mr. Tsang was beneficially interested in 57,024,265 shares and
2,565,594 shares through his controlling company Oboe Development
Trading Limited. He was also deemed to be interested in 64,832,695
shares by virtue of his being a founder of a discretionary trust,
the trustee of which was HSBC International Trustee Limited. Mr.
Tsang was therefore deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in an
aggregate of 124,422,554 shares of the Company.

Mr. Malm was beneficially interested in these shares through his
controlling company Windswept Inc.

Mr. Yao was deemed to be interested in 1,598,113 shares of the
Company through his controlling company Huge Top Industrial
Ltd. and 1,633,676 shares of the Company through his controlling
company TN Development Limited. Mr. Yao was beneficially interested
in 1,024,000 shares of the Company through his wholly-owned
company Right Action Offshore Inc.. Mr. Yao was therefore deemed,
under the SFO, to be interested in an aggregate of 4,255,789 shares
of the Company.

Bt

1. B AEmITH 57,024,265 RIRN LB BRELEHE
B2 Oboe Development Trading Limited Bz&
AR RA 2,565,594 810 - AR BRERDE
EE(ZEHEFR 2 ABHSBC International
Trustee LimitedZ KX A) MEBER R AH#EAE
64,832,695 IRIBBAIRR (D45 © EL - RIFFE S R H
EIEG] - BREWRBES S £124,422,554 kA
AR Z R ©

2. Malm % 4 i i@ E 12§ 2 2 7] Windswept Inc. Bas
HEZSEERY -

3. oS BB EE$],2 2 Al Huge Top Industrial Ltd.
J TN Development Limited #4% & #4A 1,598,113
121,633,676 RARAIRGD - thc B BEEEH
A AF]Right Action Offshore Inc. B A A2 A
1,024,000 B it o It - RIRE 5 R EE 5P -
ok ok AR AR A 4,255,789 R A A Rl Z IR 1D
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2010, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the securities of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO, or (ii) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or (iii) pursuant to the rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
directors of listed companies to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Save for the above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age
had any interests in, or had been granted or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for any securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations during the year.

INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
PERSONS

As at 31st March 2010, so far as is known to the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests were
disclosed above) had interests or short positions in the shares and/
or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Substantial shareholders of the Company

EEREETRAEBRKRG - HEARD
REERZEZRREH)

B EXEEEN RS F=A=+—
B BECRNESIAQRTZSTHRABRFEE
ZEAZHBBAIRARABSNEE EE(ERR
BHERIBEKRPIEXVE) 2 BHFT R TR
FARE  BIE()RIBEESRBEGKAIEXVEE
TRESHMPAMG ARG B ZT(BEERE
BHERPEROZZERTERRIRIERE 2
WSS RORA) 5 B (i) MBI A FEFH R EEHSE
352§ FTit z B A+ 8k (i) IRIFAIER LT
RAIEE 4616 EES67TKEM LEMARIESE
THBFRH 2 REBMERNA R R A2 A
EEIKA -

B EXFEI REABBESETHARA RS
TBRABREFZRBHIRMISHR L FTLESR
ERAR R RE A IEBEEE 7 2 e - R
R TERBBER A D B S E AR EEE 5
ZAEAHER

Htt AT 2 EEH XA

RZE—ZF=ZA=+—H REFRAQRK®
RITBABRA  TIAT(BER EXHEERER
CEERARARRITERABRIN REAR AR
B/ REERMT - BEENAREE SR
EIEHIZE 336 15 F AT E 2 B MRz as sk

B

REQRROREBRD ZHFA

ARATERR

Number of Approximate
ordinary % of

Name Capacity shares held shareholdings  Note
% 287) FREERHE BR2EBMEIL Wi
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Interest of controlled corporation 2,477,650,064 18.22% 1
b VNI 3
Military Superannuation and Benefits ~ Trustee 2,041,884,817 15.02% 2
Board of Trustees No 1 XEEA
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INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER Hih ALt zEERAXE (&)
PERSONS (continued)

Other Shareholders of the Company EMALGRE
Number of Approximate
ordinary % of
Name Capacity shares held shareholdings Note
L g% FFEBEREE BFREBQEIL Wi
Fortis Investment NL Holding N.V. Beneficial owner 1,238,825,032 9.11% 3

(now known as 3184 BNP Paribas  E#HHEAA
Investment Partners NL Holding NV)

BNP Paribas S.A. Beneficial owner 1,238,825,032 9.11% 3
BEREAA

C.L Davids Fond og Samling Beneficial owner 1,061,780,105 7.81%
BEnEAA

Woori Bank Beneficial owner 792,848,020 5.83% 4

RAIERTT EREBA

Woori Finance Holdings Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation 792,848,020 5.83% 4

et VNI 5

United Overseas Bank Limited Beneficial owner 743,295,019 5.47%
RERTHRAF EnEAA
Notes: et -
1. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. was deemed to be interested in these 1. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. i i@ & R 5 [ &
shares through its indirect subsidiary, Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance. ‘A7 Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance F B #ZF &
,f/\ °
2. These shares were held by Military Superannuation and Benefits 2. ZERD RBEMNE K S Z T AMiltary
Board of Trustees No 1 as a trustee for an Australian pension scheme. Superannuation and Benefits Board of Trustees
No 1F#575 °
3. BNP Paribas S.A. was deemed to be interested in these shares 3. BNP Paribas S.A.3% i H fd # [ff & 2 51BNP
through its indirect subsidiary, BNP Paribas Investment Partners NL Paribas Investment Partners NL Holding NV #78
Holding NV. ZERD -
4. Woori Finance Holdings Co., Ltd. was deemed to be interested in 4. Woori Finance Holdings Co., Ltd. #E@EEH 2 A
these shares through its controlling company, Woori Bank. & Woori Bank 158 % 515 ©

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive M EXFrEEBEEN RZE—ZFF=A=1+—
of the Company were not aware of any person (other than the B MEEFRAARIESTBRABRA - BEMT
Directors or chief executive of the Company the interests of which MAAT(EREXWEZEEXARNAHEITH
were disclosed above) who has an interest or short position in the AEBINIARRABEB ST EEBIARIEZES
securities of the Company that were required to be entered in the REEIEGIE 336 16T AFE 2 B MRz iz
register of the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at B9/ $-)
31st March 2010.

o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10th June 2002, the shareholders approved the adoption of a
share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”). Under the terms of the
2002 Scheme, the Board may at its discretion offer share options
to any employee, agent, consultant or representative, including
any executive or non-executive Director, of any member of the
Group or any other person who satisfies the selection criteria as
set out in the 2002 Scheme. The principal purpose of the 2002
Scheme is to provide incentives to participants to contribute to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and/or to retain high
calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to the Group. The 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption date. As at 31st
March 2010, no share options have been granted by the Company
pursuant to the 2002 Scheme.

On 31st October 2006, the Company approved a share option
scheme (the “Best Creation Scheme”) adopted by Best Creation
Investments Limited (“Best Creation”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, allowing its board of directors to grant options to
subscribe for shares in Best Creation to the selected participants
under such scheme as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Best Creation group. The Best Creation Scheme has a life of ten
years commencing on the adoption date of 31st October 2006. As
at 31st March 2010, no share options have been granted pursuant

to the Best Creation Scheme.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions undertaken in normal course
of business are provided in note 39 to the accompanying financial
statements. Certain related party transactions also constituted as
connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules. The following
connected transactions (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules)
of the Group have been entered into and/or ongoing during the
year ended 31st March 2010 for which relevant announcements, if
necessary, had been made by the Company pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules.

BRETE

RZZBTZFA+HA  AREREBBFEAN—
BB AT 21 ([ 2002 F 512 ) - BIE 2002 F &5
ZliE - EEFARMERNAEBEAKERRZ
FERES - KRB - BRSKRER(BIEEAAITR
IEHNITE B ) ST T A 2002 F 51 2 fr sk i i
EZEMATRTHERE - 2002F:T8 X EF
ERB2AEHAEEELERME XEAEE
BESBIE R KB EREE RN AL
FﬁZAﬂﬁﬁomwi%ﬂmﬁ%E%t%
BRTF -RZE—TF=A=+—8 &R
AR AR AR 2002 £ 51 813 H A (aT B Ak e -

RZZEZTRFTA=+—B  ARAEHEES
& /B2 &) Best Creation Investments Limited
([Best Creation]) £ 4 2 i A% # 51 £I([Best
Creationzt&l]) - BEZE S RIBZTE W
EPKE 2 B E R T ] R 5E Best Creation &1 &Y
B - 1ERE S % Best Creation B FT{ER
B2 BB ek 488 - Best Creationst E|HEMA A
H_TTAFTA=-T—HEHN AH+F-
R-ZZE—ZF=ZA=+—H BMEREBest
Creation 5t &5 i (£ (I HE AR HE ©

ki
T

R5

REBERHBRETETIEHBBAL ZEARS
CRBERT 2 B RS KT EE 39 « IRIFAIZER £
A BETHREBALTZIZTEXBERS
AEERBE-_T—ZF=A=1+—HLLFEFT
SR/ RFEERCAER D (ERRLAIERL
MRADMT - MARBDRIBAIZER ETARR
BREMREMERXH 2 RH(NFR)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) AERS(

Services Agreement PR 15

The Company entered into a supplemental agreement dated 2nd $’Aﬁ£ﬁiNorth Asia Strategic Advisors ([NASA )
March 2009 (the “Supplemental Services Agreement”), which is RZZFZNF=ZAZHI @R BE( AR
supplemental to the services agreement dated 26th September #D) LERERZZEERFNAZFRNAEY
2005 (as amended and restated on 30th December 2005, ZREHE(R -_ZEERAF+ A=+ HKET

together with the Supplemental Services Agreement, the “Services RER  [RBEHE] - DEahas 8BRS H
Agreement”) with North Asia Strategic Advisors (“NASA”) pursuant #1) o B NASAZERARRE SR

to which NASA shall provide services to the Company covering NEEETRARANRRERE  BREEE  MHK
fund raising, market and industry research, investor sourcing, ITEEMNIT - BMIREE - BERE - BEHWT -
investment sourcing, investment analysis and due diligence, and EREERVBEENR  BINFHE_ZETNFH

financial advisory under the overall control and supervision of A—RB=F mMABFHSEEEZ RSB
the Board of the Company for a further three years commencing HBIEEAGRRIE AL - RBRS B

on 1st April 2009 and shall continue until the termination of the BIENASARBZ RBRAEINEBR - HES
Services Agreement in accordance with its term. Pursuant to the —Z2F 2 ——FRZE—ZZF=ZR=+—
Services Agreement, the Company shall pay fees to NASA for HIE=EMBRFESFEN TNASAZER (R
the services rendered by it. The annual cap amounts of the fees HEEERKE  BRENEEE ) 2EBEFLRES
payable to NASA (including annual service fee, incentive fee and E 9 5l 7] £ 75,000,000 7 7T+ 75,000,000 % 7T
placing fee) are set at HK$75 million, HK$75 million and HK$150 % 150,000,000 7T ° fRIGIHEFEHNBH A
million respectively for each of the three financial years ending 31st TENFMAEH 2K o NASA & North Asia

March 2010, 2011 and 2012. Details of the Supplemental Services Strategic Acquisition Corp. ([NASAC ) 2 {2f%
Agreement are set out in the circular to shareholders dated 7th NE - BERARBFERFTEE T —FTF_A
April 2009. NASA is the holding company of North Asia Strategic Zt+NHLE-

Acquisition Corp. (“NASAC”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company until 28th February 2010.

Sub-tenancy agreement paRichiiE ]

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, North Asia Strategic REBEZEMNBARLEREE(EE)BRARH
(HK) Limited entered into a sub-tenancy agreement dated 13th Ajia Partners (Hong Kong) Limited ([ APHK)
March 2009 (the “Sub-Tenancy Agreement”) with Ajia Partners K The Center 78 (No. 2) L|m|tedB\_gTjL
(Hong Kong) Limited (“APHK”) and The Center 78 (No. 2) Limited F=R+=HrIus B 28HBE]) -

in relation to the sub-leasing of a portion of the office on 78th HAURBBERFKNE ¢99f¢‘%¢/b78*§2¥ﬂ#

Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for a term REZ—BH A_ZEZT N \FHA—HEEZ
of 3 years commencing from 1st April 2008 to 31st March 2011 E——F=ZA=+—HIAH=F - ﬂ*ﬁ@%"]
at a monthly rental of approximately HK$190,000, inclusive of 190,000 87T - BIEEBRERZERAE - BE

management fees and air-conditioning charges. The annual cap ENF - ZE-ZEFR-FT—F=H8 :‘f’—El

for each of three financial years ending 31st March 2009, 2010 =AM BRFESEF28F LRESBHEHAT B
and 2011 is expected not to exceed HK$2.3 million. Details of the #12,300,000/87C - D EHEAFINEHA-Z
Sub-Tenancy Agreement are set out in the announcement of the ZNF=ZATNBZARERE - APHK BAjia
Company dated 19th March 2009. APHK is a company controlled Partners Inc. %2 A7) » % %& ANASAC (K
by Ajia Partners Inc. which is an indirect holding company of BARNREFERRERE_FT—FTF_A=-F+NH
NASAC, a substantial shareholder of the Company until 28th 1Bz TR A A

February 2010.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The above continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company. The
Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above continuing connected transactions have been entered into
(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions (a) have received the approval
of the Board; (b) are in accordance with the pricing policy of
the Group if those transactions involve the provision of goods or
services by the Group; (c) have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and (d)
have not exceeded the respective caps as disclosed in the relevant

announcements of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

NASA, a party to the Services Agreement, is a subsidiary of Ajia
Partners Inc., Mr. Moses Tsang Kwok Tai, Mr. Henry Kim Cho and
Mr. Savio Chow Sing Nam, being Directors of the Company, each
holds approximately 31.9%, 21.3% and 8.9% equity interest in
Ajia Partners Inc. respectively. Save for the Services Agreement,
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its subsidiaries or holding company was a
party and in which any of the Company’s Directors or members
of its management had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions provided in
note 39 to the accompanying financial statements, no contract
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into

or existed during the year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS HEMELES
As at 31st March 2010, none of the Directors or substantial RIZB—ZFTFE=ZA=+—H8 ARAESHTE

shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates BRIFMFEESEZHEATHELSEEM
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with AREBEGBRATREEBRRE 2 EFRHARE

the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with BB E S5 o

the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT mERREE

On 30th April 2010, the Group entered into an agreement to sell RZE—TFWMA=1+8  AEBEETHEMA
its 33.74% equity interest in TK Chemical Corporation (“TKC") Fl FQTEW 000,000,000% B (St AR QAR R ZF
at a consideration of KRW77 billion (equivalent to approximately —ZEFRAMNBHE S AEIFEE BERY
HK$545.9 million as disclosed in the Company’s announcement 545,900,000 87T ) H & 33.74% K TK Chemical
dated 4th May 2010). Corporation ([ TKC )& AN 25 -

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEREFREER

For the year ended 31st March 2010, the aggregate amount of BEZZ—ZF=-A=1+—HLEFE  £EBEH
purchases (not include the purchases of items which are of a Fal NS F’gﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ B(TBEIEEEERE
capital nature) attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers B) EAEENBEEEETE30%  MAEER
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases; and the AR EXEBERNEEEEEBET
aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest £ 30% °

customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BA - EHIBEALXF 2 LHES
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

On 28th February 2010, 25,882,000 ordinary shares of the RZZE-—ZFFE-_AZ+NR  ARFZ2ENE
Company were distributed to the Company’s wholly-owned ANAIEDETFRHEERAR([FEE ) BARARR
subsidiary American Tec Company Limited (“Amtec”) by a former B HE ANEH 25,882,000 % E@AL - it
holder of the preference shares of the Company as a result of TELDREFEZSELRZATEBEKFER D
a settlement agreement between Amtec and an ex-employee EORHE - N EESBIROHEBR T —ZF
of Amtec who was a holder of such preference shares. These ZA=T—HAAESHETES - B EXF
distributed shares were subsequently disposed of by Amtec by WEEIN ARBREEAMBRAFHMERES
31st March 2010 to independent parties. Save as disclosed above, TE-TF=-A=F+—HIEFERBEA EHK
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, BEIARNGEM EMES

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the
year ended 31st March 2010.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information, the Company maintains
a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued ordinary
shares as at the date of this annual report.

INFORMATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

The compliance officer of the Company is Mr. John Saliling. Mr.
Saliling is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Biographical details of Mr. Saliling is set out on page

16 of this annual report.

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. Lam Yee Fan. She
has over 15 years of company secretarial experience at listed
companies in Hong Kong. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of

Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted

by the Company is set out on pages 21 to 29 of this annual report.

AUDITORS

Except for the change of the Company’s auditors, from
PricewaterhouseCoopers to Ernst & Young during the year ended
31st March 2009, there was no other change in auditors of the

Company in any of the preceding three years.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2010 have
been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment.

On behalf of the Board
North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

John Saliling
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10th June 2010
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG

% ik

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited B TERBERBRATRR
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REFZEFMA T ERZLAF])

We have audited the financial statements of North Asia Strategic AZHMATEHBIRMDEEFZINENRE 442

Holdings Limited set out on pages 44 to 164, which comprise the 164 BRIt TRMITRER A M ®RE - LB
consolidated and company statements of financial position as WMREBER-ZE—ZFE=ZRA=1T—"ANEGEERAF]
at 31st March 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the MBIMAREBEZHEFENGEEERR - 56
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated PHEHNER  GEREERZHRNGERERE

statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of = URFESHBERBIE RE MM TR -
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE BEERUMBBRERARENSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation BERREZHAERBEESHMASRMNEE
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements B 75 3 o5 2E Bl R IR R B VSR RUE BB 3 55 45 E 4
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HREEMAFHIBAEVBRE - EEETEE
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants BET B RAEEERFEKEE AR M RT G
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies WFRAAR A - AEM B HRRTFEBR R
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing PR RME B E R EREM  ERNEREE
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the WEETHER + RIRERER S B S5 AET -

true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and

applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY BREENERE
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial BMHEERBREBERMNBZEZENBEREIEL
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to ER - WIRBERE 1981 F( A A1E)E 90 (K {E M

you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda PERBRIEME BRI ZIMRREREEAME B - I
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume P ERAREHNRNB M EA M A T8 EslikiE
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the EREE -

contents of this report.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B ZBERE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

10th June 2010
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2010 2009
—E-2F ZTTHhEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Htat FAET FEr
(Restated)
(s =751)
Revenue WA 5 3,167,965 2,229,529
Cost of sales SHER AR (2,767,621) (2,009,191)
Gross profit EF 400,344 220,338
Other income and gains — net Hb A Rz — 558 6 45,984 8,669
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (210,980) (142,992)
General and administrative expenses —#& k1T E A (166,375) (250,116)
Operating profit/(loss) ICERTF (E518) 68,973 (164,101)
Finance income U3 ON 9 6,016 46,518
Finance costs BMsER 9 (40,919) (41,916)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETS R ADEF], (EE) 7 34,070 (159,499)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frisf (2i) /#m 10 (17,834) 23,371
Profit/(loss) for the year FREA, (BE) 16,236 (136,128)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: FE(GERER, (Ei8) -
— Owners of the Company — RRRIEBA 11 16,711 (136,093)
— Minority interests — DHAR R (475) (35)
16,236 (136,128)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable ARARHEE ARESHET,
to owners of the Company (E518) 12
— Basic (HK cents) — B () 1.31 (142.07)
— Diluted (HK cents) — #5E (L) 1.31 (142.07)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these

financial statements.

MIEIMAR M R U ST MR 2 BEH D



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEENRER

Year ended 31st March 20102 - —ZF=A=+—HILFE

N R + = xennvncn R

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year FrmFl, (E18) 16,236 (136,128)
Other comprehensive income/(loss):  Hiv2EUz~ (EE)
Changes in fair value of AHEESREEZ
available-for-sale financial assets NAEEE 19 1,575 193
Actuarial gain/(loss) on post BB ENETZEE
employment benefit obligations Wz (E8) (653) 5,692
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B AR — (1,055)
Currency translation differences BEmE 50,509 (72,316)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  EREMEEWZ (BE) -
for the year, net of tax MR 51,431 (67,486)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRE2EKE (BE)
for the year FRkE] 67,667 (203,614)
Attributable to: FEAG :
— Owners of the Company — ARREEA 68,142 (203,579)
— Minority interests — DEREER (475) (35)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for FRZEWZE, (FE)
the year FkE] 67,667 (203,614)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these WMISMERN T AL FH G RE 2 BB S -
financial statements.
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Group Company
PN | p: N
—E-Z2F ZTThEF —Z2-Zf ZTENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Kzt FEn FET FET FHET
(Restated)
(B E5)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% BERR 13 704,313 560,213 - —
Investment properties RENE 14 2,183 2,257 - —
Leasehold land and land use ME LR e A
rights 15 20,835 21,684 - —
Intangible assets BRAE 16 582,049 583,161 - —
Interests in subsidiaries REBAR 2R 17 — = 971,430 907,093
Available-for-sale financial AN ESHEE
assets 19 3,008 1,357 — —
Deferred tax assets EEBIBEE 32 28,550 18,810 - =
Other non-current assets HIEnsEE 20 12,416 20,972 - —
1,353,354 1,208,454 971,430 907,093
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 231,220 265,690 - —
Trade and other receivables B HERWFIE R E A e B 22 385,399 199,008 112 101
Subscription receivables REEEUIE 23 - 13,000 - 13,000
Non-current assets held for sale B {EHEZ ERB & E 24 - 6,264 - —
Amount due from a subsidiary ~ JEKHIBARIFIA 17 - — 3,565 2,964
Amount due from a jointly- e SRR I BB E
controlled entity 39(c) — — 4,043 325
Current income tax recoverable  AIEREIFTSHE — 170 - —
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 25 84,381 58,552 - —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBA&EEER 25 1,133,181 1,063,583 942,077 1,030,430
1,834,181 1,606,267 949,797 1,046,820
Total assets EELE 3,187,535 2,814,721 1,921,227 1,953,913
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners ~ AATHEEAEEER:
of the Company:
Share capital LN 26 135,968 134,691 135,968 134,691
Reserves FEf 27 1,870,967 1,792,386 1,784,109 1,794,902
2,006,935 1,927,077 1,920,077 1,929,593
Minority interests PERRER 3,237 3,438 - =
Total equity BHEAH 2,010,172 1,930,515 1,920,077 1,929,593




STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B % AR 3

As at 31st March 2010 R=FE—ZF=H=+—H

N R + = xennvncn R

Group Company
PN | b YN
2010 2009 2010 2009
“Z2-%F ZTThE “Z-ZF ZTENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET FET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REAE
Borrowings &g 28 336,807 361,357 - —
Trade and other payables BSREN SR R E IR 29 681,453 351,703 1,150 1,616
Amount due to a subsidiary FENHBARZE 39(b) — — - 4,437
Derivative financial instruments ~ $74 4@ T2 30 189 — — —
Current income tax liabilities REFTEHAR 20,326 3,267 - =
1,038,775 716,327 1,150 6,053
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings E&E 28 50,668 75,939 - —
Convertible bonds AARES 31 - 18,267 - 18,267
Deferred tax liabilities EERERR 32 14,493 13,792 - —
Retirement benefit obligation RIMEMEE 33 62,834 48,926 - =
Derivative financial instruments 4744 TA 30 6,900 9,069 - —
Other non-current liabilities HigEngas 34 3,693 1,886 — =
138,588 167,879 — 18,267
Total liabilities SEAH 1,177,363 884,206 1,150 24,320
Total equity and liabilities EERAEAE 3,187,535 2,814,721 1,921,227 1,953,913
Net current assets RBEEFE 795,406 889,940 948,647 1,040,767
Total assets less current EEABRARBAE
liabilities 2,148,760 2,098,394 1,920,077 1,947,860
Approved by the Board of Directors on 10th June 2010: RZTE—ZTF A +HEESSHE -
Goran Sture Malm John Saliling
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
TEFHTESE HITEFFTHAEE
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these RS R R AL B SRR 2 BB LD ©

financial statements.
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Attributable to owners of the Company

NG ZPN; L
Minority
Share capital Reserves Sub-total interests Total
B 4] Nt DHRRER faEg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEBT FET FET FET FET
(Note 26) (Note 27)
(Hiz#26) (Hitor)
Balances at 1st April 2008 R=E2Z)\FNA—Bz&H 134,691 1,995,965 2,130,656 1,676 2,132,332
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year FRER — (136,093) (136,093) (35) (136,128)
Other comprehensive income/ Htt2EWE/ (FE)
(loss)
Changes in fair value EHESHEE
of available-for-sale ZAREEE
financial assets — 193 193 — 193
Actuarial gain from pension BRe 2 RENR — 5,692 5,692 = 5,692
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR — (1,055) (1,055) — (1,055)
Currency translation differences E#BEER — (72,316) (72,316) = (72,316)
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRAE — (203,579) (203,579) (35) (203,614)
Capital contribution from DHRE
minority interests EmTA — — — 1,797 1797
Balances at 31st March 2009 ~ R-ZTEAF=A=t-HE
and 1st April 2009 “EENEMA-B R 134,601 1,792,386 1,927,077 3,438 1,930,515
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EK#/ (E#8)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (B8) — 16,711 16,711 (475) 16,236
Other comprehensive income/ E#i2EWE / (§E)
(loss)
Changes in fair value of AftHESHEE
available-for-sale financial ZARERE
assets — 1,575 1,575 - 1,575
Actuarial loss from pension BAE 7 REER - (653) (653) - (653)
Currency translation differences E¥#HE£E - 50,509 50,509 - 50,509
Total comprehensive income/ 2EWE/ () A%
(loss) - 68,142 68,142 (475) 67,667
Transactions with owners HEBARS
Receipt of treasury shares WERETR — (12,941) (12,941) - (12,941)
Disposal of treasury shares HEEFR - 4,657 4,657 - 4,657
Conversion of convertible bonds ¥ #a# k&% 1,277 18,723 20,000 - 20,000
Total transactions with owners SEEEARZAE 1,277 10,439 11,716 - 11,716
Capital contribution from DHRE
minority interests EmrE - - - 274 274
Balances at 31stMarch 2010 ~ R=ZE-ZF=A=+—H
28 135,968 1,870,967 2,006,935 3,237 2,010,172

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31st March 2010 HHE T —ZTF=-A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—z-2f —FTNE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FET
(Restated)
€ <==27))
Cash flows from operating activities JEXKCHERE
Net cash flows from/ ICRETSFRES/ (EA)
(used in) operations ZHEEREFE 35(a) 283,879 (54,639)
Interest paid EAFLE (28,836) (34,735)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BEREFEBRB — 4,858
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREBFEH (512) (4,456)
Mainland China enterprise BB TS E
income tax paid (1,912) (878)
Overseas income tax paid BREINTER (11,170) (55)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating #&EEBELE, (FH) 2

activities ReneFe 241,449 (89,905)
Cash flows from investing activities REZEZRERE

Investment in a jointly-controlled REREHEE2IRE

entity, net of cash acquired HIBR Tk B3R & — (334,319)
Additions of property, plant and RNEME  BEREE

equipment (66,889) (43,388)
Additions of leasehold land and NBETE i & £ i 5 FA#E

land use rights — (2,300)
Additions of intangible assets RNBEETEE (1,941) (777)
Prepayments on construction costs TBREEER 580 (11,671)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEYE - E R

plant and equipment BB RIE 806 1,757
Proceeds from disposal of HEHRBESHMEE

available-for-sale financial assets FriS k1A — 9,500
Proceeds from disposal of other HERMIEREEEE

non-current assets A 53 1,946
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE AT 35(b) — (58)
Interest received B ALE 5,937 4,331
Increase in time deposits with original R RET2IH RS

maturity of more than three months =& Az EEFREM

when acquired (72) (100)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BIRIRRITIE R 20 (25,829) (10,162)

Net cash used in investing activities KRB ERBMERZESFRE (87,355) (385,241)
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2010 2009
—2-2F .

Note HK$°000 HK$'000
HteE FET FET
(Restated)
(#e=%5)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZFEZHERE
Receipt of subscription receivables U B 52 B P W KB 13,000 968,873
Sale of treasury shares HEEFR 4,657 =
Capital contribution from minority LERREREE
interests 274 1,797
New bank loans FIGIRITE R 954,264 881,760
Repayment of bank loans and capital ~ E@RTEZX R R ERLY
elements of finance leases BRI (1,061,120) (935,926)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing BB ESFREL, (FH)Z
activities WeMEIFHE (88,925) 916,504
Increase in cash and cash ReRELESEEBZEM
equivalents 65,169 441,358
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHzBRERRSEHEER
beginning of the year 1,063,483 626,103
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEEZSB2HE FHE
changes, net 4,357 (3,978)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZBSRESZEEER
end of the year 1,133,009 1,063,483
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRASEEBEBEARDN
cash equivalents
Cash at banks and on hand SRITNFHEIRS 25 916,258 886,558
Non-pledged time deposits when RIRERRFTZIEIR A
original maturity of three months or ={E A AT 2 R
less when acquired TEIFR 216,751 176,925
1,133,009 1,063,483
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these MISMEM T R FM SRR 2 BB S -

financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2010 —E—Z& =8 =+—H

[ ) s snancn R

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —RER
North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries LT EEBEREBAR(ARAR]) REMBRRRER
and jointly-controlled entities (collectively, the “Group”) are principally THER (A AEE ) ETERBEUTES

engaged in the following businesses:

o hi-tech distribution and services: trading of surface mount . BNEERAHERRE  RELERMm(SMT])
technology (“SMT”) assembly equipment, machinery and spare parts BERE BERTHHES  URREHSMT
and provision of related installation, training, repair and maintenance BERERERE B RERRERE

services for SMT assembly equipment;

. fishmeal and seafood product: processing and sale of fishmeal, . ABRBEER: AMNIREE  AHBRK
refining and sale of fish oil, manufacturing and sale of aquatic feed HE  KEAHERMEREE - REMEK
products and trading of other raw materials relating to aquatic feeds; ERREEZRMHES

. branded food: developing and operating Burger King restaurants in . RERR  REBRAMEBRREEERT
Hong Kong and Macau; (Burger King) & :

o chemical: manufacturing and sale of polyester fiber, PET resin and . 8 BERHEREGE  PETAIE KBNS
spandex; and ® R

. investment holding. o RAER -

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda as an AARABREAERE-NN\-—FRAERBREF

exempted company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address MRLZEREERAR EaAMPESE 2 A

of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,

Bermuda and of its principal place of business is 78th Floor, The Center, 99 Bermuda ' MEZZ& XM AEBEFAEF 995 H

Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong. BRALTSE o

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on The Growth Enterprise Market ARRZERBRRBEH AR IMERDAEIER L

of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. e

These financial statements are presented in thousand of Hong Kong dollars, BRBEHBAN - W EHBREUTETIIE o

unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Company’s WEHBRREN T -SFEAATHEALAESE
Board of Directors on 10th June 2010. BEREFIE -
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
available-for-sale financial assets and derivative financial instruments,

which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conforming with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in

note 4.
2.2  Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements. Except for
in certain cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies
and additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant effect on these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
Amendments of HKFRSs and HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

Entity or Associate

HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment —
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

2. EESHHREEZE

RELEHBRERAZIREHRREANTX - B3
BRAN - WEBREMZFIZFAEFENEHES -

2.1

2.2

HFREE

HERBRADREESGHNRS([FEEH
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R (AT AR BHREREN  BEE
SRR EAE LR REE) BEARE
SRARBADAGACHERTEMAER - LT
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 18 Amendment* Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18 Revenue —
Determining whether an entity is acting as a
principal or as an agent

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Amendments Presentation and HKAS 1 Presentation of

BEEHIEME S

22 EHRRRBESEZ2H(E)

BRUBASRD  BEAPBHREENFTREH
FTH 2B TR RE—AZed
TRZKE 2667
BEMBREED F20F
F83
BREIENE R HEFXZEH
(E37)
BAEENE18% BBGENE 185KMBM
BT A —EEEREIZT
AZHEA 2]
BEGENF 23 FREAA
(B1&3T)

BREHEMNF2T BAGHEAERREHT
REBEGHENE £ ZHREREHED

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HKAS

39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs
(October 2008)

Financial Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement —
Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers (adopted from

1st July 2009)

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May 2009).
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEZEHERME®

(continued)

Mg

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued) 22 ESHBERHESE2E£E(Z)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are

RS RERTEAN RS LR IR

as follows: 2EMT
(i)  Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of HKFRSs (i)  BERUBREERE HELTHEEY

(ii)

and HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements — Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

The HKAS 27 Amendment requires all dividends from
subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities to be
recognised in the income statement in the parent’s separate
financial statements. The distinction between pre and post
acquisition profits is no longer required. However, the payment
of such dividends requires the Company to consider whether
there is an indicator of impairment. The amendment is applied
prospectively. As the Group is not a first-time adopter of
HKFRSs, the HKFRS 1 Amendment is not applicable to the
Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

The HKFRS 2 Amendments clarify that vesting conditions are
service conditions and performance conditions only. Any other
conditions are non-vesting conditions. Where an award does
not vest as a result of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition
that is within the control of either the entity or the counterparty,
this is accounted for as a cancellation. As the Group does
not have any outstanding share option in the current year, the
amendments have had no impact on the financial position or

results of operations of the Group.

(i)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value
measurements related to items recorded at fair value are
to be disclosed by sources of inputs using a three-level
fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments
recognised at fair value. In addition, a reconciliation between
the beginning and ending balances is now required for level
3 fair value measurements, as well as significant transfers
between levels in the fair value hierarchy. The amendments
also clarify the requirements for liquidity risk disclosures with
respect to derivative transactions and assets used for liquidity
management. The fair value measurement disclosures are
presented in note 3.3 to the financial statements while the
revised liquidity risk disclosures are presented in note 3.1(c) to

the financial statements.
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about the
components of the entity that is available to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources to the
segments and assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosure of information about the products and
services provided by the segments, the geographical areas
in which the Group operates, and revenue from the Group'’s
major customers. The Group concluded that the operating
segments determined in accordance with HKFRS 8 are the
same as the business segments previously identified under
HKAS 14. These revised disclosures, including the related
revised comparative information, are shown in note 5.2 to the

financial statements.

ER

2.2

B H
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2,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard
separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The
statement of changes in equity includes only details of
transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in
equity presented as a single line. In addition, this standard
introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with
all items of income and expense recognised in profit or
loss, together with all other items of recognised income and
expense recognised directly in equity, either in one single
statement, or in two linked statements. The Group has elected

to present two statements.

Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18 Revenue —
Determining whether an entity is acting as a principal or
as an agent

Guidance has been added to the appendix (which
accompanies the standard) to determine whether the Group is
acting as a principal or as an agent. The features to consider
are whether the Group (i) has the primary responsibility for
providing the goods or services, (ii) has inventory risk, (iii) has
the discretion to establish prices and (iv) bears credit risk.
The Group has assessed its revenue arrangements against
these criteria and concluded that it is acting as a principal in
all arrangements. The amendment has had no impact on the

financial position or results of operations of the Group.
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset. As the Group’s current policy for borrowing costs aligns
with the requirements of the revised standard, the revised
standard has had no impact on the financial position or results
of operations of the Group.

2,

2.2
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(vii)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,

(continued)

31st March 2010 =&

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued) 22 EHBERBEESE2E2E(2)

(viii) Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation and HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements— Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

The HKAS 32 Amendments provide a limited scope exception

(viii) BEGEANFERE2MBIA 2R

EEETTEAZ 1 YBEX2ES —
TREERIAREEELZERZE
i

D‘I’—%EU 32‘5’{'2( HTK;J:W]TWL/\

for puttable financial instruments and instruments that impose >E$mﬂlﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂ%?$%ii1£21
specified obligations arising on liquidation to be classified ERGETHERYE TEARH®
as equity if they fulfil a number of specified features. The ﬁﬁ%ﬁ"*ﬁﬁ%/\ c BRETERMEIR

HKAS 1 Amendments require disclosure of certain information
relating to these puttable financial instruments and obligations
classified as equity. As the Group currently has no such
financial instruments or obligations, the amendments have had
no impact on the financial position or results of operations of
the Group.

ZETEXREZEN ERER LR
HERTAREEZETEN - ARA
CERBTELESRTARLEE &
G W%WW%@ZEM‘%#%E}Z@%%%

\\\\\

(ix) Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of (ix) BEEBIBHEAEZEE) — 2E
Embedded Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: BIRELHEARTETARE BEF
Recognition and Measurement — Embedded Derivatives EHFENRSHMIA: BARTE —

HARTETRZ BT

The amendment to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 requires an entity to assess
whether an embedded derivative must be separated from a
host contract when the entity reclassifies a hybrid financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
This assessment is to be made based on circumstances that
existed on the later of the date the entity first became a party
to the contract and the date of any contract amendments that
significantly change the cash flows of the contract. HKAS
39 has been revised to state that if an embedded derivative
cannot be separately measured, the entire hybrid instrument
must remain classified as fair value through profit or loss in its
entirety. The adoption of the amendments has had no impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires customer loyalty award credits
to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales
transaction in which they are granted. The consideration
received in the sales transaction is allocated between the
loyalty award credits and the other components of the
sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty award credits is
determined by reference to their fair value and is deferred
until the awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise
extinguished. As the Group currently has no customer loyalty
award scheme, the interpretation has had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 replaces HK Interpretation 3 Revenue — Pre-
completion Contracts for the Sale of Development Properties.
It clarifies when and how an agreement for the construction of
real estate should be accounted for as a construction contract
in accordance with HKAS 11 Construction Contracts or an
agreement for the sale of goods or services in accordance
with HKAS 18 Revenue. As the Group currently is not involved
in any construction of real estate, the interpretation has had no
impact on the financial position or results of operations of the
Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 provides guidance on the accounting for a
hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. This includes
clarification that (i) hedge accounting may be applied only
to the foreign exchange differences arising between the
functional currencies of the foreign operation and the parent
entity; (i) a hedging instrument may be held by any entities
within a group; and (iii) on disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative gain or loss relating to both the net investment and
the hedging instrument that was determined to be an effective
hedge should be reclassified to the income statement as
a reclassification adjustment. As the Group currently has
no hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, the
interpretation has had no impact on the financial position or
results of operations of the Group.

2,

2.2
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(xiii) HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

(xiv)

(adopted from 1st July 2009)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 provides guidance on accounting by
recipients that receive from customers items of property, plant
and equipment or cash for the acquisition or construction of
such items, provided that these assets must then be used to
connect customers to networks or to provide ongoing access
to a supply of goods or services, or both. As the Group
currently has no such transactions, the interpretation has had
no impact on the financial position or results of operations of
the Group.

In October 2008, the HKICPA issued its first Improvements to
HKFRSs which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — Plan to sell
the controlling interest in a subsidiary which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009, the Group
adopted all the amendments from 1st April 2009. While the
adoption of some of the amendments results in changes in
accounting policies, none of these amendments has had a
significant financial impact to the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Removes
the reference to “total interest income” as a component
of finance costs.

o HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
that assets and liabilities which are classified as
held for trading in accordance with HKAS 39 are not
automatically classified as current in the statement of
financial position.

2,

2.2
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(xiv)  (continued)

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Replaces the
term “net selling price” with “fair value less costs to
sell” and the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment is the higher of an asset’s fair value less

costs to sell and its value in use.

In addition, items of property, plant and equipment
held for rental that are routinely sold in the ordinary
course of business after rental are transferred to
inventories when rental ceases and they are held for

sale.

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets: When discounted cash
flows are used to estimate “fair value less costs to sell’,
additional disclosures (e.g., discount rate and growth
rate used) are required which are consistent with the
disclosures required when the discounted cash flows

are used to estimate “value in use”.

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Expenditure on advertising
and promotional activities is recognised as an expense
when the Group either has the right to access the

goods or has received the service.

The reference to there being rarely, if ever, persuasive
evidence to support an amortisation method for
intangible assets other than the straight-line method
has been removed. The Group has reassessed the
useful lives of its intangible assets and concluded that
the straight-line method is still appropriate.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BESHHRBE®)

(continued)
2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting 23 CEHEAEMRERZBEHBEREEL
Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, RESHBREA  ARBLRERATEEH
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial BERER T REETTBBMBEREER -
statements.
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial BEMBREER BLRAE B BaEER
Reporting Standards ' F1% (&f’}é 1)
HKFRS 1 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of BB REE BEMBREENE1REL
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards — F1H 2B RO B RS E —
Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters * BRFREZE)BEL
g2
HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of BBEEREER BB REENE1REN
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards— F1R 2B BB ABHEER —
Limited exemption from comparative HKFRS 7 ELRREGEGE R
Disclosures for First-time Adopters * BHEEHE T REL
BEHZBRAE 2B
HKFRS 2 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment BbRKREEN BBHBREERE 254
— Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment FoR 2B B2 1157 — 58
Transactions ® HELEENRGEHZ
A
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations ' BEMBREER FHE
EXRLHEH))
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ° BEMBHEEN  2BTA
F9%
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures ° Fi gz BEALHES
245k (BT
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements ' BRGHENZNR GFAREFGEHE

(&f37)
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (continued)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Amendments to
HKFRS 5 included
in Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in
October 2008

HK Interpretation 4
(Revised in December
2009)

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation — Classification of Rights Issues °

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items '

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of
a Minimum Funding Requirement °

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners '

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

Instruments *

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held

for Sale and Discontinued Operations — Plan to

sell the controlling interest in a subsidiary '

Leases — Determination of the Length of Lease
Term in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases *
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st July 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8,
HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2010 although there
are separate transitional provisions for each standard or interpretation.
The HKICPA has further issued Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 in May
2010 which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact

of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the

Group considers that except for the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised)

and HKAS 27 (Revised) may result in changes in accounting policies,

these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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2. BEERHBEHE )

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March

2010.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group

controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated

from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is

recognised directly in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.4  Basis of consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Subsidiaries (continued)

Transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
within the Group are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
Jointly-controlled entities

The Group's interests in jointly-controlled entities are
accounted for by proportionate consolidation. The Group
combines its share of the jointly-controlled entities” individual
income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows on
a line-by-line basis with similar items in the Group’s financial
statements. The Group recognises the portion of gains or
losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the jointly-
controlled entities that it is attributable to the other venturers.
The Group does not recognise its share of profits or losses
from the jointly-controlled entities that result from the Group’s
purchase of assets from the jointly-controlled entities until it
resells the assets to an independent party. However, a loss on
the transaction is recognised immediately if the loss provides
evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current

assets, or an impairment loss.
Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains and
losses for the Group and are recorded in the consolidated
income statement. Purchases from minority interests result in
goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net

assets of the subsidiary.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which

is the Group’s presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement with “finance income or costs”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the income statement within “other gains” and “administrative

expenses’, respectively.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the securities, and other changes in
the carrying amount of the securities. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised
in equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6  Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

()

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available for sale are

included in the investment revaluation reserve in equity.
Group’s entities

The results and financial position of all the entities within the
Group (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities in the statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses

are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss

on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure

that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated
Buildings 20 to 50 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 25 years

Furniture and fixtures and

office equipment 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 310 6 years
Plant and machinery and demonstration

equipment 310 10 years

Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. It is not depreciated until completion of
construction and the asset is available for use. The cost of completed
construction works is transferred to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with

the policy as stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised to the income

statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is

classified as investment property.

Investment property is carried at cost including related transaction
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write off the
cost of the investment property over its estimated useful life. Where
the carrying amount of an investment property is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its

recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which

they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the date

of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiaries or jointly-controlled
entities at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition
of subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities is included in
intangible assets. Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on disposal of an entity include

the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGU”") for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose identified

according to operating segment.
Other intangible assets

The acquired trademarks and licences, non-compete
agreements, distribution agreements, customer relationships,
technology knowhow, and development rights and franchises
are shown at historical cost. They have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of trademarks and licences, non-compete
agreements, distribution agreements, customer relationships,
technology knowhow, and development rights and franchises
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Customer relationships 310 4 years

Trademarks 9 to 15 years
Technology knowhow 6 to 10 years
Distribution agreements 3 years
Development rights and franchise fees 10 years
Non-compete agreements, included

in others 510 6 years
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10

211

2,12

2.13

Intangible assets (continued)
(b)  Other intangible assets (continued)

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives (three to six years).

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal

of impairment at each reporting date.
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are
recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration is recognised in

equity.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method or weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less accumulated impairment losses.

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all the amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered as indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited to the income statement.
Financial assets
2.16.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.16  Financial assets (continued)

2.16.1 Classification (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are

classified as current assets.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group'’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the

statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,

(continued)

31st March 2010 =&

2.16 Financial assets (continued) 216 SREEL)

2.16.2 Recognition and measurement 216.2 BER:1E

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available for sale
are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the securities and other changes
in the carrying amount of the securities. The translation
differences on monetary securities are recognised in profit or
loss, while translation differences on non-monetary securities
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes
in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the income statement as “gains and

losses from investment securities”.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, a discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs

and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,

(continued)

’fﬂh»

2.16 Financial assets (continued) 216 SRMEEE)

2.16.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 2162 BER:E(E)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the securities below
its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative losses — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that a financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the income statement on equity

instruments are not reversed through the income statement.

2.17  Financial liabilities

2.17.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing

loans and borrowings.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBESHHRBE®)

(continued)

217 Financial liabilities (continued) 217 SREEE)

2.17.2 Subsequent measurement 2.17.2 R#itE

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include any

interest charged on these financial liabilities.
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the

income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHBEBE®

(continued)

217 Financial liabilities (continued) 217 SREREE)

2.17.2 Subsequent measurement (continued) 2172 R#iHE(E)

2.17.3

2174

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long
term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds
is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity

components when the instruments are first recognised.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

217

2.18

2.19

2.20

Financial liabilities (continued)
2.17.5 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in
active markets is determined by reference to quoted market
prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no
active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing

models.
Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instrument do not qualify for hedge
accounting. They are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the income

statement.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of

three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits which are not restricted as to use. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of

financial position.
Share capital

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares are classified

as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
2.21 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Trade and other payables are repayable upon the receipt of

invoices and credit terms granted by suppliers are up to 160 days.
2.22 Borrowings
(a)  Borrowings other than convertible bonds

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it
is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facilities will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the

period of the facilities to which they relate.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

(b)  Convertible bonds

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible bond is
determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion, maturity
or redemption of the bond. The remainder of the proceeds
is allocated to the conversion option. This is recognised and

included in equity, net of income tax effects, if any.
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EESHHRBR

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2,

(continued)

E’fﬁki}

2.23 Current and deferred income tax 223 EHRELFHEHE

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establish provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the

tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlement to annual leave and long service leave
is recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees

up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity leave is not
recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution plans except for
a jointly-controlled entity where it operates a defined benefit

plan.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays contributions to state/trustee-administered funds
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employment

costs when they are due.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefits that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as

age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments
for unrecognised past-service costs. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflow, using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.24

2.25

Employee benefits (continued)
(b)  Pension obligations (continued)

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income

in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the
income statement, unless the changes to the pension plan
are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a
specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the
past-service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the vesting period.
(c)  Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses.
It recognises a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest

expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.26

2.27

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised on the following bases:
(a)  Sales revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer, and the
customer has accepted the products and collectibility of the
related receivables is reasonably assured or when significant
risks and rewards of ownership of goods have passed to the

buyer.
(b)  Commission, service and management fee income

Commission, service and management fee income is
recognised when the services are rendered, by reference to
completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis
of the actual services provided as a proportion of the total

services to be provided.
(c) Interest income

Interest income s recognised on a time proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

(d)  Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the

term of the relevant lease.

Advance payments received from customers prior to the delivery
of goods and the provision of services are recorded as receipts in

advance.
Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

Operating leases (as the lessor)

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in property,
plant and equipment in the statement of financial position. They are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent with
similar property, plant and equipment. Rental income is recognised

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Finance leases (as the lessor)

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable

is recognised as unearned finance income.

Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net

investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.
Finance leases (as the lessee)

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases
of property, plant and equipment where the Group has acquired
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property

and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short term and other long term
payables. The interest element of the finance costs is charged to the
income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. Leased assets are depreciated using a straight-line

basis over their expected useful lives to residual values.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the income statement in the period in which they are

incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.32 Financial guarantees

2.33

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise liabilities for
financial guarantees at inception, but performs a liability adequacy
test at the end of each reporting period by comparing its net liability
regarding the financial guarantee with the amount that would be
required if the financial guarantee would result in a present legal or
constructive obligation. If the liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in

the income statement immediately.
Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group

uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the finance department of the
Company under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
finance department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks
in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
of Directors provides written principles for overall risk management,
as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment

of excess liquidity.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk

(i

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and other Asia Pacific regions and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to United States
dollars (the “US dollar”), Japanese Yen, Korean Won,
and Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign

operations.

Management has set up a policy to require entities
within the Group to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their functional currency. To manage their
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities,
entities within the Group use forward contracts.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s

functional currency.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising
from the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is
managed primarily through borrowings denominated in

the relevant foreign currencies.

The Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US dollar at
a range of rates between 7.75 and 7.85, the foreign
exchange exposure between the US dollar and the

Hong Kong dollar is therefore limited.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERREE#Z)
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BBEBRRZ)
(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) FEEREE)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SEREEE)
At 31st March 2010, if Japanese Yen had weakened/ RZZE-FF=A=+—H M
strengthened by 20% against the Hong Kong dollar MEEMESRETE ALK
with all other variables held constant, profit for the year BLEE/ FHE20% BER
would have been HK$6,903,000 higher/lower (2009: i ¥ 1§38 0,/ 2 6,908,000 7
loss of HK$1,790,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result TL(ZZFNE : BRI
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of 111,790,000% L) - EER M
Japanese Yen denominated trade payables and trade ATRBN2BSEMNFBERE
receivables. Equity would have been HK$601,000 SENFBERLAF/BREF
lower/higher (2009: HK$271,000 lower/higher), B R BH L /H10601,000
arising mainly from foreign exchange losses/gains BL(ZEENE  BD/EN
on translation of Japanese Yen denominated equity 271,000% ) TERBEN
securities classified as available for sale. BLABMUH AR GREEY
RAEHERER/ BMA
o
At 31st March 2010, if Korean Won had weakened/ RZZE-TF=A=1+—H M
strengthened by 20% against the US dollar with all MEENEERFTE  BEK
other variables held constant, profit for the year would ELRE/FE20% ' AERE
have been HK$34,985,000 higher/lower (2009: loss Fl#5 32 0 /5 34,985,000 7%
of HK$15,145,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result TL(Z2ZN: BERLY/EM
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of 15,145,000% L) - FERHE
US dollar denominated trade receivables and trade UETRENMN 2B HRKER
payables to a jointly-controlled entity whose functional Mg EE REE AR
currency is Korean Won. HEBZESRANFEZELR
/BB o
At 31st March 2010, if Korean Won had weakened/ R-_T-—ZTF=A=+—H"
strengthened by 20% against the Hong Kong dollar WAEEREERFTE &
with other variables held constant, equity would BHAELRE/FE20% 8
have been HK$23,711,000 higher/lower (2009: % /% 423,711,000
HK$45,612,000 higher/lower), arising mainly from BL(ZZZNE: M/ RD
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of Korean 45,612,00087)  FERKE
Won denominated trade receivables, trade payables NREREN B HRIGE
and borrowings. BORMNFEREEZELEE

/BRRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R MY RE

31st March 2010 —E—ZHF =8 =+—H

88 NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED BVANINIS/ZNSSI=ZI0IE) 2009/10

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)  Market risk (continued)

(i

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31st March 2010, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 20% against the Hong Kong dollar
with all other variables held constant, gain for the year
would have been HK$2,035,000 higher/lower (2009:
loss of HK$967,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB

denominated trade receivables and trade payables.

At 31st March 2010, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 20% against the Hong Kong dollar
with all other variables held constant, equity would
have been HK$7,614,000 higher/lower (2009:
HK$594,000 higher/lower), arising mainly from
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB
denominated trade receivables, trade payables and

borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
arising from its available-for-sale financial assets. The

Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.

The available-for-sale financial assets are mainly listed
equity instruments in Japan and if the fair value of
these equity instruments increased or decreased by
5%, the Group’s equity would have been increased
or decreased by approximately HK$150,000 (2009:
HK$68,000).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits, the income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market

interest rates.

The cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits are interest-bearing at floating rate and
expose the Group to the cash flow interest rate risk.
The subscription receivables are interest-bearing at
fixed interest rate and expose the Group to the fair

value interest rate risk.

The interest rate risk from financial liabilities arises
from borrowings and convertible bonds. Borrowings
that are subject to variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Convertible bonds are
interest-bearing at fixed rate and expose the Group to

fair value interest rate risk.

At 31st March 2010, if interest rates on borrowings
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year would
have been HK$2,607,000 lower/higher (2009: loss
of HK$1,583,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.
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3.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

()

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, subscription receivables, trade receivables and

certain other receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate financial strength
and appropriate percentage of down payment. It also has
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers, except for the

subscription receivables.

The carrying amount of the receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to these
financial assets. The credit risk for bank deposits and bank
balances is considered by the Group to be minimal as the
bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period,
and management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by counterparties. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under

committed credit lines.

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s business,
the Group ensures that it maintains sufficient cash and credit

lines to meet its liquidity requirements.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERREE#Z)
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BBEBRRZ)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) FEHEZERE)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s EEEERASERYDECRAELRD
liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn borrowing B ERRENERRENEAESE
facilities and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of ZARDEZRRE HekHeSEE
expected cash flows. The Group’s policy is to regularly B-AEBIHRATIREENRE
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its BRBELTRUARETEERE N
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains BRABZREHBERRTZSREE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of BRASZAEEERD  MRRRH
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity RBERAZREESER -
requirements in the short and longer term.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and TERUARERREGNIHNBE 2 HAES
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity MARE HASELHERNFHE
groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the MTESREBEETHEECIEDES
reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts e RPFMBEZREAE KRR
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash BERE -
flows.
Between Between
Less than 1and2 2and5 Over5
1 year years years years Total
1E5R 182F 2Z5%  BB5E am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT FAT
At 31st March 2010 R=2-2F
=ZA=t+-8
Borrowings £ 348,130 12,608 42,873 449 404,060
Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA 189 6,900 - - 7,089
Trade and other payables EHRNTER
HER R 681,453 — - — 681,453
1,029,772 19,508 42,873 449 1,092,602
At 31st March 2009 RZZTNF
=A=1+—-H
Borrowings £ 376,706 78,336 913 654 456,609
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA — — 9,069 — 9,069
Trade and other payables BIRNFIER
Hib R E 351,703 — — — 351,703
Convertible bonds AR AR — 20,000 = = 20,000
728,409 98,336 9,982 654 837,381
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net cash
divided by total capital. Net cash comprises of total borrowings
(including “current and non-current borrowings” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position), and convertible bonds
less pledged bank deposits, and cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital represents “equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of

financial position plus net cash.

During the year ended 31st March 2010, the Group's strategy, which
was unchanged from last year, was to maintain net cash position. The
net cash positions at 31st March 2010 and 2009 were analysed as

follows:

3.

HRRARER2)
32 BARKREE

FEREREAZ BRNARERAREEAER
RESECELERS  NAERRDBREM
BRAE - URAFHEE BN ERDERMK
Ao

RERRAREARE  ARETHRRARR
BB BRRZERER  BIHRHIARD
BEMEEAESHA -

MEBRE—#  FEENEEABLRERE
TEA - BEARHEWEFR B IURE KRG
B3 RepieRE(REFAMBRARM
H2IRBEFERDEE])  THRREFAEE
RETERARR e RALFERE - REXHK
SAMBIRARMEZ BRI MEFRE -

HE-Z-ZE-A=1+-HILFE £A5EX
EEFCEE  #RHFREMN - —T-ZEA
ZZEZNEZA=T-BZEREMAAITE
g

2009

ZZTNE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FAT

Borrowings (note 28) &8 (Hfz28) 387,475 437,296

Convertible bonds (note 31) R ES (17:231) - 18,267

Sub-total Nat 387,475 455,563
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and pledged A RekALEEER
bank deposits (note 25) DA R B IRIRITIE R

(Hrzt2s) 1,217,562 1,122,135

Net cash FHE 830,087 666,572
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERREE#®)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREMRF

Effective 1st April 2009, the Group adopted the amendment to HKFRS BZZETNFNA—RE  FEEREZEALER

7 for financial instruments that are measured in the statement of HBRARTEZ SR TAFMB BN BREE

financial position at fair value, this requires disclosure of fair value AL 7R 2B ZETEREAT AR B E

measurements by level of the following fair value measurement Eh o IBRBEANBELGE

hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . REEESBERERTS LZRE(R
assets or liabilities (level 1). RE) (BA-) -

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are . EE(DEREE) S HEIEREEY
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as B ERBRRA—FRENINZAIBRE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). EFERE(RAZ) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . EAFERTBETSEBEEELR
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). BEEEETTERYE) (RAI=) -

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and liabilities TRETASER-Z-FF=A=1T—HEA

that are measured at fair value as at 31st March 2010: REFEZEREEREE:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
&Rl— &A= FRI= @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FET FET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AIftHELRIERE
— Equity securities — BAEH 3,006 — 2 3,008

Total assets EEHAE 3,006 — 2 3,008

Liabilities 8

Financial liabilities at fair value BARBEIRIT RN ERRE

through profit or loss ZeRaE
— Derivative financial —TESRIA
instruments — 189 6,900 7,089

Total liabilities SE8E — 189 6,900 7,089
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level
1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily listed equity

investments classified as trading securities or available for sale.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs are not
based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include:
o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
J The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is

determined using forward exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, with the resulting value discounted back to

present value.

o Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial

instruments.

HREARER )
33 DREMRE)

EXRERTENEECERTIAZAAE =
BRBEHRZMSREHE - WRETRER R
EHARSMH X5 B2 XRAEE - EfE
RBAEERBRG  MAFRERRZLFR
AERREHRREZNSRS  AZTHEHE
RER - ARERAEREENRA TSR
ERRTZTHEAE - ZFTABARH— -
BABR—2 LA ZRENRRRHESFNA
g ETRARE o

PHERKERDHANEE 2R T RGNS
IMIETR) AR REBBERDERE -
ZERERDGENRIERTSHE(WE) -
BORKBER TR - WA EERTAAR
EFMRECRBEERBERABELR  ARTA
AR o R LEARBIRL IFENT]
EEMSEE - IRTAGARN= -

AASeRTRENHEZREHERDEE

. BUTAZMSREARSHHRE -

. EMHNERNZ AR ERBSHRZE
HMEXET - MSEEEHADRE -

. HtIT - MERASRENHT - AL
EEHARERTAZARE
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HREAREE#Z)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AREMEHE)

FARMN=ZAABHEBEDNT -

The movement in fair value measurements in level 3 during the year

are as follows:

HK$°000
FET
Derivative financial instrument: fTEERMIA:
At 1st April 2009 RZZTNFNA—H 9,069
Gain recognised in the income statement included in other income ~ MERREATA LMK A K
and gains sk 2 Wik (3,816)
Exchange realignment loss recognised in the income statement RERRERTALMEA R
included in other income and gains s 2 BB H R EE 1,647
At 31st March 2010 R=ZF-ZF=A=1—H 6,900

4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4, BREH{EHE UK

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on AEERBEBARRIAMRAZ(BERAAKRESERS
RTEEELER 2 FH)FEHEZ A RABETT

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. flg o

historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

REBEHARRIEH R RER - B2 EHEHTETE
F ROGRBETERAR - RARREHAYHT
HRERCEERBBCRABIFLERRE 2G5

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next WU o

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom reflect the related

actual results. The estimates that have a significant risk of causing material

financial year are discussed below.

41  Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment 41 NE BERREUAREBNEEZIEAFHER
and intangible assets FerER

TEEEREBEANE  BERRBAREN

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,

residual values and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives; and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore depreciation

expense in the future periods.

AEZMGHUEAFY - MEERRRETER
X o WRER DRERUEE L2 E - B
EERREULEYEECERARRFHBE
REEL - A ERFRREA G FHRRE -
AERESEMAERY  LeMFEIHATE
ARME BITEMRIERBEE - EREEE
A T ERFATRE  MERFHER
AR AR RBEENR © E R T SRR
EFHRANRBERE  AMSERRAR SN
ERx -
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Goodwill impairment assessment

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2.11 to the financial statements. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired has been allocated to individual CGUs
which are reviewed for impairment based on forecast operating
performance and cash flows. The recoverable amount of an asset
or a CGU has been determined based on value in use calculations.
Cash flow projections are prepared on the basis of reasonable
assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market conditions, and

are discounted appropriately.
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand and
competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates at the

end of each reporting period.
Estimated recoverability of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on the
credit history of its customers and other debtors as well as the current
market condition, and requires the use of judgements and estimates.
Management reassesses the provision at the end of each reporting
period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and the Republic of Korea. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision for income taxes. There
are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

4,

E

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

B R AN

iy

B E

AEERBHBRRME2 1M Z R
K BEAAREEDLREMNE - SURER
AME MABRENIEZ@AREELE
fii - MEMELDRERILERRREERE
ETRER - BEFREELEM L AREE
BNRERBEHEAET - RERERADEK
RBBTRARTNZ & BRRLEEE R
THRGES

FECUSERE

FREZAERFEAERTEBART 2 S
B HARHERA - ZEMHDRER TR
FREOMEER BEHELRIEL  TREP
FRUBRBEFHTFAEL ZTDHMEREAR
B - ERERNEREMREMFEREME

5 BRRRR MR KRR 2 TR E

TEEERENREBRLTUAN KO 2 A E
EE SRR R A b ERFRREZ B - it
B ETREEEPRAMERAZEEELR
BamAfd  TREERAE R - EEE
REREMREMTHARRE -

FrE®

AEETRERE  THERBRBERAMMEG
B - EEEMEHBELEN - FREHEARH
B - ERREBBRET ETRIRFAEMSR
LEERBETHETEEN - W FEMH 2R
RABRRAZVTH LRI - BNEER
B BIEH I ST B SH R H IR
i
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4. HBREHHETRAE )
(continued)
4.5 Income taxes (continued) 45 FBH(E)
Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relate to tax EREEHBEAE(FEZEHEFEERA)RT
losses, depends on the management’s expectation of future taxable EREERPT BB BAERR R RERT R
profit that will be available against which the tax losses can be o ERERERTEETR o
utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.
4.6  Pension benefits 4.6 RAKLEF
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number BREEAZRETANSERR - DEASE
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number BRIEGEEEET - BRERSFAA /(K
of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net AN ZBREEHRE - ZERZEMEE K
cost/(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes PERRSEACEEE - AEERSFRER
in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of the pension BRAERX - W HERNETERELERKS
obligations. The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at BRZMESARBE ML REZEE - EERE
the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used HRARREE  REEHRUAE T 2B
to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows ERGHEAZIBA FHAZHRRKEAE
expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In ZEMBERERLERS 2 FIER o
determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the
interest rate of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.
Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on BrRREBEAZEMFERRIERBAIT
current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in note 33 R o HA BRI S RAN 33K E -
to the financial statements.
5.  TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. HEEE WARSEER
5.1  Turnover and revenue 51 EBEERKA
Turnover represents sales of goods, revenue from branded food EEXBRELEER  BERMRLEBEELK
operation, commission and other income. The amounts of each A BeREMBA - SRABERREARRZ
category of revenue recognised during the year are as follows: SEMOT
2009
ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Sales of goods HEER 3,042,277 2,181,527
Revenue from branded food operation BRERREBEEIBA 110,699 31,518
Commission and other income e REMBA 14,989 16,484
3,167,965 2,229,529

97
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5.

—ZEF=ZA=+—H

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
5.2  Operating segment information

For management purpose, the Group, including its jointly-controlled
entities, is organised into four major reportable operating segments
— hi-tech distribution and services, fishmeal and seafood product,
branded food and chemical operations. The hi-tech distribution and
services, fishmeal and seafood product, and chemical operations
segments derive revenue from the sale of goods. Branded food
operation segment derives revenue from Burger King restaurants
through the operation of quick service restaurants in Hong Kong
under the Burger King brand.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except
that finance income, finance costs, options liability as well as head

office and corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, leasehold land and land use rights, intangible
assets, subscription receivables, non-current deposits, inventories,
trade and other receivables, and non-current assets held for sale.
Unallocated assets comprise deferred tax assets, current income
tax recoverable, pledged bank deposits, available-for-sale financial

assets, and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other payables,
severance and retirement benefits, provision for reinstatement costs,
and other non-current liabilities. Unallocated liabilities comprise
deferred tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities, borrowings,

convertible bonds, and derivative financial instruments.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights, and intangible assets,
including additions resulting from acquisition of a jointly-controlled

entity.

5.

BXE WARDBER (&

5.2

e RER
REEME  ARB(BELARENEE) DA

MEFZETRFEENE — BRBERPHR
R ARKEEED  mERMRICEES -
BRRERS HERE AR REEER RIS
EBPFHLEERMEERA - RIERAES

SEMEBREEEET (Burger King) @2
RERERBEENERT (Burger King) BE
EEmEERA

EEENREREGEN R EE URELE
BERDERRAERE - DERBETEA
RRA SR/ (BR)  DEBRBRKAET,/
(B8) 2 BB - EBERBAER,/
(BR)zHERABARERHAER /(BR)
ZEEIA-H - EEBRA  HBER - g
BENREBR X ERESERTREEA -

PREEIRBENE BERRE RED
F HELMRLOERE BYVEE ABE
Y308 ERBEE  BE  BHEYGRRE
EEREFERHELEERDEE - ROKEE
BEETHIAAE  MRERBHAEH  EER
ROFER - THHESREENRRERRSE
fBEIRE °

PREBEIRRRESRNFEREMERR
B EHEBERRAEN  EREABGBRAMIE
RPAE AP EEEREEEHERE Y
FERaRE BE TRREZKTEERT
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wEAEAREVEERE - BERRBREL
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EEE WARIEER@®)
(continued)
5.2  Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESFEHE)
Year ended 31st March 2010
BE-Z-ZE-A=-1-HIEE
Hi-tech
distribution Fishmeal
and services and seafood
operation product Branded
ERRER operation food Chemical
PHR RBRBE operation operation
R £ EREE RRRRER (43
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Revenue LN
— Sales to external — HNEPHE
customers 775,870 526,413 110,699 1,754,983 3,167,965
Segment results before BREFEENL
amortisation of intangible PEEE
assets 16,281 35,262 (34,537) 131,881 148,887
Amortisation of intangible BHEVEE
assets (6,953) (2,648) (430) (10,720) (20,751)
Segment results PEEE 9,328 32,614 (34,967) 121,161 128,136
Fair value gains on options ~ HIEBEARE
liability Wi 3,816
Finance income b 0N 6,016
Finance costs NBER (40,919)
Corporate and other PEREMKAE
unallocated expenses ZH (62,979)
Profit before income tax BRFTEBLADR A 34,070
Income tax expense PRI (17,834)
Profit for the year FREF 16,236
Capital expenditure BARREY 514 31,564 37,068 7,451 76,597
Corporate and other PEREMKDE
unallocated capital BARY
expenditure 317
76,914
Depreciation e 9,568 3,512 10,209 41,343 64,632
Corporate and other PEREMRAE
unallocated depreciation nE 130
64,762
Amortisation i 6,953 3,179 430 10,720 21,282
Write-down/(write-back) BFERR,/ (BR)
of inventories to net EAERFE"
realisable value, net FE 5,794 7,715 — (559) 12,950
Provision for impairment of ~ FEUFIEIE RE
receivables 2,089 3,340 - 463 5,892
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EXE -WARIEERE)

(continued)
5.2  Operating segment information (continued) 52 RELEENE)
Year ended 31st March 2009
BE-ZTNE=A=1-BIIEE
Hi-tech
distribution Fishmeal
and services  and seafood
operation product Branded
RRHREm operation food Chemical
AR BRREE operation operation Total
PRI ERER SERHES LE%HK et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue LN
— Sales to external — HINEFHE
customers 564,612 430,887 31,518 1,202,512 2,229,529
Segment results before BHETEERZ
amortisation of intangible NEEE
assets (35,916) (4,002) (19,887) (17,229) (77,034)
Amortisation of intangible BHEVEE
assets (11,920) (2,648) (241) (7,744) (22,553)
Segment results NEEE (47,836) (6,650) (20,128) (24,973) (99,587)
Fair value gains on options ~ HiEBEALE
liability Yoz 4,924
Finance income BB 46,518
Finance costs HHER (41,916)
Corporate and other PEREMKAE
unallocated expenses ZH (69,438)
Loss before income tax BRETEHAIEE (159,499)
Income tax credit FSHEE 23,371
Loss for the year FRER (136,128)
Capital expenditure BRRX 1,531 16,757 26,554 385,297 429,139
Corporate and other PEREMKAE
unallocated capital BARY
expenditure 63
429,202
Depreciation e 4,471 2,389 2,774 29,865 39,499
Corporate and other rEREM
unallocated depreciation AOBIE 59
39,558
Amortisation 3 11,920 3,107 241 7,744 23,012
Write-down/(write-back) HFEMR,/ ()
of inventories to net ENERFE"
realisable value, net FE 14,408 (3,007) — 102 11,503

Provision for impairment of ~ FEWGIEIERE
receivables 1,286 1,706 3,767 — 6,759
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TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
5.2  Operating segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

Hi-tech
distribution
and services

operation product Branded
BNEER operation food Chemical
PHR ARREE operation operation
PREZER EREE RERRER (43
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET FHET FET
At 31st March 2010 R-B2-2%=A
Sir=F
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 608,938 321,664 70,382 934,891 1,935,875
Unallocated assets: AOMEE:
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 28,550
Cash and cash BeRkRe%E
equivalents B 1,133,181
Pledged bank deposits BEABIER 84,381
Available-for-sale financial ~ AEHESREE
assets 3,008
Corporate and others rEREM 2,540
Total assets per statement of B ETZ
financial position BEHT 3,187,535
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities SEEE 262,738 98,269 22,442 362,496 745,945
Unallocated liabilities: ADEARE:
Deferred tax liabilities ERREERE 14,493
Current income tax REEHARE
liabilities 20,326
Borrowings EE 387,475
Derivative financial TESBMTIA
instruments 7,089
Corporate and others rERHEM 2,035
Total liabilities per statement — BIF R K2
of financial position BERH 1,177,363

2009/10

tTERBERBR LA

5. ®EXE WARSEER S

5.2

Fishmeal

and seafood

BEIRERN(H)
RBERRZ D BEERBENT :
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EXE WARZEEH

(continued)
5.2  Operating segment information (continued) 52 REFEERE)
Hi-tech
distribution Fishmeal
and services  and seafood
operation product Branded
SREER operation food Chemical
AR BHREE operation operation Total
PRi5 %75 EmEB  @ERnES L2 ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAT
At 31st March 2009 R-BENFZA
=t+-8
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 499,841 311,262 43,263 803,902 1,658,268
Unallocated assets: AOBEE:
Deferred tax assets EREBIREE 18,810
Current income tax AR BATE
recoverable 170
Cash and cash BeRkBeEE
equivalents EH 1,063,583
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 58,552
Available-for-sale financial REESREE
assets 1,357
Corporate and others EREM 13,981
Total assets per statement of ~ BTB R ERHZ
financial position BEEE 2,814,721
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities ok h=N 49,534 101,678 22,185 225,580 398,977
Unallocated liabilities: APEELE:
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 13,792
Current income tax REEHARE
liabilities 3,267
Borrowings B8 437,296
Convertible bonds ABRES 18,267
Derivative financial MTESRMIA
instruments 9,069
Corporate and others PEREM 3,538
Total liabilities per statement — BIF 4R &RAZ
of financial position aEeR 884,206
There are no significant sales between these operating segments FALELESBRTEERHE(ZZTTN

during the year (2009: Nil). FE)o
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EXE -BWARIEERE)

(continued)
5.2  Operating segment information (continued) 52 EELEERE)
Geographical information HEEH
(a)  Revenue from exteral customers (a) FKEHIEEZHA
The Group's activities are conducted predominantly in Hong AEFEBEPRER - PERMRE
Kong, Mainland China and the Republic of Korea. Revenue BT - BHERDHE D WA TIRE
by geographical location is determined on the basis of the BHEERDHE  ABREEERRL
destination of shipment of goods for hi-tech distribution, BERNEZEMM  ARDERRMH
fishmeal and seafood product, and chemicals products, as ETZRBMBMEMERE

well as the location of service performed for branded food.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TERRERMEEL ZTEBRAS

revenue by geographical location: Uil

2009

—STNE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Hong Kong & 110,699 31,518
Mainland China B A 1,278,842 945,995
Republic of Korea 35 1,338,210 878,111
Asia — Others Il — At 231,368 207,089
Others Hety 208,846 166,816
Total revenue Nt 3,167,965 2,229,529
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EX% WARIEERE)

(continued)
5.2  Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESBERE)
Geographical information (continued) HEFE(E)
(b)  Non-current assets (b) HEREEE
The non-current asset information is based on the location of FRBEEZENIBRBEEMEE
assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax T BTEREEBIARECHESL
assets. -3
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s non- TREGENREL 2 AEEERDE
current assets by geographical location: ENH:
2010 2009
—Z-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Hong Kong a5 449,336 428,021
Mainland China B 128,089 96,794
Republic of Korea B2 743,758 662,547
Asia — Others M — Hfth 613 925
1,321,796 1,188,287
Information about major customers FHEEEFZEN
For the year ended 31st March 2010, there was no single customer BE-_Z-ZHE=-A=1+-HILFE HEE
(2009: Nil) accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue. —REEREBRA10% TN FH(ZETNE :
&)
6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS — NET 6. HftARKE — FE
2010 2009
—Z-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Fair value gains on options liability HEAENA AR 3,816 4,924
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR W — 1,130
Gross rental income N 200 150
Net exchange gains B 5 W % 58 16,316 —
Others Hith 25,652 2,465
45,984 8,669
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

The Group's profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging/

BRATSBATRR/ (B8)
REBZBH AR AR/ (BRENR/ GEA) T

(crediting): &I :
2010 2009
“E-BF —ETNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Cost of inventories sold BEREMR 2,407,193 1,755,363
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value, ~ FEMAZILEFE FE
net 12,950 11,503
Net exchange losses/(gains) EHER/ (has) 38 (13,253) 43,415
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BERRENE 64,686 39,482
Depreciation of investment properties BREMERE 76 76
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESH 20,751 22,553
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights & i}z £ 3§ g #E 531 459
Employment costs (note 8) ERRA (h1:28) 211,342 148,700
Operating lease rental of rented premises HENF KEHERS 40,181 19,924
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets AEHECREERE
(note 19) (H1:£19) — 1,803
Impairment of intangible assets EVEAERE - 43
Impairment of non-current assets FRBEERME - 9
Impairment of non-current assets held for sale BHELERRBEAERE - 17,233
Impairment of trade receivables Bo RN IERE 5,843 6,759
Impairment of other receivables Hth R FUERE 49 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 0% WERXEAE 419 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% BE Rk E 2 EE 494 1,105
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial HEARNESREEZER
assets - 12
Research and development cost [N 1,499 872
Auditors’ remuneration R 2,624 2,660
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held for HERELEFRBDEE 2Kz
sale (35) —
Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments #7428 T Az A4 B (1,980) (4,924)
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8.

—ZEFf=ZA=+—H

EMPLOYMENT COSTS 8. ERARXK
2009
—ZTNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Salaries, wages and allowances ¥4 IERER 197,806 139,307
Retirement benefits RIKER
— defined contribution scheme — REHFGTE 3,763 2,436
Pension costs RIKE KA
— defined benefit plan (note 33) — RERFFE (#7:233) 9,773 6,957
211,342 148,700
(a)  The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the (a) ZFEEERHEFEEE2E-THRBEUTTA

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The monthly contribution of each
of the employer and employees is subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and

thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China. The employees contribute approximately 4% to 22%
of their basic salaries, while the Group contributes approximately
10% to 22% of such salaries and has no further obligations for the
actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond these
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible

for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

One of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities operates a defined
benefit pension plan for its directors and staff. These benefits are
unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method. Actuarial gains and losses are directly recognised in equity
in the period in which they occur. The net commitment for the
defined benefit plan which consists of the present value of pension
commitment less the accumulated prepayments to the Korea National
Pension Service (the “NPS”) is recognised on the statement of

financial position.

Rz BHERReH B ([REEE]) - Zat
BR—ARERFGE - REBERHE - AR
B(EX)REERXEEARERBHERAGE
ZABBRHME DR EED)) 2 5% Rt 3
fEHE - BUEIREEZEARKLRA
1,000/ 7 - MEABMERTBER -

kBN RARAH  AEEREPERN
EEFAERE R RIGHIEN - BRIZEX
HFeN4%E2% 85 MARBRZEHEH
10% Z22% 50 BREHRFN  HEXFE
MERRRERERRBI AL - ZEHKE
BRI EIR R B MR R N2 HRASE -

$ BET-HARZHERAHES AT

REBEMEARSHE - ZSBIAFAS - R
E TE AR AT BIRGAAR N 2 A Th AT AT B fr
REECMHELET BENERBREEL

BREERERNRER - AT BN E 2 &R
FRBERKSAERERN T Korea National
Pension Service ([NPS])z Z5TERFIE  Th
IR R AR -
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8.

EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

The past service cost is recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. If
the benefits are already vested immediately following the introduction
of, or changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognised
immediately.

Separate funding of this liability is not required by the Korean law.

In accordance with the Korea National Pension Law prior to revision,
the jointly-controlled entity had prepaid a portion of its severance
and retirement benefit obligations to the NPS at the rate of 3% of its
payroll expense up through 31st March 1999. Such prepayments have
been offset against its liability for severance and retirement benefits.

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st March 2010
is set out below:

8.

3 NE))

(@)

(b)

(&)

BERBRANEREZRFHRRER DR -
EERNEE - WENERZREEKE SN
RBEREE  RARRZBERBAA -

BEERTEREHMBRAEEUREAS o

BIEIEETA1.Z Korea National Pension Law * 7%
AREHEEEE-NAANE=A=T—B2H
ME Y 2 3% BN E B BHERRKEANEE
FNPS - ZERMFUEC ALEHE REKEF
BEEHE -

ESREREEAEHS

BE 2 ZF-A=t-HIFERESZH
Bz T -

Employer’s

contribution
to retirement

scheme
Salaries RIKETEIZ
e BEHR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors TES
Mr. Géran Sture Malm Goran Sture Malm%t £ 192 1,212 12 1,416
Mr. Savio Chow Sing Nam |ElaEp 192 978 12 1,182
Mr. John Saliling John Saliling%t £ 192 2,538 7 2,737
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadotaft4 192 - - 192
Mr. Henry Kim Cho Henry Kim Cho%t 4 79 — — 79
Mr. Moses Tsang BEELE 79 — — 79
Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai HhAB B & 192 — - 192
Independent non-executive BYkGTES
directors
Mr. Philip Ma King Huen BRERAE 192 — — 192
Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching EREELE 192 — — 192
Mr. Edgar Kwan Chi Ping WaTRE 192 - - 192
Mr. Yu Wang Tak REEEE 192 — — 192
1,886 4,728 31 6,645
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. EARK#)
(b)  Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued) (b) EFREREBAEME(E)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st March 2009 BE_TENF=-RA=T-HUFESEEZH
is set out below: MEsImT :
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
scheme
Fees Salaries RINEHEZ Total
fika e EEHR ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Géran Sture Malm Goran Sture Malm#t 4 192 1,212 12 1,416
Mr. Savio Chow Sing Nam AREEAE 192 1,456 12 1,660
Mr. Henry Kim Cho Henry Kim ChoZt 4 64 326 4 394
Mr. John Saliling John Saliling% & 114 1,501 — 1,615
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadotat £ 192 — — 192
Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai HRiE LS 192 — 4 196
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Mr. Philip Ma King Huen BREXE 192 — — 192
Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching ERIELE 192 — — 192
Mr. Edgar Kwan Chi Ping WaTEE 192 — — 192
Mr. Yu Wang Tak RAEEE 192 — — 192

1,714 4,495 32 6,241
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. ERRAX®)
(c)  Five highest paid individuals (c) IEBBHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group AEERTEEAME RS ARATRERS
for the year including 2 (2009: 3) directors whose emoluments are (ZZTNE: ZR)EE EMEEREXNER
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to ZANTRRE - BN FEB=R(ZTTNEF :
the remaining 3 (2009: 2) individuals during the year are as follows: ME)ALTZHEmT :
2010 2009
—B-%F ZTTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Salaries and allowances HeREH 4,268 3,720
Bonuses b 949 —
Employer’s contribution to retirement RN B2 B
scheme 37 24
5,254 3,744
The emoluments fell within the following bands: HEMSETIEEEEN :
2010 2009
—E-%F ZETHE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AZ AE
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007% 70 1 1
3 2
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9.  FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9. MBUAKRER
2010 2009
- S 33 “ZThE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Finance income: MEBA:
Interest income from bank deposits BT ZFBHA 6,016 5,074
Amortised interest income from subscription SRR ERIE 2 B E A B
receivables (note 23) (f1:#23) - 41,444
6,016 46,518
Finance costs: BRER:
Interest on bank overdrafts and bank loans BRIFA2EREEZRTEIR
wholly repayable within five years RITEHFE 28,836 34,062
Amortisation of interest expenses FE X HE 7,129 4815
Net foreign exchange losses on financing REETDINEEEFE
activities 3,063 1,089
Convertible bonds redeemable within five RAFAR]TREE 2 THRRES
years (note 31) (H1i231) 1,733 1,277
Interest on finance lease obligations RERLNAEZFIE 158 673
40,919 41,916
10. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 10. FIBB(XE) #&E
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2016. Hong Kong AARERCAMERERBEZ S — NG - 557
profits tax has been calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the ERRENLERR SR Z16.5% (ZFETNE -
estimated assessable profit for the year. 16.5% )5 & °
Subsidiaries established in the Mainland China are subject to the Mainland KR BRMR 2 W B AR AR 25% 2 RERK(ZS
China enterprise income tax at the standard rate of 25% (2009: 25%). A five- ZNF : 25%) BMPBEAMEERER - BZTTN
year transitional period with a progressive tax rate from 15% to 25% has F—A-AR ZENBRARERLFERESY FiXgH
been granted from 1st January 2008. 15% B % 25% °
Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland China) profits BINEBRPEAMIAGN) G 2 FIBT R ER 2 A5
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the ERFRNEASBLLHMERR RAZEER BT
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which BRATEHE -

the Group operates.
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10. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT (continued) 10. FiE# (X)) /BB %)
The amounts of income tax (expense)/credit recorded in the consolidated EHRGABRERTZAEH(TL) / BESEE

income statement represent:

2010 2009
—B-BF “ZTNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Current taxation 2HTiE
Hong Kong profits tax BHAEH
— current year — REE (371) (273)
— overprovision in prior years — BEREE 2 BERE — 3,232
Mainland China enterprise income tax HE A 1 X TS
— current year — REE (1,445) (1,016)
— overprovision in prior years — AEERFE 2 BERE - 233
Overseas taxation BN (27,790) 5
Deferred taxation (note 32) EITRIE (f1:252) 11,772 21,190
(17,834) 23,371
The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax differs from the REBZBRAEHAER /(BB 2 ERRRERR
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate DABRER/(BR)ZMETHRRAE EREE
applicable to profit/(loss) of the consolidated entities as follows: ZERMT
2010 2009
—E-B% “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREEHANET/ (B18) 34,070 (159,499)
Tax (charge)/credit calculated at the average REARNE RS BR AR/ (F8)
domestic tax rates applicable to profits/ 2 E R R E 2 BIE
(losses) in the respective places/countries (ZH) /&E (14,818) 28,730
Tax effect of; MBRE:
— income not subject to tax — BARBLZHA 5,779 13,003
— expenses not deductible for tax — AR Z £ (13,914) (23,601)
— effect on deferred tax changes in tax rate — HENEHEEH B ¥ E — 6,078
— overprovision in prior years — BEREE 2 BERE - 3,465
— tax losses not recognised — AERZREER (245) (340)
— others — Hfty 5,364 (3,964)
Tax (charge)/credit BB (i) /BE (17,834) 23,371
For the year ended 31st March 2010, the weighted average applicable tax REE-_Z-TF=A=1+—ALFE BRMNETH

rate was 43.5% (2009: 18.0%). WXL/ 435% (ZZTNE : 18.0%) °
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11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 1. FARHEBAELER
The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in the financial FARDRCHBRELARAREAEREELEAR
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$29,516,000 (2009: 29,516,000 8T (ZETNF : 257,509,000 7T) °
HK$257,509,000).

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. BRER/(B8H)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREARA,/(HE)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s
profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

SREFRA/ (BB DERATREAEEAEE2
BT/ (B8 B R B ME BT B2 IVET
B -

2010 2009
“Z-Zf —ZTNE

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the AARBEBNEEER/ (B8)

Company (HK$'000) (FE1) 16,711 (136,093)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BETLRRZ METEH

in issue 1,279,441,293 95,794,716
Basic earnings/(loss) per share attributable to  AATEAAEEESRERRT,/ (B8)

owners of the Company (HK cents) &) 1.31 (142.07)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has two categories of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: convertible bonds and non-redeemable
preference shares. The convertible bonds and non-redeemable preference
shares are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares, and the
net loss is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense on convertible bonds
less tax effect, if any. No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share presented for the year ended 31st March 2009 in respect of a dilution

as the potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share presented for
the year ended 31st March 2010 as all outstanding convertible bonds and
non-redeemable preference shares have all been converted into ordinary
shares during the year ended 31st March 2010.

SREFRF/(BR)

FREEEN,/(BR)NERAERERRAALET
ZEENHILARD AR YREARZMETIH
fHE ARREMBEEETHEL AR  TBRRESR
TABEEER - AR ES R EDRERERR
ERABRERR ERBRFECHMBRTERES
MBSXEMRREZE(MBELAE - pREE LR
KT EHEER  QUBREIHEE_TTNF=A
=t RLFERF 2 BREABRELRE -

MRNFIER LA MTRRES R AT EEEEREERE
ECT-TE-A-T-RIFEARAREER &
TEHEZE-Z-ZE=A=+-RILFEZIz2E8K
HARMEHBE -
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13.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% BERRB
Group
AEE
Plant and
Furniture, machinery
fixtures and
and office demonstration
Freehold Leasehold equipment Motor machinery ~ Construction
land Buidings  improvements &K $EN vehicles BRERAE i progress Total
KhERLH BT HENREE  RUOTHE R URRERE ERIR g

HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
7T T TET 77 7T 7T 7T 7T

At 1st April 2008; AETERA-R:
Cost A = 13,776 9,091 21,063 5479 43,868 3,358 96,836
Accumulated depreciation Ziflig = (3,075) (25%) (12771) (3,837) (10,021) - (32.229)
Net book amount Eiae - 10,701 6,566 8492 1642 R84 3358 64,606

Yearended 3ist March 2009 BE-EENE

B
Opening net book amount ERERE = 10,701 6,566 8492 1642 33841 3,358 64,606
Additions AE - 3 1,540 4793 824 14,741 18,067 49,958
Acquisition of a jinfy- WELRITHER
controlled entity 141,065 188,981 19,889 1522 104 305,514 591 662,976
Disposals il - = (516) (13) (40) (2.233) = (2862)
Deprecion fi& - (3560) (2800) (2642 (103) (30077) - (39.482)
Transfer to inventories ER5fY - - - - - (16,862) = (16,862)
Other transfers K - 1725 ] 143 = 2869 (4739) =
Exchange realignments S (34,204) (45,373) (4913) (262) (32 (71,946) (1351) (158,121)
Closing net book amount EXERFE 106,831 162477 29762 11,953 2,095 235,853 2128 560,213
At 315t March 2009 and RETNE=A=1-BR
at st April 2009: IINEMA-R:
Cost A 106,831 160471 35,577 24.9% 5,569 286,510 21,42 641,195
Accumulated depreciation ZiE = (7994) (5.815) (13.042) (3.474) (50,657) = (80,982)

Net book amount KHSE 106,831 192477 29762 11983 20% 235,853 21,42 560,213
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. 9% BERRE#®)
Group
S 3
Plant and
Furniture, machinery
fixtures and
and office demonstration
Freehold Leasehold equipment Motor machinery  Construction
land Buldings  improvements &K EEN vehicles BREREE i progress Total
KA%RLH BT HENREE  RUOTRE RE URRERE kRIE g

HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK8 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK8 000 HK$ 000
TET T TET 7T T TET TR 7T

Yearended 3fstMarch 2010 E2-F-5%
SRR
(Qpening net book amount EEERE 106,831 152411 29,762 11,953 2,095 235,853 2,42 560,213
Additions #E - 113 23,176 11,100 1,196 18,1953 21,235 4973
Disposels i - (341) (254) (837) (3) (235) - (1,300)
Depreciation i - (47111) (7,945) (4,585) (398) (47,047) - (64,686)
Impairment W - - - (419) - - - (419)
Transfer from inventories BHERE - - - - - 28,561 - 28,561
Transfer fiom non-current BReRfE
assets held for sale FneAE - - - - - 7,285 - 7,285
Other transfers EfpiEi - - 5,580 - - 2,131 (111) -
Exchange realignments B 2,491 2,11 2,990 22 7 43,428 1139 99,686
Closing net book amount EREESE 129,322 176,809 53,309 17,904 2,935 288,129 35,905 104,313
At 8tst March 2010; R3-Z§=R=1-B:
Cost e 129,322 190,597 66,368 33,533 5,508 384,745 35,905 845,978
Accumulated depreciation EAERAE
and impeiment - (13788) (13,059) (15,629) (2573) (96,616) - (141,665)
Net book amount KHSE 129,322 176,809 53,309 17,904 2,935 288,129 35,905 704,313
The net book amount of the Group’s plant and machinery and demonstration REBRBEREROBEEZHEMMEN RS REN
machinery held under finance leases as at 31st March 2010 was HK$12,000 “E-ZE=A=T-AZEEFEAR12,000% (=
(2009: Nil). TTNGF &) o
Certain property, plant and equipment are pledged as security for the ETHE BERXBEEREANEERITRE ZE
Group's banking facilities. Details are set out in note 37 to the financial R o BRI BREN 7 -

statements.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYE

Group

s
2010 2009
—E-Bf% —TTNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAT
Opening net book amount FHREFE 2,257 2,288
Depreciation nE (76) (76)
Exchange realignments B % 2 45
Closing net book amount FEREMFE 2,183 2,257

At 31st March: R=A=+—A:

Cost HAE 2,650 2,647
Accumulated depreciation e (467) (390)
Net book amount REHE 2,183 2,257

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China and are
held under long term leases.

The share of the fair value of the Group's investment properties was valued
at 31st March 2008 by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
an independent professional valuer, by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties. No further valuation of these
investment properties has been carried out as the directors consider the
market values of these investment properties are not significantly different
from their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

The gross rental income received and receivable by the Group and the
direct expenses in respect of these investment properties are summarised as

follows:

AEEZREMFNRTERY  ZRABOFE -

AEERENEZREAAEIRBLEEEENARF
FATBASEEREXBRERARAR_ZTNE
A=+ RE2ZBUNERFHE IS BRETH
EREY - ANESZAARFRENE L TERRKEE
RBEERRYEEAZR  RUBHZSRENZET
E—PfhE

AEERZERENFC YRR E Rz He WAL
REEX M :

Group
N ]
2010 2009
—Z2-ZF “ZTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Gross rental income A ONt 153 150
Direct expenses HEYH (77) (83)
76 97
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWX#)

All of the Group’s investment properties are held for rental purposes under AEBFRERENEGUCERERE  UBRIHES -
operating leases.

Certain investment properties are pledged as security for the Group’s ETRENECERERAEBRTRECER - #f5
banking facilities. Details are set out in note 37 to the financial statements. BN e R
15. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 15. HEITHRLMERE
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—B-E5% “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Opening net book amount FURETE 22,023 19,566
Additions AE — 2,300
Amortisation B (531) (459)
Exchange realignments I X% (318) 616
21,174 22,023
Less: current portion RS (339) (339)
Non-current portion EREED 20,835 21,684
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights are held under AEEBREE LR T E AR #aik THIH R
the following lease terms: A
2010 2009
i S 33 ZTTNE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FET
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBATFIRAOHE:
Leases of between 10 and 50 years 10E50F 214 5,328 5,481
Outside Hong Kong, held on: ERBUIMNEE L T EAER
Leases of over 50 years BBS0F 2 A 13,084 13,695
Leases of between 10 and 50 years 10E50F 24 2,762 2,847
21,174 22,023
Certain leasehold land and land use right are pledged as security for the ETHEL MR L FEREDKREARERARITAE
Group’s banking facilities. Details are set out in note 37 to the financial LR o FHERR BB RRNEST

statements.
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. | EE
Group
EEE
Development
Customer Technology  Distribution rights and
Goodwill relationships  Trademarks knowhow  agreements franchise fees Software Others Total

it §FRE B8 e MRS SREANGE it Eft it
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
7T 7T i 7T T TET T 7T T

At 1st April 2008; IRTERA-R:
Cost e 380,263 540 15,600 - 16,750 2,150 - 33480 473,653
Accumulated Stk
amortisgon - (i) (1387) - (7909) (201) - (3308 (54000
Net book amount i 380,263 14299 14213 - 8,841 1949 - 82 419,647
Year ended HETRBAESACT-A
3tst March 2009 It5§
Opening net book EEESE
amount 380,263 14,299 14213 - 8,841 19349 - 82 419,647
Addition #E = - - - - mm - - m
Acquisiton of ajointly-  WELRHHER
controlled entity 89,770 66,371 18735 37406 - - 2,857 - 215,139
Impaiment HE = - - - - - - (43) 43)
Amorsetion B4 - (10760) (2251) (3384 (5.583) (241) (320) 0 (25
Exchange Ei5g
realignments - (15,880) (4448) (8,609) - - (669) - (29.806)
Closing net book FREESE
amount 470,033 54,030 26,243 25,213 3,258 2,485 1,868 3 583,161
At3istMarch 2009and  W-FTAF=A=T-AR
at st April 2009: 2ENEMA-R:
Cost AAE 470,033 15,678 29,789 28,330 16,750 291 2164 il 625,782
Accumulated ZilERIE
amorfisation and
inpeiment - (21646) (3.546) B (149) (2) (296) 0 (e

Net book amount FERE 470033 54030 26,243 %213 3,268 2485 1,868 3 583,161
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. B EE®)
Group
AEHE
Development
Customer Technology  Distribution rights and
Goodwill relationships  Trademarks knowhow  agreements franchise fees Software Others Total

g RFRE il LET MRS WREANGE L Eft it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
7T 7T 7T 7T i 7T T TET T

Year ended §EE-3E

315t March 2010 ZR=r-RIEE
Opening net book HRERE

amount 470,033 54,030 26,243 25,213 3,258 2,485 1,668 kil 563,161
Additions #E - - - - - 1,941 - - 1,94
Amorfiaton By - (9,204 (2724) (4584) (3,259) (#30) (449) o @)
Exchange Epig

realignments - 9,747 2,621 4,963 - - 361 - 17,698

Closing net book EREEE
amount 470,033 54,573 26,146 25,492 - 3,996 1,786 2 582,049

At 315t March 2010: RE-RE=A=+-B:

Cost ke 470,033 86,261 32,176 34,295 16,750 4,868 2,619 il 647,713
Accumulated ZHBERAE
amortisation and
inpeiment - () (6630) 6803 (16750) (#72) (639) o)  (65664)
Net hook amount EH5E 470,033 54,573 26,146 25,492 - 3,996 1,786 P4] 562,049
Amortisation of approximately HK$20,751,000 (2009: HK$22,553,000) is B 5 4720,751,000% T(=Z T T N F : 22,553,00078

included in general and administrative expenses. TEFA—RRITHER -
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. #EFEE4L)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to operating

segments. A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented

ARRENH

BENRESESESREARBRLELEL - HB
EEZEESERELIINT

below:
2009
ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FE FEL
Hi-tech distribution and services operation BRRERD HRREER 373,692 373,692
Fishmeal and seafood product operation RPN BEERER 6,571 6,571
Chemical operation LB 89,770 89,770
470,033 470,033

Hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the hi-tech distribution and services operation
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period approved by senior management. The discount rate applied
to cash flow projections is 11% (2009: 11%). Due to the uncertainty, no
growth rate was used to extrapolate the cash flows of the hi-tech distribution
and services operation cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period.

Fishmeal and seafood product operation cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the fishmeal and seafood product operation
cash-generating unit is also determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 10% to 11% (2009: 8% to 10%). Similar to the hi-tech
distribution and services operation, no growth rate was used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the fishmeal and fish oil trading operation cash-generating

unit beyond the five-year period.
Chemical operation cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the chemical operation cash-generating unit
is determined based on the estimate of its fair value less cost to sell with
reference to the transaction entered by the Group on 30th April 2010. Further
details of the transaction is included in note 41 to the financial statements

and in the Company’s announcement dated 4th May 2010.

BRBERT HREBEBRLELEN

BHMRERD HERBEEREELELZAROEHE
TRBEEREBEAENAER - AFENASRAR
BREEREMtAARERFER MBREMIEZ
BeneRi - RERSBMHRMZERERE 1% (=
TENE  1%) - ARFETHBRER - S E6ERE
RERMRMRERDHIRBERELRAEHRE
ZHERE

RO RBEERFBRLELEN

BNREEEREBREEABU Z RO ETRE
ERBEMENEET - ASHEN A RARERE
BEMERBRETFRR MBREMGE RSN
BREA -RERERARMZEREXB10%E 1% (=
TTNE : 8% 210%) - EEHRERD HRRBEH
B YEERERETENENRANBEIEZBRSE
EENRIFHRRZAEAE -

EXBRLELEN

LREBREELEN MBS BN REZZEAEHE
RIB-ZEMA=TRETZR S ZEH AR ERE
ERAETE - RHESHBERUBHREME R
ARAR—Z-ZEAANATEZAL -
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16.

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculations of hi-tech
distribution and services operation, fishmeal and seafood product operation,
and chemical operation cash-generating units for the years ended 31st March
2010 and 2009. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to the budgeted gross margins based on past performance and the

management’s expectations for market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific

risks relating to the relevant units.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In the Company’s statement of financial position, details of interests in

subsidiaries are as follows:

16.

17.

/5, .
7))
BEEE#)

BEZ-ZER-_RRNFZA=+BHLFEZR
HEERDHRREES  BHREEEREBUARI
BEBREELENCRRBEFAERAEIRMRE - U
TAERERETHEREIAMEL < RERERA
kB2 BRI ERR -

HEEME — ANETRE
FENEEEMSERRE

MEBEZEERBE

FRE — MRAZMRZARALRRARHEN 2
BHERR °

WEARER

RARRZBBRARA - RIBRA 2 #H 2 BN
T

2010 2009

—B-ZF —TThE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FAET

Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMMRG R AE - —
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 39(b)) WP A RIFRIB (A7£39(b)) 1,224,995 1,160,057
1,224,995 1,160,057

Impairment A (250,000) (250,000)
974,995 910,057

Less: Current portion RS (3,565) (2,964)
Non-current portion EE i 971,430 907,093




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 7% 3k MY =

31st March 2010 —E—Z& =8 =+—H

[ ) s anancn R

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. WEARERZ)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March 2010: NTARZZE-ZE=A=+—RFEMNBRAZA
B

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of

Percentage of
equity interest

establishment and issued share capital/ held by
kind of legal entity registered capital the Group
Name HMAL/ B Lt B R Principal activities BRTREA/ REEFH
L EEERER TEXEH AMEAGE REERZEDL
American Tec Company Hong Kong, Trading of SMT equipment 60,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company ~ SMT&{EZS of HK$1 each
EREFHBEARAR B BRAA 60,000,000
BREEIBT EER
American Tec Electronic India, Provision of machinery 1,879,000 ordinary shares 100%
India Private Limited* limited liability company installation, training, of INR10 each
EIE - BRAR business promotion, repair 1,879,000/
and maintenance services SREBI0ELL 2R
RetEERE Sl
B3 HERRERE
American Tec Macao Macau, Trading 1 ordinary share of 100%
Commercial Offshore limited liability company g5 MOP100,000
Company Limited* B BRAR 18X E{E100,000:RFF#
X RPIR R RS ZERR
BRAFN
Best Creation Investments  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 60,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited* limited liability company & EEK of US$1 each
RKBRUEHS BB 60,000,000/%
BiREEIET EBR
Glory Ally Limited* British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
KRERAR” limited liability company ~ BE#ERK 1REEIET L BR
EBRIRS ARAA
Good Tactics Limited* British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
ERBRAR" limited liability company % &2k 1REEIET 2 TR
RBRIAS ARAF
MetalAsia Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 2,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited* limited liability company & EK of US$1 each
EBEIRS ARAT 2,000/ &%

HEIETZEER
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17.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. WEASEZ#)

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of

Percentage of
equity interest

establishment and issued share capital/ held by
kind of legal entity registered capital the Group
Name EMAL B R Principal activities BRITRE KEBEFE
a9 EEERER TEEH AMEAGE REEREDLL
NAS American Tec Mainland China, Trading of electronic products, US$300,000 100%
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd (ii)* limited liability company machinery and spare parts 300,000% 7T
LBETRE (FM) B BRAE] and provision of repair and
BRAF (i) installation services
EFER HERTBHEIUR
REBERZERB
Nation Zone Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
Limited (i)* limited liability company % &K 1REEIET 2 TR
EBEIES ARAT
North Asia Strategic (HK) ~ Hong Kong, Management 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited (i) limited liability company &£ 1REENE T2 L @R
LR (BE) ARAR () &F BRAA
North Asia Strategic Singapore, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of S$1 100%
(Singapore) Pte. limited liability company &2 1REEIF IR
Limited g BRAR ZEBR
Perfect Combo Limited Hong Kong, Operation of quick food 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
RIKEHR AR limited liability company restaurants in Hong Kong 1RE AT LR
B BRATA under Burger King brand
TEEBAES T (Burger King)
Mg ERERE
Smart Tactics Limited* British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
BREBRA limited liability company &K 1RAEEIET LR
EBEARS ARAA
Tianjin American Tec Mainland China, Trading of electronic products US$200,000 100%
Trading Company limited liability company and spare parts 200,000% 7T

Limited (ii)*
XERBECERES
BRAR (ii)*

HER BRAR

EfERLERMES
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17.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17.

Percentage of

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of equity interest

establishment and issued share capital/ held by

kind of legal entity registered capital the Group

Name EMAL/ B HR Principal activities BRITRE/ KEBEFE

% EEERER TEER HEMERFE REEEEDLL

TR EEGE TR Mainland China, Trading of electronic products, RMB3,000,000 100%
BRRA (i) limited liability company machinery and spare parts AK#3,000,0007T

FEIR ERAR and provision of repair and

installation services
BYEM BERTHHEIUK
REFBRZERS

TREFEERATIEYEAEEAEERELBAA
EEBERETIENO 2 ALAMBRR - EEAR -
BEMHBERRZFHEFIHEBRATE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Notes: Bt -

(i) ZERRZRAMARRERSFE KRR ZRAT
BERA

(i) Shares of these companies are held directly by the Company. Shares of the
other companies are held indirectly.

HETIRRERMR Y ZINEBEECE  BEHA=T
FEE-TC=FIHZT=NF -

(ii) These are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in Mainland China to (ii)
operate for up to 30 years until 2023 to 2039.

* WHBABBLAKEHAMEBFAALAEHMER 2
b N UNGIE 2

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

HEEHER

AEEERESREEERARAIRBE DL
100,000,000 R A AJ I AT AR EER D - REEH 4

18. JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES 18.

The Group subscribed for 100,000,000 non-redeemable convertible
preferred shares of Coland Group Limited (“Coland”). Upon full conversion

of the preferred shares to ordinary shares, the Group will have a 40% equity
interest in Coland. In accordance with an agreement between the Group and
the other joint venturer, all matters relating to Coland require joint approval
by both parties. Therefore, Coland has been accounted for as a jointly-
controlled entity. Coland is principally engaged in the processing and sale of
fishmeal, refining and sale of fish oil, manufacturing and sale of aquatic feed

products and trading of other raw materials relating to aquatic feeds.

BERAEERE - AEEREAREA0% AR o
REAKERZ-—SECEFT U GE  FlEEL—
NEERZITNE T KRME - Rt - BEEIIA—F
HEZHER - SEIZUZANNIRBEE - 200
BRRHE  KERBERSERHEA R EKER
HABZRMNES
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18. JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) 18.

In addition, the Group acquired 2,699,347 preference shares of TK
Chemical Corporation (“TKC") on 30th June 2008. The preferred shares are
participating, cumulative and voting shares, which are entitled to receive a
minimum cash dividend at 15% of par value annually. In accordance with a
shareholders’ agreement, all major financial and operational matters should
be jointly approved by the Group and other venture parties. Therefore,
TKC has been accounted for as jointly-controlled entity. TKC is principally
engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale polyester fiber, spandex
and PET resin.

The following amounts represent the Group’s 40% share and 33.74% share
of the assets and liabilities, and revenue and expenses of Coland and TKC,
respectively. They are included in the consolidated statement of financial

position and income statement:

AN REER ST N\FRAZTHKETK Chemical
Corporation ([TKC]) 2,699,347 B 1% - ZZ B %M
R2E ZERERZERD  BEGFRAEBL15%
WEBRERSRE - BERRBE - —NEAMBRE
EFHALASERE e S HARRAE - it - TKC
BilA—MERZHES - TKCEEUEERELE - B
B R PET R RE R HEET

WTEBEAEE DRGSR 240%ARTKCZ
3. 74% BEREBUARBAESLH - HELBEHAR
AUMBRRARIBEE

TKC Coland
B
2010 2009 2010 2009
“B-BF “TTNE b 23 ZZTNE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(=7
Assets B
Non-current assets FERBEE 743,760 662,532 110,006 101,248
Current assets MEEE 278,151 156,307 326,940 272,268
1,021,911 818,839 436,946 373,516
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities FRBBE (100,654) (136,181) (16,913) (2,457)
Current liabilities MBEE (500,179) (380,509) (241,983) (210,318)
(600,833) (516,690) (258,896) (212,775)
Net assets EEFE 421,078 302,149 178,050 160,741
Revenue ON 1,754,983 1,202,512 526,413 430,887
Expenses e (1,659,669) (1,254,392) (499,839) (444,849)
Profit/(loss) before tax for the  H] /ERKRFA]
period/year #F/ (B18) 95,314 (51,880) 26,574 (13,962)
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18. JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) 18. HEZHER2)
As at 31st March 2010, capital commitments relating to the jointly-controlled RZZE-—ZF=A=1—H RBEHREELRZH
entities at the end of the reporting period but not yet incurred are as follows: BREMAEEZEARRENT :
2010 2009
“Z-Zf ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Property, plant and equipment: M BERRE:
Contracted but not provided for EHENEVSELE] 10,730 13,446
Authorised but not contracted for BRUEERETA 2,450 —
13,180 13,446

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the jointly-controlled entities as

at 31st March 2010.

The following is a list of the principal jointly-controlled entities, which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed

a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group as at 31st March 2010.

To give details of other jointly-controlled entities would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

RIZ-ZE=A=+—-H HEFHLREHERZ
HARABME -

UTAR-E-—ZRF=A=+-RAZEEHARAHER
ZEE EERRREAREHNERIZY EAEER
FRERIBENASBEEFEIRN) - BEAAR
BEMEREHER ZFEIHESHREBNTE -

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Percentage of
equity interest
indirectly held

kind of legal entity registered capital by the Group
Name EMEL R R Principal activities BRARA/ AEBBEAER
£ EEERER TEEXK AMEARGFE EREEADL
Coland Group Limited Bermuda, Investment holding 150,000,000 ordinary 40%
SR N limited liability company & EZEK shares of HK$0.1 each and
BEE BRRA 100,000,000 preference
shares of HK$0.1 each
150,000,000/ & %
EE0IET B R
100,000,000/ &%
HECIBTZBER
Coland Holdings Company  Hong Kong, Sourcing of fishmeal and fish 5,000,000 ordinary shares 40%
Limited limited liability company oil, investment holding, of HK$1 each
BREERNERAR & BRRA property holding 5,000,000 &%
BHREARE REER HEETZEER

NERE
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18. JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

Name

&8

Coland Shipping Limited
BREMBERAT

Fujian Coland Enterprises
Co., Ltd. (i)*
BEEEEXERAR ()

Fujian Coland Logistics
Co., Ltd. (i)*
BEBEMRARAT ()

Fujian Coland Marine
Bioengineering Co.,
Ltd (i) *

BREEEATENIR
ARAR

Fujian Coland-Nosan Feed
Co., Ltd. (i)*
BEBRAHNBRARF ()

Fuzhou China Seafoods
Co., Ltd (ii) *
BNEGKEBRRTF

Fuzhou Economic
Technical Development
Zone Coland Feeds
Co., Ltd. (ii)*

ENREESEAY
BBRA (i)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
BRI B R
EERERER

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

B ARAA

Mainland China,
limited liability company
FEIR HRAR

Mainland China,
limited liability company

RER BRAR

Mainland China,
limited liability company
FEIR HRAR

Mainland China,
limited liability company

HER BRAR

Mainland China,
limited liability company
FEIR ERAR

Mainland China,
limited liability company
FEIAH  BRAR

Principal activities

TRER

Provision of shipping agency
services

REMBHIZRS

Processing fishmeal, refining
fish oil, trading of processed
fishmeal and refined fish oil,
property holding, investment
holding

AR BRA NIEH
FERBHES NERE
REER

Sale and supply of fishmeal,
property holding, investment
holding

BREERGRE NESE
RAZK

Manufacturing and sale of fish
oil
RMEEREE

Production and distribution
of feeds

FARAEERDH

Engaged in aquaculture
business

BRKEREBES

Manufacturing and sale of
aquatic feeds
KERREERHE

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE/
AMEAGE

10 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10 BREEIET
Eak

RMB52,000,000
AR#52,000,0007T

RMB42,000,000
AR™42,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000
AR#20,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR#20,000,0007t

RMB3,000,000
AE3,000,0007T

US$2,500,000
2,500,000% 7T
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18. HEZLHIERE®)

Percentage of
equity interest
indirectly held

by the Group
EEEREER
ARHAML

40%

40%

40%

40%

24%

32%

40%
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18. JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued) 18.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Percentage of
equity interest
indirectly held

kind of legal entity registered capital by the Group
Name EMAL BRI R Principal activities BRARA/ AEEBERER
A% EERBER TEXH AMEARFE AEBADL
Joint Group Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 10,300 shares of US$1 each 24%
BREEERAR limited liability company B 10,3008 &%
RRELEHS BB AE1ETZ KRG
Ocean Resource Macao Macau, Sourcing of fishmeal and MOP500,000 40%
Commercial Offshore limited liability company crude fish oil, property 500,000
Limited* RF BRAT holding
BRRPTR R R BRRERMRE WERE
ARAF
TK Chemical Corporation  Republic of Korea, Manufacture and sale of KRW40,000 million 33.74%
limited liability company polyester fiber, spandex 40,000,000,000% &
#E R A and PET resin
Thel e B AE RPETHIR
BEREE
Wuhan Coland Aquatic Mainland China, Purchase, processing, sale and US$5,100,000 40%
Products and Food Co., limited liability company export of seafood 5,100,000% T
Ltd (i)* FEIR HRAR KERBYE NI HER
REREKERR A
BRAF ()
REmEFAERAT () Mainland China, Processing and distribution of US$1,800,000 40%

limited liability company

aquatic feeds

1,800,000% T

FEIR ERAR KERBMIRAH
Notes: it -
(i) These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises. (i) ZERRNEBELE
(ii) These companies are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures. (ii) ZERRDTPIMEELE
. Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & * VHERBEARKGHRAEBARRKEHDEHM2

Young global network.

B R R ARAES -
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 19. THHEESRMEE
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—B-BF —TTNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FET
At the beginning of the year F4) 1,357 3,481
Acquisition of a jointly-controlled entity Wi AR E 88 - 9,513
Changes in fair value in other comprehensive Hth 2B E 2 A BEEE
income 1,575 193
Disposals HE - (9,512)
Impairment wE - (1,803)
Exchange realignments EH AR 76 (515)
At the end of the year FXR 3,008 1,357
Available-for-sale financial assets include AHEESREERENT:
the following:
Listed securities — overseas FmEH — 3,006 1,356
Unlisted securities — overseas FELEmES — B 2 1
3,008 1,357

HE-TTNF-A=T-HILFE LTREREZ
MEAETY EFRAEBTHET LMRERER
WE YREZE-_TTNE=-A=+-BLFEZRE
BREXEAMNEFE1803,000EFL  BEERERE
Ef5fE2 193,00087T °

For the year ended 31st March 2009, there was a significant decline in the
market value of the listed equity investments. The directors considered that
such a decline indicated that the listed equity investments had been impaired
and an impairment loss of HK$1,803,000, which included a transfer from the
investment revaluation reserve of HK$193,000, had been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st March 2009.

Available-for-sale financial assets as at the end of the reporting period were REFERR  IRLESHEENATRBEREE

denominated in Japanese Yen and Korean Won.
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20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20. HttERBHEE
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—B-Bf —EThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Rental and other deposits HekEmZe 11,836 9,300
Prepayments on construction costs BRNREER 580 11,672
12,416 20,972
21. INVENTORIES 2. RE
Group
S |
2010 2009
“E-Bf ZZThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Raw materials R 158,792 119,398
Finished goods S m 70,662 143,578
Consumables HRER 1,766 2,714
231,220 265,690
The net book amount of the Group’s inventories held under finance leases AEEREREMNBEELFER-STNE=A
as at 31st March 2009 was HK$15,822,000. No inventories were held under =+—-AZEEFER15822,0008T c RZE—FF
finance lease as at 31st March 2010. ZRA=1—H0 YERERERARELEE -
Certain inventories are pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities. ETHEETUERERASERTRECER - FHH

Details are set out in note 37 to the financial statements. REI SRR ST
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, ESEWFERHEMEKFIE
Group Company
AEE b ONG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-B% “TTNE E-Bf “TTNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(g=31)
Trade and bills receivables B RUTERENEE 355,415 184,485 - =
Less: Impairment of trade A BHRNFIERA

receivables (20,775) (15,306) - —
Trade and bills receivables, net B HRMFERENEE -

(note (a)) EHEMH (2) 334,640 169,179 — —
Prepayments BII50E 28,530 10,022 - —
Deposits to suppliers MEER Y Ee 405 1,102 — =
Rental deposits Heke 3,012 1,896 - —
Interest receivables FEWFI B 938 743 112 101
Finance lease receivables (note (b))  BETLNEUGIE (A (b)) 1,014 2,535 - —
Other receivables Hio R E 16,860 13,531 - =

385,399 199,008 112 101
(a)  Trade and bills receivables (a) EZEKFEREKEE
The Group generally requires letter of credit or documents against AEE—KRENEREIRNZRE  BTEHNE
payment, with some cases granting a credit period of 30 to 90 days. FERNTI0BZ0ATEEEH -RF—
At 31st March 2010, the aging analysis of trade and bills receivables TEZA=+—R BHREKFERELRZEEZ
is as follows: REAITIT :
Group
r&H
2010 2009
i S 33 ZTTNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FET
90 days or less QHIAT 301,703 131,391
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 27,737 17,610
181 to 270 days 181HZE270H 2,502 5,603
271 to 365 days 271HZ365H 914 3,384
Over 365 days BB 365 H 1,784 11,191
334,640 169,179
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22.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on letter of
credit or documents against payment, except for new customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Since the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration

of credit risk.

Trade receivables less than six months past due are normally not
considered as impaired except for the balance of HK$950,000
(2009: HK$30,000). As at 31st March 2010, trade receivables
of HK$5,199,000 (2009: HK$20,178,000) were past due but not
impaired, as they are related to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of

these trade receivables is as follows:

22.

B EWREAR A RKTEE)

(@)

ERRURERERREE)

FEEEERF BRI ERERERNR
RE ERRP—RRERENK - ARES K
HERWER 2 UGB M R BRI A ZERE
EEER - BREEE SRR QMR - t
RAKEZBSRYFBSRAEBTREF 1
PEEREHZEERR

TRANEAZESEUFEBRBELTRA
HE A BN E0,000EL(ZSF
NE 30,0008 7T) BIBHISN - RZFB B4
ZA=+—0 5199000 L(ZETNF:
20,178,000/ 70) 2 E SR K A B EE L &
AE - DEAERE S RKES R AT
BERCHRIBIRP - ZEEIRRTEZE
RAWIT :

Group
AEE

2010 2009
“E-%f “ZTHF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FHET

Over 6 months and up to 9 months 6fEAZ9MEA 2,502 5,603
Over 9 months BE9fEA 2,697 14,575
5,199 20,178
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22, BEREWFERAMEKRES)
(a)  Trade and bills receivables (continued) (a) EZEWFEREURES)

As at 31st March 2010, trade receivables of HK$20,775,000 (2009:
HK$15,306,000) were impaired and fully provided for. The individually

impaired receivables mainly relate to certain manufacturers, which

are in unexpected difficult economic situations. The aging of these

receivables is as follows:

RZZ-FE=R=+—H"20,775000% T
(ZZTNF : 15,306,000/ ) 2 & 5 MK
BB REY 2 L RE o ERIRREZE
WHEBEFESRETRABAGERS 2 2
7 - RERWTE BRI

Group

AEE
2010 2009
“Z2-Z2F —ZTNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Less than 6 months 6fEAR 950 30
Over 6 months and up to 9 months 6EAZ9MEA 239 1,536
Over 9 months BE9fEA 19,586 13,740
20,775 15,306

Movements on the impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

BHEBTRRE EHIT :

Group
A5E

2010 2009
-g-3% = LIF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

At the beginning of the year ) 15,306 8,285

Acquisition of a jointly-controlled entity WEAREHIER - 448

Impairment of trade receivables B SN IERE 5,843 6,759
Receivables written off during the year as FRME AT E 2 R

uncollectible (1,226) —

Exchange realignments Rk 852 (186)

At the end of the year FX 20,775 15,306

The creation or release of provision for impaired receivables has

been included in selling and distribution expenses in the income

statements. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally

written off when there is no expectation of recovering the amounts

any further.

BRERKE B ERESIEOEIARSER
ZHERDHERR - BRI EE - FRER
B AN ERMR 2 AR T IAME -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 7% 3k MY =

31st March 2010 —E—Z& =8 =+—H

[ R +cxsenancn

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22, BEREGWFERAMEKNREZ)
(a)  Trade and bills receivables (continued) (a) EZEKTERENZEE)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills receivables are AEBEEHRNFIERIERZEEEATIE
denominated in the following currencies: BRE
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—B-EF “TTNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 888 804
US dollar e 132,742 72,415
Japanese Yen Bt 84,504 9,316
Korean Won R 81,083 36,188
RMB AEH 32,596 41,981
Other currencies Hin &% 2,827 8,475
334,640 169,179
Certain bill receivables are pledged as security for the Group’s ATRUZEBEEREAREBRITRE ZE
banking facilities. Details are set out in note 37 to the financial R o FHBHRIMBREMFTIT7
statements.
(b)  Finance lease receivables (b) EERNEKTE:
Group
A5E
2010 2009
—E-BF —ZTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Finance lease receivables are analysed as BMARAEKFTIEATIT :
follows:
Finance leases — gross receivables BERL — ElEESE 1,027 2,699
Unearned finance income EN GG ON (13) (164)
1,014 2,535
Finance lease receivables: BEROEYE -
— Within 1 year — 1EHUR 1,014 2,535
(¢)  The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting (€) RESHR SREERRAESEUFERH

period is the carrying amount of the trade and other receivables. MR 2 BRE A -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % ¥ 3% MY =

31st March 2010 — 2 —ZF=HA=+—H

134 | NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED BWANINIS/YEE{=ZI0I5q) 2009/10

23 SUBSCRIPTION RECEIVABLES 23, REEWFE
Until 28th February 2010, the Company had issued a total of 13,373,254,851 BE-Z-TF-A=1)\B ' ARABEBRERTA
non-redeemable preference shares, with a par value of HK$0.01 #£13,373,254,851 R AT EEE B %2 ik + B AREE0.01
each, through placements, for an aggregate amount of approximately BT SIALE492,273,037,0008 T - SBEEHE
HK$2,273,037,000. Details of each placement are set out below: HAmT
First Second
Tranche of Tranche of
The First The First Second
Placement Placement Placement
E-HEREE EHEREE E-REE
Month of issue February and September December
March 2006 2006 2007
BEAH —ZTRF NS “TTEF
—AKk=R A +=A
Number of non-redeemable preference  B%{72 NAEEIE£RER
shares issued 7,383,166,793 792,848,020 5,197,240,038
Subscription price per share (HK$) SRABBEET) 0.1566 0.1566 0.1910
Aggregate subscription price (HK$) BARBEETL) 1,156,204,000 124,160,000 992,673,000
The subscription prices are payable in cash by the subscribers in four AEEBEMABADOHEEUR LI MINETEHE
equal instalments for the First Placement. For the First Tranche of the First £ HRE-REREE  ARAEERBERERZ
Placement, the first instalment was received by the Company in February and EENE-AR=-AKEIEBRTIE RS :?rté;ﬁﬁﬂa
March 2006 upon completion of the subscriptions. For the Second Tranche £ ARRIBRE-ZENENARIEHFTE  — K
of the First Placement, the first instalment was received by the Company in N HRERAARAREELR %ﬂﬁj\ﬂuﬁ"_q EYN
September 2006. The second and third instalments have been received by E+ART-AKE  # THBECAARGR-ZEZAN
the Company in October and December 2006 respectively in accordance FZRIKER -

with the terms of the preference shares. The remaining instalment has been

received by the Company in February 2009.

The subscription prices of the Second Placement are payable in cash by the E_REEZABEERD ﬁ%}\“*ﬁﬁ_ﬁa’ﬁwy%%fz
o ARBIEEE R ERETKE  R_FTtF
A

—

subscribers in three equal instalments. The first instalment has been received

by the Company in December 2007, upon completion of the subscription T AREIEERUE - 4 T M3 AIEHEEE%HXZM
of the Second Placement. The remaining two instalments have been drawn FR-_ZTNEFE_RHE -

down in February 2009 in accordance with the terms of the preference

shares.

The outstanding unpaid balances of the subscription prices were received by ARAERZZENESAEMNBRREBZ RN
the end of June 2009. e

The preference shares were automatically converted into ordinary shares on BEBRER-T-SF-_A-+\BEDLAARLE

28th February 2010. & o
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23 SUBSCRIPTION RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. RBEWFEZ)
The subscription receivables recognised in the statement of financial position PR R ER 2 RERYGRIBH BT
are calculated as follows:
2010 2009
—B-EF “ZTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Subscription receivables R R RIE 1,622,055 1,622,055
Less: Future interest B RRAE (137,305) (137,305)
Add: Amortised interest income 0 BSERBWA 137,305 137,305
1,622,055 1,622,055
Less: Subscriptions received R BB HE (1,622,055) (1,609,055)
Subscription receivables R R A — 13,000
The carrying amounts of subscription receivables approximate to their fair RERGFE RREREALEES
values.
For the year ended 31st March 2009, amortised interest income recognised BE_ZTNGE=ZA=T-HLFE BRALKAY
as income and included in finance income amounted to HK$41,444,000 (note AR B 2 B 35T B U B 41,444,000 T (FT3E
9), which was calculated using the effective interest method by applying the 9) * HREBFEEINC% E6.5% L BRFFEHE o
effective interest rates ranging from 6% to 6.5% per annum.
24 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 24, BEHEZERBEE
Group
AEE
2010 2009
i S 33 “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
At the beginning of the year =) 6,264 —
Acquisition of a jointly-controlled entity WL RE B E — 25,875
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEENE  BERZ (7,285) —
Impairment R{E - (17,233)
Disposals HE (18) —
Exchange realignments [ X % 1,039 (2,378)
At the end of the year EX — 6,264

Non-current assets held for sale represent plant and machinery of a jointly-
controlled company, which are expected to qualify for recognition as a

completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

BELEZFRPBERAREN DA ZME RS -
BERSBASRA —FANAERBERAE K H

==
G
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 25. RERREFEHEARCEARTEN

DEPOSITS
Group Company
b8 - | NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
“2-%8% “TTNE “E-%% —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FET
(Restated)
(&mE5)
Cash at banks and on hand ROIRFERS 916,258 886,558 725,425 853,672
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 216,923 177,025 216,652 176,758
Cash and cash equivalents RekHEEEER 1,133,181 1,063,583 942,077 1,030,430
Pledged bank deposits BHEBETTR 84,381 58,552 — —
1,217,562 1,122,135 942,077 1,030,430
As at 31st March 2010, the effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits RZZE-ZF=A=1+—H ' EHRIGERZEREH
was approximately 0.13% (2009: 0.61%) per annum. These deposits have an EHE0.13% (ZFTNF 1 061%) - UEFRZTY
average maturity of 14 days (2009: 67 days). HHEE14R(ZSEAF 1 670)
As at 31st March 2010, the pledged deposits were pledged as collateral RZZ—ZF=A=+—0 BEAGIEREALE
for the Group’s banking facilities and the effective interest rate on pledged BRTBE BERAR  MEEREOERCEREFFX
bank deposits was 1.91% (2009: 1.40%) per annum. These deposits have an B1.91%(ZZ2TNE  1.40%) - HEFR 2 FHHH
average maturity of 281 days (2009: 300 days). HA281B(ZZZNEF : 300R) °
Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits were denominated in RekAeEEEE REEARTEFAUTIEEAE
the following currencies: fif :
Group Company
S | NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-%f “TThEF —E-ZF “ITNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&g=E5)
Hong Kong dollar BT 953,888 1,040,161 942,077 1,030,430
US dollar e 50,278 18,725 — —
RMB AR 102,837 36,381 - —
Japanese Yen =l 53,860 12,499 — —
Korean Won 2R 46,473 13,514 — —
Other currencies Hir gk 10,226 855 — =
1,217,562 1,122,135 942,077 1,030,430
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 25, HeRRESEEERCEARTENG)
DEPOSITS (continued)

The Group's cash and cash equivalents denominated in Renminbi are AEENARBREM RS RASFERADERR
deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion of these Renminbi FERMET - RBRHEAAREAER 2 E5rAINE
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds B ESELTEAMER PE ARG IMNEE
out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign AR A RAEBIFTARR

exchange control promulgated by the Mainland China Government.

26 SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRAX
Ordinary shares Preference shares
LER BER
Number Ordinary Number Preference
of shares  share capital of shares  share capital Total
RAEA LERK RAEAE BERBRA faE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
& FET T FET FAT
Authorised: EIE ¢
At 31st March 2009 and 2010 RIBENFR-Z-ZF
=ZA=1-H 40,000,000 400,000 30,000,000 300,000 700,000
Analysed as — BETFIAH —
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HREBEC.01 AT EEE 40,000,000 400,000 — = 400,000
Preference shares of HK$0.01 each  SREE0.01 57Tz Bk = = 30,000,000 300,000 300,000
40,000,000 400,000 30,000,000 300,000 700,000
Issued: 34T
At 1st April 2008 and RZEENERNA-BR
1st April 2009 “ETNENA-A 95,795 958 13,373,254 133,733 134,691
Conversion of preference shares SAEER 13,373,254 133,733 (13,373,254) (133,733) —
Conversion of convertible bonds HBTRRES 127714 1,277 = = 1217
At 31st March 2010 W=E-FF=f=1-H 13,596,763 135,968 — — 135,968
The preference shares are non-redeemable and are convertible into ordinary BERDAAER - VEZE-RELERL —REBRL
shares in the Company at a conversion ratio of one preference share into one RBLPIRBARAEEBR - EEERER=S—
ordinary share. All the preference shares were converted into ordinary shares EFE_A-T/\BEBAELER -

on 28th February 2010.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 3 B =

31st March 2010 —E—ZHF = F=+—H

138 | NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED RWANINIS/AYEE{=ZI0I5q) 2009/10

27 RESERVES 27. f#f
Group
458
Equity Retained
portion of Investment Cumulative profits/
convertible revaluation translation  (accumulated
Share  Contributed bonds Capital reserve Treasury ~ adjustments losses)
premium surplus TRRESR 2 reserve h& shares Bt REEH/ Total
RtaE R4ER  REdR LS EfRR ERR EfRE  (ZfER) g
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
7.7 TEr TEL 7.4 794 & 7.3 7.7 AT
Balances at 1st April 2008 W=F5)\EMA-B7E5 1,992,636 8,984 6,388 2700 (193) - 12978 (2r521) 1995965
Loss for the year EpER - - - - = = —  (1%6003)  (136,093)
Changes in fair value of IhEeRER M ERD
avalable-for-sale (1)
financal assets (note 19) - - - - 193 - - - 193
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - = = (2.700) = = (1055) 2700 (1,085)
Actuarial gain fom pension ~~ #fkE 2 EENE = - - - - - - 5692 5692
Curency tranglation differences &% #Z8 - - - - = = (72,316) = (72316)
Balances at 31st March R-EENEZAZT-BR
2009 and 15t Apr 2009 “EEEMA-B 2N 1,992,635 8984 6,368 - - — (0% (528 1792386
Profitfor the year ERgH - - - - - - - 16,711 16,711
Conversion of convertiole honds BT &R E% 25,11 - (6,388) - - - - - 18,723
Changes n far value of TiHEsREE 07 ERE
avallable-or-sale financial (i)
assets (note 19) - - - - 1,575 - - - 1,575
Actuarialloss frompension k4 2 B2 - - - - - - - (653) (653)
Receipt of reasury shares YBERR - - - - - (12,041) - - (12,041)
Disposal of reasury shares—— EERR (8,284) - - - - 12,941 - - 4,657
Curency translation differences &% 28 - - - - - - 50,509 - 50,509
Balances at StstMarch 2010~ W-F-BE=A=1-RAz&H 2,009,462 8,984 - - 1575 - (0.884)  (139470) 1,870,967
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27 RESERVES (continued) 271. @)
Company
KRR
Equity Retained
portion of profits/

convertible  (accumulated

Share  Contribution bonds losses)
premium surplus  TERES REEH/ Total
RAEE BEdER ExHs (RFTER) a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FET T FET FET
Balances at 1st April 2008 RZZZNFHNA—Az &% 1,992,635 8,984 6,388 44,404 2,052,411
Loss for the year ERER — = = (257,509) (257,509)
Balances at 31st March 2009 and  R=ZTNE=ZA=T—H}
1t April 2009 “TENEMA-AZER 1,992,635 8,084 6,388 (213,105) 1,794,902
Loss for the year FRER - - - (29,516) (29,516)
Conversion of convertible bonds ¥ ik E% 25,111 - (6,388) - 18,723
Balances at 31st March 2010 W-E-TEZA=+-A7EH 2,017,746 8,084 - (242,621) 1,784,109
28 BORROWINGS 28. f&
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BEANET :
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—B-EBF% ZTTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank borrowings (note (a)) RITEE (Wit (a) 387,429 430,409
Finance lease obligations (note (b)) RARNRENZ (b)) 46 6,887
Total borrowings BELEE 387,475 437,296
Less: Non-current portion o EREHS (50,668) (75,939)
Current portion ik kw8 336,807 361,357
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28 BORROWINGS (continued) 28. fEE#®)
(a)  Bank borrowings (@) ®ITEE
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-2F “ZThF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FAT
Non-current E it
Bank loans — secured RITER — BHEA 34,102 73,436
Bank loans — unsecured BITER — EHA 15,473 —
Mortgage loans — secured RIBES — BHEA 1,066 2,457
50,641 75,893
Current RE
Discounted bills with recourse — secured BRMBRERE — A 23,321 58,040
Trust receipt loans — secured ERMEER — BEA 99,400 88,401
Bank loans and overdrafts — secured ROERREY — AHEE 211,524 171,860
Bank loans — unsecured BITER — EHA 2,395 35,237
Mortgage loans — secured RIBER — BERE 148 978
336,788 354,516
Total bank borrowings RITEERE 387,429 430,409
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are denominated in the RITEEZRABETATIEE BB :

following currencies:

2009

—ZTNE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 30,520 5,438
US dollar XL 135,490 128,612
RMB ARE 51,236 26,855
Japanese Yen BT 5,568 24,467
Korean Won R 160,636 239,293
Other currencies Hi g 3,979 5,744
387,429 430,409
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28  BORROWINGS (continued) 28. fEE#)
(a)  Bank borrowings (continued) (a) BRITBEA)
The effective interest rates (per annum) at the end of the reporting RERERR BREME(RER )T -

period were as follows:

At 31t March 2010 At 31st March 2009
H-%-3E=A=1-A RZEENEZA=1-R
Hong Kong Us Japanese Korean | Hong Kong US Japanese Korean
dollar dollar RMB Yen Won dollar dollar RMB Yen Won

B E AE¥ in =] AT i AR An &8
Discounted bl HRkEZE
with recourse el - - 1%

- LA - 155% 1% T
Trustreceiptloans — EEAEER - 22%43% - 21% - = 4.8% 79% 32% =
Bank loans and FER
overdrafts KX 2.3%:6.3% 22%  5.2%5.8% - 6.2%6.7% 4.6% 6.4% 6.4% - B.0%86%
Mortgage loans REER 2.8% - - - - 28% = = = =
The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings approximate to their fair ARER VBN TEX  HAARTEEZE
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant. EEEERAAEEE -
Bank borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar, WA - E7 - ATRBEABMZRITERER
Japanese Yen and Korean Won are being charged interest at floating FRENERERERITAZFEIBIRTA
rates at HIBOR or LIBOR plus 0.4% to 3.0% per annum or at prime EHRBMN0.4% E£3.0% ZHBIRE HER
rates less 0.5% to 2.5% or plus 1.5% to 2.0% per annum or fixed rates F A EK0.5%FE2.5% 5 MN1.5% E2.0%35K N
ranging 1.5% to 2.8% per annum offered by various banks. F1.5%E2.8% L EEFHEGE o
Bank loans denominated in RMB are being charged interest at MARBREN 7 FIERRFHFFNENT
floating rates between 110% and 120% of the People’s Bank of China FEARBITEEFER110% = 120% ZN T
Base Lending Rate per annum or fixed rates ranging 5.0% to 5.8% 5.0% £ 5.8% 2 EIEFHEFTE
per annum.
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITEERERNA TEHEER :
Group
A5H
2010 2009
—E-Bf% —TTNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year 1EMNR 336,788 354,516
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 9,976 74,454
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5%F 40,232 842
Over 5 years BRSF 433 597
387,429 430,409
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28 BORROWINGS (continued) 28. fEE#®)
(b)  Finance lease obligations (b) REBRNRE
At 31st March 2010, the Group had obligations under finance leases RZZ-ZFE=A=1—H F5EREREH
repayable as follows: WABRZEENT :
2010 2009
—E-BF% “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Finance lease liabilities — minimum lease REBNEE — REESE
payments:
— Within 1 year — 15 LA 23 7,070
— Between 1 and 2 years — 1225 23 23
— Between 2 and 5 years —2E5% 6 29
52 7,122
Future finance charges on finance leases BERNZARBEER (6) (235)
Present value of finance lease obligations BERNAEZRE 46 6,887
The present value of finance lease obligations ~ RiERAEE ZREWT :
is as follows:
— Within 1 year — 15UR 19 6,841
— Between 1 and 2 years — 1526 21 19
— Between 2 and 5 years —2E5% 6 27
46 6,887
29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29, ESREAFERHMEMNRE
Group Company
5B NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Bf “IThE “E-ZF “ZTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FAT
Trade and bills payables B HENFEARENSE 547,847 261,466 - =
Accrual for operating expenses eI RS 30,483 48,227 1,150 1,616
Receipts in advance BUFE 52,337 18,067 - =
Other payables HinERNFIE 50,786 23,943 - —
681,453 351,703 1,150 1,616
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 2. EZRENREREMGEARES
The aging analysis of trade and bills payables is as follows: BIORNFTERERNRRZRRAMNOT
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FE FAET
90 days or less Q0 HIMUT 542,042 249,528
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 2,087 3,521
181 to 270 days 181 HE270H 96 853
271 to 365 days 271HZE365H 455 2,221
Over 365 days fBi8 365 H 3,167 5,343
547,847 261,466
The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables are denominated in the BORNFERERRE 2 REEN TSR BER -
following currencies:
Group
r£E
2010 2009
—B-ZF ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEn FAT
Hong Kong dollar BT 12,800 3,064
US dollar E 365,157 199,237
RMB AR 9,254 13,263
Japanese Yen = 119,019 18,267
Korean Won B2E 39,002 24,955
Others currencies Hif gk 2,615 2,680
Total ek 547,847 261,466
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30.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

30. fTEEMIA

Group
r&E
2010 2009
—Z-%F ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE FAT
Forward foreign exchange contracts, carried at fair ~ &EISNEAL) + B2 L BEFIR
value (note (a)) (K17 (a)) 189 =
Options liability (note (b)) BEAE WA (D) 6,900 9,069
7,089 9,069
Less: Non-current portion A ERBES (6,900) (9,069)
Current portion REHD 189 —
Notes: i
(a) At 31st March 2010, the total notional principal amount of the outstanding (a) R-ZE-FE=A=1+—0  KBIZEHINERY
forward foreign exchange contracts was approximately HK$37,154,000. At 31st ZABEAEBBENAIT 540008 T R=ZF—%F
March 2010, fixed exchange rates from US dollar to RMB ranged from 6.68 to FZA=ZT-B EnAAREZEAEEXNT6.68
6.83 and fixed exchange rates from Japanese Yen to US dollar from 0.01088 to 2683 MARXLAETZETERN T0.01088F
0.01090. 0.01090 °
(b) On 26th June 2008, the Group entered into a shareholders’ agreement (b) RZZFENEAAZ+TAR AEETURRGZ

(the “Shareholders’ Agreement”) as part of the condition precedent to the
completion on the acquisition of 33.74% of the total issued share capital of
TKC. Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement, the Group has granted a call
option (the “SMG Call Option”) to SMG SMT Chemical Co., Ltd. (“SMT") and
TK Chemical Holdings Co. Ltd. (“TKCH") (collectively “SMG"). At the same
time, the Group was granted a put option (the “NASS Put Option”) by SMG to
dispose of its TKC shares. Pursuant to the SMG Call Option, SMG shall have
the right but not the obligation to purchase up to 50% of the TKC shares held
by the Group. Pursuant to the NASS Put Option, the Group shall have the right
but not obligation to dispose of its TKC shares. Details of the SMG Call Option
and the NASS Put Option are disclosed in the circular dated 21st July 2008.

The fair value of the SMG Call Option and NASS Put Option was estimated at
the issuance date using the Black Scholes Pricing Model and the change in
fair value in this financial instrument is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(TRE W DIERTRKETKC 33.74% B ETRA
BB EREEZ— RERERZ  AEEERL
REHE([SMGRE S |) FSMG SMT Chemical
Co., Ltd. ([SMT]) & TK Chemical Holdings Co. Ltd.
(TTKCHD)(ATBISMG) - Ffs - REBER HRE
HAHE(TNASS SRk % |) T SMG LA iE & E TKC R A7 ©
BESMGREHE SMGEREERELHEASE
BB ZTKCRIN 5% 50% ° 18 1ENASS 2% H4E - A&
SEEEEERTLERLTKCRI - SMGREHER
NASS R EiiE 2 BN A AZESNELA=+—
BZBRPRE

SMG R AR RENASSRE A2 AR ERETRH
RN R—F RN PR ERA LT MEeRT
AZARERPRGARERTHER -
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31.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In August 2005, the Company issued convertible bonds at a face value
of approximately HK$20,000,000, which were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The convertible bonds have a maturity date in August 2010 or can be
converted into a total of approximately 127,713,920 shares in the Company,
with a par value of HK$0.01 each, at the holders’ option, at HK$0.1566
per share. In addition, the holders had the right to request the Company to
redeem in whole or in part the outstanding bonds on 7th December 2007. All

bonds were converted into ordinary shares on 28th February 2010.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined upon issuance of the bonds. The liability
component is subsequently stated at amortised cost. The fair value of the
liability component was calculated using a market interest rate for a term loan
offered to the Group of 8.0% per annum. The remaining amount, representing
the value of the equity conversion component, is included in shareholders’

equity as other reserves.

The convertible bonds recognised on the statement of financial position are

calculated as follows:

31.

THRRES

RZZTTRFENR - RAAIETHEELD A 20,000,000 %
TZABRES  ZETRREFAETAEN

NRREHFZHSERA-T—TENA  SFEATE
BRER0.1566 /B TS EH LR AR £41127,713,920
BEREECOVETL LB - W HEABEER
AARRZEELF+ AL ABEZHKEH H KA
BzEs EESER-_F—ZTE-_A-T/\Ri#
RLBR -
BEDHREZIABS AR ENRETESKE
T BESIHENBHERANE - AEBH 2 AAE
THRASERERM  ERERTIHENEL 0% E -
BE(ARR AN 2 BE) D ARRERERELM
fafE -

REBIRRRHER 2 TR ESR TR TR E

2009
“TTNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FET
Face value of convertible bonds issued on RZZTRENANBAETZ

8th August 2005 RRES 2 EE 20,000 20,000
Equity component BEmED (6,388) (6,388)

Liability component on initial recognition on R=ZZRE/\ANBNSHERZ
8th August 2005 BESS 13,612 13,612
Accrued interest expenses FEETAIS 6,388 4,655
Conversion into ordinary shares RARTAER (20,000) —
Liability component at 31st March R=ZA=+—BZEEHH - 18,267

Interest expenses on the bonds are calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate of 8.0% per annum to the
liability component.

Accrued interest expenses recognised as expenses and included in finance
costs amounted to HK$1,733,000 (2009: HK$1,277,000) (note 9).

BEZASTHNRERFR LR ABEL ABREF
RG0%FE o

BRALH YA ARBEER 2 EHFE I H
£1,733000% T (ZF F 1L F:1,277,000% T )
(FzE9)
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. EEHE
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability BERBENRARERAEORNERZERORERZ
method using the applicable tax rates which are expected to apply at the ERNERERER2HE o

time of reversal of the temporary difference.

The movements in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as follows: EEHERE/(BRE)FE2 2PN
2010 2009
i S 33 “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year ) 5,018 12,433
Recognised on acquisition of a POUREE $: 1 ) B BERSRERR
jointly-controlled entity — (36,718)
Recognised in the income statement (note 10)  REXRXRHER (M3 10) 11,772 21,190
Exchange realignments fE A% (2,733) 8,113
At the end of the year FxR 14,057 5,018
Representing: fh
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 28,550 18,810
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEERE (14,493) (13,792)
Total kS 14,057 5018
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (to be recovered/settled FR - EXESHABREERARBALZEERAEHRT
after 12 months) during the year, without taking into consideration of the ERRBEEAERABER12[EAGRYNE/EE) 228
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: nE:
Provision
of trade
receivables
Accelerated and
tax inventories
depreciation BN
MEHE REREE Tax losses Total
E B BEEE Fok ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At the beginning of the year F9 (16,608) — 21,626 5,018
Recognised in the income statement ~ PMERRHER 2,806 6,324 2,642 11,772
Exchange realignments i 5 3% (2,758) — 25 (2,733)

At the end of the year FX (16,560) 6,324 24,293 14,057
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32.

33.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32. EEHB%)
As at 31st March 2010, the Group had unrecognised deferred tax assets of RZZE-—ZF=A=1+—-0 ' A5EZABERELH
approximately HK$13,452,000 (2009: HK$13,892,000), primarily representing TEAE#13,452,000% T (ZZF N4 : 13,892,000
the tax effect of cumulative tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax Br) FTERERHANEER(EGEBNEEER
authorities) which can be carried forward indefinitely. The Group also has BIZHBRE Z2EUAEREAE - XEETR
tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$1,750,000 (2009: HK$1,491,000) B A E ST IBE R 1,750,000 T(Z ST NE
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. 1,491,00087) ' B#R—ZERFREE - DIKHRRE
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as ARET - ARZEERREE —BEREGERZN
they have arisen in subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities that have been BRARLREHERE  BAKRTEEEARTRF AN
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable EHEHREES  NUERZSERRRECHELE -
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
At 31st March 2010, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax RZE—ZF=A=+—0 AEEZHBRRELRA
liability (2009: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted BHEBZAEHNBHMEM2FE  TERBERAEAELR
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries or jointly-controlled entities. EHHEAB(ZESNE - 8)-
RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION 33. EMENEE
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—B-BF “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Pension benefits RAKSER
— Obligation in the statement of financial — WBRRKES
position 62,834 48,926

— Income statement charged (note 8) — BERIM(H38) 9,773 6,957
Cumulative actuarial gains recognised in other  EFREM AL/ (BE)

comprehensive income/(loss) (before tax) as at A2 BEHsE R (BAT)

beginning of the year 13,311 —
Acquisition of a jointly-controlled entity Wi LRIEHIEE - 11,579
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in other F/HRREt2ERES /(BB B2

comprehensive income/(loss) in the year BEIE/(BR)(Fia)

(before tax) (653) 5,692
Exchange realignments Rk 2,755 (3,960)
Cumulative actuarial gains recognised in other  F&RN A2 E /(BB ERZ

comprehensive income/(loss) (before tax) BB W (TR

as at year end 15,413 13,311

The pension plan is the final salary defined plan. The Group's plan is valued
by Towers Watson (previously known as Watson Wyatt Korea), qualified

actuaries, using the project unit credit method.

BARSHERSEG @ RTHE - REB i EREE
& IEE /D Towers Watson (ATHE Watson Wyatt Korea)
AT B B AT -
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (continued) 33. RUEANEE®)
Pension benefits BREER
The Group operates defined benefit pension plans in the Republic of Korea FEBERBERRESTNRERES 25 R REFH
based on employees’ pensionable remuneration and length of service. BEIRATRMNRARSHE -
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined R BRARER 2 SBEENT -
as follows:
Group
AEE
2010 2009
“E-BF “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Present value of unfunded obligations ARHESEMZRE 62,834 48,926
Unrecognised past service cost REERBERBKAR - =
Liability in the statement of financial position RETERRRZ &fE 62,834 48,926
The movements in the defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows: ERNZRAERNEEZHNT :
2010 2009
—B-EF “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
At the beginning of the year F9) 48,926 —
Liabilities acquired during acquisition of a YEAREHBRRRKE BE
jointly-controlled entity - 68,424
Current service cost RARBEHAR 5,773 4,229
Interest cost AR 4,000 2728
Actuarial loss/(gain) REER/ () 653 (5,692)
Benefits paid E1EF (7,066) (4,416)
Exchange realignments LS 10,548 (16,347)
At the end of the year FR 62,834 48,926
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows: RERRERZ BT :
2010 2009
3 “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Current service cost BERBKAR 5,773 4,229
Interest cost FIERA 4,000 2,728
Total, included in staff costs (note 8) % 0 s ABIRAR(HES) 9,773 6,957
The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$10,761,000 to its defined AEEBRHR S ZTFERARERAFEHRTYD

benefit plan in 2010. 10,761,000 7T ©
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (continued) 33. EREFNEE#)
Pension benefits (continued) BHReEA(E)
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: Rz EFERERBLOT
2010 2009
“E-2f “ZTHF
Discount rate B & 6.50% 7.75%
Future salary increase RRF & 1L0R 5% 5%
Mortality rate: AR
Pensioners at 25 BHENRKEAL
Male Elis 0.116% 0.116%
Female pogia 0.042% 0.042%
Pensioners at 30 0RBIEREAT
Male 1 0.098% 0.098%
Female pegid 0.050% 0.050%
Pensioners at 35 BRBMEREAL
Male 1 0.118% 0.118%
Female geqid 0.061% 0.061%
Pensioners at 40 A0 FEMERE AL
Male Bt 0.194% 0.194%
Female pegis 0.084% 0.084%
Pensioners at 45 45 RBEERE AT
Male Eil 0.333% 0.333%
Female pegia 0.131% 0.131%
Pensioners at 50 50 R EIERE AL
Male it 0.544% 0.544%
Female pogia 0.201% 0.201%
Pensioners at 55 55 mBEUERE AT
Male Bt 0.878% 0.878%
Female pogia 0.290% 0.290%
Termination rate: KiE®
At 25 R255% 4.788% 4.788%
At 30 R305% 2.973% 2.973%
At 35 R355% 2.740% 2.740%
At 40 R405% 2.748% 2.748%
At 45 R 455 2.819% 2.819%
At 50 R505% 3.090% 3.090%
At 55 555 4.643% 4.643%
Retirement age RINER 56 56
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (continued) 33. RUEANEE®)
Pension benefits (continued) BHREFHE)
The sensitivity of the overall pension liability to changes in the weighted BREAKSBEUNELIZERIZYH CHBENT

principal assumptions is:

Impact on retirement

Change in assumption benefit on obligation
BRED HEABRETZRE

For the year ended 31st March 2010: HE-T-TF=-A=1-HIFE:
Discount rate BRI K Increase by 0.5% Decrease by 5.13%
EF0.5% T#5.13%
Decrease by 0.5% Increase by 5.52%
T#0.5% FF5.52%
Salary growth rate HoRR Increase by 0.5% Increase by 5.42%
EF0.5% TE5.42%
Decrease by 0.5% Decrease by 5.08%
T#0.5% FF5.08%
Rate of mortality AnES Increase by 1% Increase by 1.21%
EFH1% EF1.21%

For the year ended 31st March 2009: BE-TTNF=-A=1—HIFE:
Discount rate BRI Increase by 0.5% Decrease by 5.11%
EF0.5% TH5.11%
Decrease by 0.5% Increase by 5.50%
T#0.5% L#5.50%
Salary growth rate HeR% Increase by 0.5% Increase by 5.00%
EF05% EF5.00%
Decrease by 0.5% Decrease by 4.68%
T#0.5% T8 4.68%
Rate of mortality TR Increase by 1% Increase by 2.35%
1% EF2.35%

34. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 4. HERBHAER

As at 31st March 2010, included in the balance were provisions for RZZ—TF=A=+—H £HEEAREEETF &
employee benefits, reinstatement costs and a leasehold deposit received of FRERREWHERSMEZEE  H5A382,000%
HK$382,000 (2009: HK$739,000), HK$3,266,000 (2009: HK$1,110,000) and T(ZFZNE 739,000/ 70 ) » 3,266,000/8 (=%
HK$45,000 (2009: HK$37,000), respectively. TAE 1,110,000 7T) £ 45,000 B (—TTNE :

37,00087T) °
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35. CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS 35. EEMEL/(FR)zBRE
(a)  Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to net cash flows from/ (a) REEN/(FR)ESEREL/(FR)zRE
(used in) operations: REFEZHE
—E2-2F “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(s&=351)
Operating profit/(loss) BEHER/(B18) 68,973 (164,101)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥¥ - BiE RRETE 64,686 39,482
Depreciation of investment properties BEMENE 76 76
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 20,751 22553
Amortisation of leasehold land and land HET Rl AiEEH
use rights 531 459
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BERREZER
equipment 494 1,105
Loss on disposal of an available-for-sale HENHEECRHEEZBE
financial asset — 12
Fair value gains on derivative financial fEeRI AR ENRS
instruments (1,980) (4,924)
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets ~ At &L R EERME - 1,803
Impairment of intangible assets EVEERE - 43
Impairment of non-current assets FRBEERE - 9
Impairment of non-current assets held for sale BELERRDEERE — 17,233
Impairment of trade receivables B SRR R E 5,843 6,759
Impairment of other receivables Hib U FIERE 49 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment n% - BERRERE 419 =
Severance and retirement benefits, net BB RRINMER - FH 9,773 6,957
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held HERELEERTEE 2 ha
for sale (35) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARZ M — (1,130)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value, FEMBZEAZEFE  F8E
net 12,950 11,503
Gain on compensation in form of treasury shares BRI S 2 Yizs (12,941) =
169,589 (61,199)
Decrease in inventories &R 2,727 123,395
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B S RMHIE R E iR
receivables (#&m),/mb (170,822) 120,582
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables & 5 (508 K H fth fE 50
#10,/ (Fd) 291,117 (230,113)
Increase in other non-current assets HAIEREEEEM (1,317) (8,213)
(Decrease)/increase in other non-current HiIerBasCas) Em
liabilties (349) 325
Decrease in severance and retirement benefits &£ KR IKEAH D (7,066) (4,416)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operations EEMES/ (FR)ZBERE
RE 283,879 (54,639)
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35. CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS 35. EEMEL/(KR)ZR&x

g

(continued)
(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMEAR
2009
“BEhE
HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposal of: HETIFEE
Cash and bank balances Be RFITHEER 103
Prepayment and other receivables TERT FRIE R E A B 21
Accruals and other payables JEETTHE REMEM R (154)
Exchange reserve B 5 R (1,055)
(1,085)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 6) HEMB ARz MR (A i2E6) 1,130
Satisfied by: ANV ESIE
Cash B 45
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HEMBAREBRERREEEER 2 F R AN
of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: 156
2009
“EENE
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration ReRE 45
Cash and bank balances disposed of HER & RRITHER (103)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the HEMNBARBER S RRESEEREZ
disposal of subsidiaries S (58)
36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 36. HMBER
As at 31st March 2010, the Company had provided guarantees of RZZE-—ZTE=A=+—H0 ARAFRCHRHBAR KL
HK$518,068,000 (2009: HK$356,460,000) with respect to banking facilities R B IR 2 RITAE R 1817 518,068,000
made available to its subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities. As at 31st TL(ZEZNF : 356,460,00087T) c R=F—TF =
March 2010, bank borrowings of HK$249,047,000 were outstanding (2009 A=1—0 " wkEEZHFITEEA249,047,0005 T
HK$81,357,000). The Company’s directors and the Group's management (ZZTNF : 81,357,000 7T) - ANAIZEZRAK
anticipate that no material liabilities will arise from such guarantees which BrERERBTeRZEROREAEXBKAR)ME

arose in the ordinary course of business. HEREE-
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37.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st March 2010, the Group had banking facilities of HK$1,172,268,000
(2009: HK$924,365,000) from several banks for loans and trade financing.
As at 31st March 2010, approximately HK$642,810,000 were utilised by the
Group (2009: HK$421,716,000). These facilities were secured by:

(i) pledge of property, plant and equipment of the jointly-controlled
entities of HK$470,625,000 (2009: HK$388,326,000);

(ii) pledge of leasehold land and land use rights of the jointly-controlled
entities of HK$7,057,000 (2009: HK$7,233,000);

(i) pledge of entire balance of freehold land of a jointly-controlled entity;

(iv)  pledge of entire balance of investment properties of a jointly-

controlled entity;

(v) pledge of inventories of the jointly-controlled entities of
HK$55,761,000 (2009: HK$53,375,000) and certain of the Group’s

inventories held under trust receipt bank loan arrangements;

(vi)  pledge of the bank deposits of the Group’s subsidiaries of
HK$1,327,000 (2009: Nil);

(vii)  pledge of the bank deposits of the jointly-controlled entities of
HK$83,054,000 (2009: HK$46,086,000);

(viii) as at 31st March 2009, discounted bills receivable with recourse of
the Group’s subsidiaries of HK$23,328,000 were also used to secure
certain banking facilities of the Group;

(ix)  discounted bills receivable with recourse of the jointly-controlled
entities of HK$23,321,000 (2009: HK$34,712,000);

(x) corporate guarantee of HK$518,068,000 (2009: HK$356,460,000)
provided by the Company; and

(xi)  government guarantee of HK$23,280,000 (2009: Nil) provided by the
Government of the HKSAR.

37.

BTRE
—ZF=A=1+-H FEEREETHRITZ
m&“ﬁ%mﬂﬁmﬁﬁmﬂém 172,268, ooo,%rc(q 2
U 1 924,365,000/ 70 ) © —ZE=Zf=1—
: %%ﬂéaﬁ%ﬂi%@ﬁbm@ 642,810,0007%75(:;
%ﬂi © 421,716,000/ 7T) ° ZEFE AT R AEHE
bR

(i) HEZFHERE 2 ME - BE k& 470,625,000
BIL(ZETNE : 388,326,000787T) 2 B

iy HRAZEHERzAELHRInFERE
7,057,000/ T (ZEENF : 7,233,000/ 1T)
i

(i)  HREHEBEHBEBIARELLER -
(iv) HRZHERZ2HERRENFE2ER

(v) ERZEHEEFE55761,0008T(ZSZN
153,375,000 7)) kAR BE TREETR
BRETERTHREZEEZER

(viy AEBHBRRETER,327,00087m(=
TNE BB/

(viiy  EEEHIEERTF83,054,0008L(ZFF
FLE : 46,086,000 7T ) 2 18

(viiy RZZZEAFZA=+—H FTEEHRBR
E\EiﬁumL%%%WﬁE23,328,0007%7@?%1’E
HEAEEZETRTHE

(ix) HRZFHERB I ULNBREELKEE
23,321,000/ 7L(= T T )L F : 34,712,000
) K&

(x)  AREREZAFIER518,068,0008 (=%
T A : 356,460,000 7T) °

(xiy BBBFERRGER23280,0008T(ZTTH
F 1 E)ZBFER
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38. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Capital commitments

As at 31st March 2010, capital commitments relating to the Company
and its subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period but not yet

incurred was as follows:

38. &g
(a)

BREE

RZZ-ZF=A=+—R  ARALEREMH
BRANBEARZ HARELEEARENT

2010 2009
i S 33 “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET

Property, plant and equipment: ER TSR
Contracted but not provided for EHEEEREL - 2,562
Authorised but not contracted for BRERRTA - =
- 2,562

Operating lease commitments — As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties, warehouses and
shops under operating lease arrangements. The leases for these

properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At 31st March 2010, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

(b)

RERERE — FREEA

FERRES B AR EELETHAR
wg - ABREH - BENEIEHAR-E=
FF% -

R-T-TEZA=+-A  ARERESET
THEGERE  NAREAE RERSHE
R FIHRIEI -

2010 2009

—2-%F —ERENE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Not later than one year 1ELAR 32,391 18,034
Later than one year and not later than five years i 1F{E5F A 23,608 15,585
55,999 33,619

Operating lease commitments — As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties and certain of its
machinery under operating lease arrangements, with leases

negotiated for terms ranging from 6 months to 2 years.

(c)

SeREAE — FHHAA

FEERBSREEHETHERERENER
ETHE  SEAINTAEAERERS -
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38. COMMITMENTS (continued) 38. i
(c)  Operating lease commitments — As lessor (continued) () K2RERE—ERERAE)
At 31st March 2010, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZ-FF=A=1+—-R F5EREZESA
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants MPIT 2 FAIRHE2THE - RARREK 2 &
falling due as follows: B @EN I HEmaE
Group
A5H
2010 2009
—B-EF ZZThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Within one year 1 ELAA 6,911 108
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FoEZFELF(REEREME) 15 8
6,926 116
During the year, the Group recognised HK$6,990,000 (2009: ER - REERRKAE LTS 6,990,000% T
HK$150,000) in respect of contingent rentals receivable. (ZZTNF : 150,000/87T) ©
(d)  Other commitments (d) Herxig
The Group entered into an agreement with an independent third party AEBRBYE=F U HE  REERRME
to develop a certain number of Burger King restaurants in Hong Kong BETHE 2EET (Burger King)BE @ AH
and Macau within a period of 10 years ending on 31st March 2017. As 10F RZZ—+F=ZA=+—BKE - R=
at 31st March 2010, fifteen Burger King restaurants were opened and T-ZF=f=1—-A +HMEELT Burger
operating. King) BEE X REE -
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. EBEEEALZRS

For the year ended 31st March 2010, before the conversion of the convertible
bonds and preference shares on 28th February 2010, the Company had
owned by North Asia Strategic Acquisition Corp. (“NASAC”), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, and Mr. Moses Tsang Kwok Tai (“Mr.
Tsang”) and his related parties as to approximately 46.1% and 21.1%
respectively. NASAC and Mr. Tsang acquired their interests in the Company
effective from 9th August 2005. Ajia Partners Inc. is the controlling company
of NASA which in turn controls 100% voting capital of NASAC. Since 28th
February 2010 and as at 31st March 2010, neither Mr. Tsang nor NASAC
owns more than 5% of the Company and thus, neither of them has significant

influence over the Company.

RZE-ZTE=A=+—-H RZZT-TF-_A=tN
ARBARRES RELRA - ARG BNorth Asia
Strategic Acquisition Corp. ([NASAC|® REZEE
ARz AR)  CEREE(SEEDREBEA
THRIEEH46.1% K21.1% 2 % - NASAC K & %
EEZZTRFNANBRUEERARR 2B o
Ajia Partners Inc. ANASA ZIERR/AR] + f1NASA Bl
#l NASACZ100% B R ERERA - EZZ—FF_R
ZHNBRERZZ-TF=A=F+—-H BE4R
NASACEEBE AR AR 5% M £ - BB EEH—HE%
ARRBEEATE -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39. HEEEALTZRH4)

WA R E RIS R AN R S
FBREECARREREAYESE  AREAEEA
T WEHUZARBHLZLAEAYE - BITHE

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over

the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also

considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common BBEAL -
significant influence.
(@)  The following is a summary of the significant transactions carried out (a) UTAHBEATEAIZEARSIHE :

with related parties:

2010 2009
3 “TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Name of related party/nature of transaction MEALEE/R51HE
Ajia Partners (HK) Limited (“APHK”) (i) Ajia Partners (HK) Limited
(TAPHK ) (i)
— Rental expense charged to the Group — RAREKRZESER 2,093 2,284
— Administrative services fee charged to the — AAEEKIZ THREE
Group 913 996
NASA (il NASA (ii)
— Service fees charged to the Group — AAEEKEZ REE 35,189 38,591

Notes:

(i)

APHK is a fellow subsidiary of NASAC and associated with Mr. Tsang.
When both Mr. Tsang and NASAC ceased to have significant influence
over the Company since 28th February 2010, APHK is no longer a
related party of the Group and the transactions with APHK subsequent
to 28th February is not included in the amount disclosed above.

The Group entered into two administrative service agreements with
APHK, under which APHK for provision of general administrative
services by APHK during the periods from 1st July 2008 to 30th June
2009 and from 1st July 2009 to 30th June 2010, for a monthly service
fee of approximately HK$83,000. In addition, the Group entered into a
sub-tenancy agreement with, inter alia, APHK for sub-leasing of office
space from 1st April 2008 to 31st March 2011 at a monthly rental of
approximately HK$190,000.

Hit

APHK ANASACZ R ZMB AR - TERE %
EEBE  YEERNASACH-E—ZF
AZtNBRELHARRBERYEE -
APHKAEAAEE ZBEAL  BIX A
ZHN\BREAPHKETZ R S L EEFA EX
FiRBEE%

AEBMEAPHK T MR TR R ek »
It - APHK IR —RTBRE - HRIE-ZT
NELtA-—BREZZTAFAA=THLE
RE-ZTAELA-RARE-T-Z51A
=THIE BARBELAS3000ET - It
b AEEE(EA aE)APHK ST SRR -
NARMAZEH  BE-ET/\GNA—A#
Z-T——%5=A=t+-RAL BARELH
190,000 T °
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39. HEBEALZR

—ZEF=ZHA=+—H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

NASA is the holding company of NASAC which was a substantial
shareholder of the Company up to 28th February 2010.

The Group entered into a service agreement with NASA, under which
the Group has agreed to pay NASA (i) an annual service fee of 2% of
aggregate subscription price less aggregate amount of salaries and
other remuneration paid to certain employees of the Group for the
provision of services in capital raising, research, investor sourcing,
investment sourcing, investment analysis or due diligence and financial
advisory service by NASA; (ii) an annual incentive fee equals to 20%
of the amount by which net assets at the end of each financial year
exceed the greater of the highest level of the net assets of the Group
and the aggregate amount of capital drawn down and injected into the
Company arranged by NASA, compounded annually at the rate of 5%;
and (iii) a placing fee of 0.5% of the gross proceeds of placement of
preference shares or any other equity or equity-linked securities of the
Group arranged by NASA.

Balances with subsidiaries

Current portion of balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, non-

interest-bearing and repayable/payable within a year.

The non-current portion of balances with subsidiaries are unsecured,

non-interest-bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms,
except for amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$131,790,000 (2009:
HK$89,966,000) that bears interest at HIBOR plus 1% to 2% (2009:
HIBOR plus 1% to 2%) per annum.

Balance with a jointly-controlled entity

The balance with a jointly-controlled entity is unsecured, non-interest-

bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment.

39.

(@)

(b)

(c)

[fﬂﬁ»

(&)
it - (&)

(i) NASABNASAC 2RI AR MBE=F—
ZEZAZ+/\H ' NASACRARAIZEE
PR3 o

AREE NASAFTIL RIS - Bt - ARE
RERANASAS () RBEE - AAREE
ﬁNASAﬁ’MmL\Hé B mEREE R
ERB  RADTAZRASRERERRS
MAFAEEHFS & T 2 F e REME M
B2 2% (i) FRERE  BENZMK
FEACAEFEBEASEEERERS
KFFHHNASAZHE MR AAR T 2 &
TEEURRERE)ZEH0%  REF
SR ERHE : R(NEEE RREEER
HNASA RSB R B2 EREMRAL KA
BB SIS TRREZ0.5% °

BB AR 2%
BNBRARZARIRDHNARER  TiE

&%E—EWEM/@\°

BB AR Z & ZFEREHH ﬁ.’rﬁﬁﬁ 2
AEAREEESE  ERKNEARZHA
131,790,000 8 T(ZEE N4 ¢ 89966000/%
TARERROTRERSFNRIMER2E
(Z2TNF: BRROTRERSM EEZ2E)
ZAFFE

SHREENER AR

BARZRHER AR AEER Tt EAEE
o

\

3‘#

&

Fi}
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Key management compensation

39. HEEEATZRE#)
(d) ZEEBASHSE

2010 2009

—B-2% —TTNEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FAET

Salaries and allowances e k2 9,024 8,777
Retirement benefits — defined contribution scheme R{KiEH — RE M FE 2 55 52
9,079 8,829

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(a)

40. RERESZEMIA

Group (a) ZA£HE
At 31st March 2010 R-E-FFZf=1-H
Loans and
receivables Available-
-£7953 for-sale
EW B AfHE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Assets as per statement of financial HERREPZEE
position
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE — 3,008 3,008
Trade and other receivables excluding B 5 e TRIE ] A e M 0B
prepayments (TeEEMZE) 356,869 - 356,869
Rental and other non-current deposits HekEERDEZES 11,836 - 11,836
Pledged bank deposits BIEARITER 84,381 - 84,381
Cash and cash equivalents Re kAL EEER 1,133,181 - 1,133,181
Total k) 1,586,267 3,008 1,589,275
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 40. RERESzEWMIA S
(a)  Group (continued) (a) #A&EEE)
At 31st March 2010 (continued) R-E-FF=F=1-A(#)
Liabilities Other
at fair value financial
through liabilities at
the profit amortised
or loss cost
B2 AEIR Hiniz e
TREZRE BASER 2
28fE SHEE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Liabilities as per statement of financial ~ B#MKRERPZAE
position
Borrowings (excluding finance lease BE(TeERERNERE)
liabilities) - 387,429 387,429
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA 7,089 — 7,089
Non-current leasehold deposit received Bl ERBHERS — 45 45
Trade and other payables excluding statutory 2 5 & (I8 & H it JE 4 508
liabilities (TRELEAE) - 681,453 681,453
Total am 7,089 1,068,927 1,076,016
At 31st March 2009 R-EEAFZ/=1-H
Loans and
receivables Available-
594 for-sale Total
FEWHIE HEE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET
Assets as per statement of financial BBRRERPZEE
position
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESHEE — 1,357 1,357
Trade and other receivables excluding B S EUE R E b KR
prepayments (TeEEMZE) 188,986 — 188,986
Rental and other non-current deposits BekEERDES 9,300 — 9,300
Subscription receivables LR 13,000 — 13,000
Pledged bank deposits BIERRITER 58,552 = 58,552
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR eEBEEE 1,063,583 = 1,063,583

Total ot 1,333,421 1,357 1,334,778
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 40. RERESz2EWMIA S
(a)  Group (continued) (@) #A&EEE)
At 31st March 2009 (continued) KR-EENE=ZF=1—H(Z)
Liabilities Other
at fair value financial
through liabilities
the profit at amortised
or loss cost
BN B Het 8
W B EE AR Z Total
ZafE SRAR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Liabilities as per statement of financial ~BERREFZEE
position
Borrowings (excluding finance lease BETRERERNEAR)
liabilities) — 430,409 430,409
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMIA 9,069 = 9,069
Non-current leasehold deposit received BYCERBHERS — 37 37
Trade and other payables excluding statutory 2 5 & 708k £ b fE [ 2B
liabilities (PREEEAE) — 351,703 351,703
Total bl 9,069 782,149 791,218
(b)  Company () EAF
At 31st March 2010 R-E-Z£=f=1-H
Loans and
receivables
EXREKFRE
HK$’000
FET
Assets as per statement of financial position BRRREFZEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries and a jointly-controlled entity  FEURMTB A 7} R B 8 FUE 979,038
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments BHRNGER LR HE (TR EREAFE) 112
Cash and cash equivalents RekFEEEEER 942,077
Total am 1,921,227
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 40. REREP2EMIAS)
(b)  Company (continued) (b) AARE)

At 31st March 2010 (continued)

Ro-B-FF=f=+—-HA(£)

Other financial

liabilities at
amortised cost
Het R B A
Gz e MAE
HK$°000
FET

Liabilities as per statement of financial position BBRRARP2EE
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities BHRNTAREhERTE(TREEEERE) 1,150
Total ot 1,150

At 31st March 2009 R-EEAF=F=+—H

Loans and
receivables
ERREYE
HK$'000
FET

Assets as per statement of financial position BBRRRP2EE
Amounts due from subsidiaries and a jointly-controlled entity  FEURHTB A 7}t F2 4 B FUE 910,382
Subscription receivables R MR 13,000
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments B 5 IEUGHIE R H A JE UGB (TR BB R F0R) 101
Cash and cash equivalents RekHEE2EEEE 1,030,430
Total k) 1,953,913
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
HAb B KA
FER 2 BB E
HK$'000
FET

Liabilities as per statement of financial position BEMRRRPZEE
Amount due to a subsidiary ENENGE 4,437
Convertible bonds AaRES 18,267
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabilities B RNFER M ENFE(TREEEAR) 1,616
Total B 24,320
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41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD M. REHREBE
Disposal of the Group’s interest in TKC, a jointly-controlled entity HEASEALREHERTKC 2#H
On 30th April 2010, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose of RZZE-ZEMA=1R  A£EUGZ KRR
its entire shareholding in TKC in the Republic of Korea, for a total cash R E77,000,000,000 B (HARAR_Z—FEFHA
consideration of KRW77 billion (approximately HK$546 million as disclosed in MB T2 ALFEE - 4546,000,000757) 1 &EHR
the Company’s announcement dated 4th May 2010) (the “Transaction”). The FETKCZ2BRE(RF]) - HETF R KA (BE
Transaction, subject to certain completion conditions, including regulatory EEHE)ERE  RHBHARZ-TFLATMK °

approval, is targeted to be completed in July 2010.

The revenue and expenses, assets and liabilities, and cash flows of TKC are TKCZWABESL It - EEHRBERRSREEHSWT
set out below:

(i) Share of TKC’s revenue and expenses ()  ELTKCZHAEZY

Year ended 31st March

HE=A=t-HLFE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHT
Revenue WA 1,754,983 1,202,512
Expenses w it (1,631,859) (1,227,190)
Finance costs H%ER (27,810) (27,202)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATEA/ (B518) 95,314 (51,880)
Income tax credit/(expense) FEREE,/ (X H) (25,593) 14,878
Profit/(loss) for the year/period F/HNEF/ (B8) 69,721 (37,002)
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41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued) M. REHEBEE)
Disposal of the Group’s interest in TKC, a jointly-controlled entity HEREEARARRHERTKC 2% (4)
(continued)
(i) Share of TKC’s assets and liabilities (i) ETKCZEEHZER

At 31st March

R=A=t+-AH
2010 2009
—B-BF “ZThF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
ASSETS &
Non-current assets B EE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BERR 556,172 483,268
Intangible assets EVEE 184,566 177,589
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 2 1
Other non-current assets HibERaEE 3,020 1,674
743,760 662,532
Current assets MEBE
Inventories FE 56,091 44,602
Trade and other receivables B 5 EWGRIE R H R R 135,042 90,489
Non-current assets held for sale BELEZERDEE — 6,264
Current income tax recoverable Al e A — 170
Pledged bank deposits BERARTER 7 6,975
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEBEER 87,01 7,807
278,151 156,307
Total assets BERE 1,021,911 818,839
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41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued) N, BEM®EHE )
Disposal of the Group’s interest in TKC, a jointly-controlled entity HEAEERLREHERTKC 2% (£)
(continued)
(i) Share of TKC’s assets and liabilities (continued) (i) B TKCZEEHERE(E)

At 31st March

R=A=1+-H
2010 2009
—2-%f “TThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
LIABILITIES =1
Current liabilities MBARE
Borrowings BE 182,993 203,892
Trade and other payables B S ENFERE B 299,616 176,617
Current income tax liabilities RBERasE 17,570 =
500,179 380,509
Non-current liabilities EnEIL=Y
Borrowings s 23,281 73,436
Deferred tax liabilities EREHEAE 14,493 13,782
Retirement benefit obligations RIVEFIEE 62,834 48,926
Other non-current liabilities HivJEnBaE 46 37
100,654 136,181
Total liabilities aELE 600,833 516,690
(iii)  Share of TKC’s cash flows (i)  ELETKCZEEHE
Year ended 31st March
HE-A=t-HLFE
2010 2009
—Z-%f “TTNE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Operating activities mEEK 206,023 (22,727)
Investing activities BREAED 801 (6,450)
Financing activities BEEE (127,620) (20,380)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BeRA/ (Rd)FE 79,204 (49,557)
42. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 2. kBLE
Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform with the current ETHBLEEARURAKREE 2 2HA -

year's presentation.
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Fax : (852) 2169 0209

TEEENE
BABERKEHISEARIRANTSE
EiF : (852) 2218 2188

& H : (852) 2169 0209

www.nasholdings.com



	封面
	內封
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	主席報告書
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員資料
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	財務狀況表
	綜合股東權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	封底


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /MHeiHK-Bold
    /MHeiHK-Light
    /MHeiHK-Medium
    /MHeiHKS-Bold
    /MHeiHKS-Light
    /MHeiHKS-Medium
    /MHeiHKS-Xbold
    /MHeiHK-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 2.40
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 2.40
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 150
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [595.276 841.890]
>> setpagedevice


